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Milestone

Relocation of production base to Western China
Established its new brand “SIPALS”

Listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

Established Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
(Cayman Islands)

ISO 14001 Certification (Dongguan Factory and
Huzhou Factory)

Incorporated Tay Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial
Co., Ltd. (Dongguan)

Incorporated Germany SiTY

Incorporated TaYang Electronic Technology Co.
Ltd. (Huzhou)

Incorporated Macao Trading Company

Certified QS-9000, U/L Certificate of Compliance

Established USA TSAC Sales
ISO-9002 Certification

Established Ta Yang Silicone Rubber Industrial Co. Ltd.
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Our mission

is to consolidate the leading market position by providing a wide
range of value-added silicone rubber products.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Huang Sheng-Shun (Chairman)

Huang Te-Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Lin Hung-Ming

Wong Tak Leung

Non-Executive Directors

Wu h Chen
Kirk Yang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen
Yeung Chi Tat

COMMITTEES

Executive Committee

Huang Sheng-Shun*
Huang Te-Wei

Chan Oi Fat

Li Yung-Ming

Remuneration Committee

Yeung Chi Tat*
Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen

Nomination Committee
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Audit Committee

Yeung Chi Tat*
Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen

Compliance Committee
Yeung Chi Tat*

Huang Te-Wei

Lin Hung-Ming

Chan Oi Fat

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Huang Te-Wei
Chan Oi Fat

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
Chan Oi Fat

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Oi Fat

AUDITORS
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW
ADVISOR

SHINEWING Risk Services Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House
68 Fort Street, P.O. Box 705

Grand Cayman KY1-1107
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Flat 28, 23rd Floor, Metro Centre
21 Lam Hing Street

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen'’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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COMPANY WEBSITE NGIE D

http://www.tayang.com http://www.tayang.com

STOCK CODE I 104K 5%

1991 1991

SHARE INFORMATION &R

Listing Date: 8 June 2007 LTBEH ZEETLEFRANA

Stock Name: Ta Yang Group Sk RAFEEE

Stock Code: 1991 BRAD RS - 1991

Nominal Value: HK$0.10 HE 0.1078 7T

Board Lot: 2,000 shares BFESEN 2,000/%

INVESTOR RELATIONS REERIF

Mr. Chan Oi Fat PRE B E

Telephone: (852) 3678 5088 T|aE ¢ (852) 3678 5088

Facsimile: (852) 3678 5099 fHE : (852) 3678 5099

FINANCIAL YEAR END MBFEFHEH

31 July +A=+—~
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Huang Sheng-Shun

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, aged 57, is the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. He is responsible for the development
of our general corporate strategy, operation management,
planning and decision making. Mr. Huang, together with Mr.
Wu lh Chen, founded the Group on 7 May 1991. Prior to the
establishment of the Group, he was the operation manager
of a chemical company between June 1978 and May 1982.
Afterwards, he worked at Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd.
(RAMIELERMNBR AR, a private company, and since 1986
became the company’s general manager until 2005. Mr. Huang
and his family members have been the shareholders of Ta Yang
Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd. until Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial
Co., Ltd. ceased operations and was wound up in April 2006.
Save as disclosed above, there is no relationship between Ta
Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd. and each of the Group’s
companies, its directors, its substantial shareholders and their
respective associates. Mr. Huang is the father of Mr. Huang
Te-Wei, an executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

Mr. Huang has also been a deputy managing director of
Formosan Union Chemical Corp.,
Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, from 1 July 1987 to 30
June 1996 and from 1 July 2002 to present. He has over 30
years of experience in management positions in the chemical

a company listed on the

manufacturing industry. Mr. Huang graduated from the Faculty
of Law, National Taiwan University in 1976. Mr. Huang is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
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Huang Te-Wei

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Huang Te-Wei, aged 31, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is the head of
control department and is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s compliance and internal control matters. From 2008
onwards, Mr. Huang was also responsible for the supervision
of the daily operation of the Group's factories in the PRC and
strategic planning. Mr. Huang graduated from the Industrial
Administration stream, Department of Business Administration,
National Taiwan University and has completed his military
service in Taiwan. Mr. Huang is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Huang is the eldest son of Mr.
Huang Sheng-Shun, the Chairman and the Executive Director
of the Group.

Lin Hung-Ming

Executive Director and Research & Development Director

Mr. Lin Hung-Ming, aged 47, is the Executive Director and the
research and development director of the Group. Mr. Lin joined
the Group in 1993 and is currently responsible for research
and development of the Group. Mr. Lin graduated from the
Department of Mechanics, Private Chih-Kwang Vocational High
School of Business and Technology. He has over 22 years of
experience in the silicone rubber industry. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lin was a factory manager of an electronics
company in Taiwan.

Wong Tak Leung

Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, aged 50, is the Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager. Mr. Wong joined the Group in May
1993 and was subsequently promoted to deputy managing
director in 2001. Mr. Wong is responsible for the sales and
marketing functions of the Group. During 1981 to 1989, Mr.
Wong served in the Strategic Planning Department of Hong
Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Wong is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Wu |h Chen

Non-Executive Director and Adviser

Mr. Wu |h Chen, aged 60, is the Non-Executive Director
and adviser of the Company. Mr. Wu has over 23 years of
experience in the silicone rubber industry. Mr. Wu, together with
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, founded the Group on 7th May 1991.
Presently, Mr. Wu provides the Group with consulting services
concerning matters relating to management and operation of
the Company, investment, merger and acquisition decision.
Mr. Wu graduated from the Aletheia University in 1971 and
completed the Studying Program for Hong Kong Senior
Management in Business organized by the Peking University
in the PRC. Mr. Wu is a director for the Eleventh Board of
Directors of International Association of Chinese Traders.
Mr. Wu is also a director of one of the subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Wu is the elder brother of Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, the associate
general manager of the Group.

Kirk Yang

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kirk Yang, aged 44, is the Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He holds Bachelor (with distinction) and Master
of Science degrees in Electrical Engineering from Purdue
University and Master of Business Administration (Finance,
Accounting and Marketing concentrations) from University of
Chicago.

Mr. Yang is currently the Managing Director and Head of Asia
Ex-Japan Technology Hardware and Components Equity
Research at Barclays Capital Asia Limited. Before that,
Mr. Yang held the same position at Nomura International (Hong
Kong) Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Yang served as a chief financial
officer in a leading private China IT software company and our
company. Mr. Yang was also a managing director and head
of Asia Technology Research of Citi Investment Research of
Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited based in Hong Kong
("Citi") where he was awarded the No.1 analyst by Institutional
Investors, Financial Times and Greenwich in 2004, 2006 and 2007
respectively in recognition of his accomplishment in investment
equity research industry and ranked top 3 during most of
his career. Before joining Citi, Mr. Yang served as a director
and head of Asia Technology Hardware Research at Credit
Suisse. Mr. Yang has more than nine years of experience in the
investment banking equity research industry, including worked
at Goldman Sachs and BNP Paribas respectively. Mr. Yang
also has more than eight years of experience in management
consulting, sales/marketing and engineering operation in
various corporations such as A.T. Kearney, Accenture, HP/EDS,
Emerson Electric, IBM, and AT&T. Mr. Yang has not held any
position in the Group since 1 February 2009.
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Hsieh Yu

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hsieh Yu, aged 63, is the Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He obtained a certificate for solicitor in Taiwan
in 1977 and joined the Taipei Bar Association immediately as
a practicing Attorney-at-Law. He is the responsible officer of
B2 52 E7F. He had been the legal consultant for various
corporations and organizations. Mr. Hsieh graduated from the
Faculty of Law, National Taiwan University in 1976.

Jou Yow-Jen

Independent Non-Executive Director

Professor Jou Yow-Jen, aged 55, is the Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company. Professor Jou is currently an
associate professor of Department of Information and Finance
Management and Institute of Finance at National Chiao Tung
University. Professor Jou has been participated actively in
research on data analysis, time series analysis model, [to model
application, Monte Carlo model, O-D mode and options pricing
etc. She has been knowledgable in statistics, econometrics,
financial time series analysis and financial information analysis,
and completed several fundamental researches on Economics
and Finance. Prior to joining the Company,
was an associate professor of Institute of Statistics at National

Professor Jou

Chiao Tung University, the statistician of Directorate General
of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan, R.O.C.
(Taiwan) and the planning controller of Taiwan Power Company.
Professor Jou obtained bachelor and master degrees from
National Chung Hsing University and National Chen Chi
University in Taiwan respectively and Ph. D in doctorate in
Statistics from Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania.
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Yeung Chi Tat

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, aged 42, is the Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. He holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from the University of Hong Kong and a master
degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the president
of the Hong Kong headquarter of the International Financial
Management Association. He is currently the financial controller
and company secretary of Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited
(Stock Code: 828), an Independent Non-Executive Director of
ANTA Sports Products Limited (Stock Code: 2020), Boer Power
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1685) and Billion Industrial
Holdings Limited (Stock Code : 2299), all of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung
had previously worked at a major international accounting firm
for over ten years. He is experienced in auditing, corporate
restructuring and corporate financial services.
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Chan Oi Fat

Financial Controller & Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Oi Fat, aged 33, joined the Group in January 2008
as the financial controller and the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Chan is mainly responsible for the financial and
accounting management and secretarial affairs of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was an audit manager
in an international accounting firm. Mr. Chan has over 10
years of experience in professional accounting and auditing.
Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in accountancy. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Wu Tien-Tao

Associate General Manager (Huzhou Office)

Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, aged 53, is the associate general manager.
He oversees the operation of Huzhou factory. Mr. Wu joined
our Group in August 2003 and has been responsible for the
operation of the Huzhou factory of the Group since then.
Mr. Wu has over 12 years of experience in the production of
silicone rubber and multiple layered and soft printed circuit
boards. Mr. Wu is the younger brother of Mr. Wu |h Chen, a
non-executive Director of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the board of directors of Ta Yang Group Holdings
Limited, | herewith present all shareholders the annual report
of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2011.

In 2011, global economy still remained on a very slow and
rocky road to recovery. Consumer confidence continued to
be shattered by the unstable US economy and the European
sovereign debt crisis. This caused the Group to encounter
tough challenges. With concerted efforts of our staff, the
Group's turnover has maintained at a similar level as last year.
However, a rapid increase in production costs resulted in a
significant decrease in the profit for the year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

By the end of the financial year, the Group's turnover decreased
by 3.0% to HK$787.3 million.

The Group's profit for the year was HK$42.6 million, as compared
to HK$67.3 million recorded last year. Earnings per share for
the year was HK5.48 cents (2010: HK8.51 cents).

ERERE

“We are dedicated to turning
challenges into opportunities with
concerted effort.”
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Keypads for consumer electronic devices and computers
continued to be our core businesses. However, both segments
have recorded a slight drop. Apart from the weak consumer
confidence, the immense popularity achieved by smartphones
and tablet computers also undermined the sales volume for
the year.

However, at the same time, a new opportunity emerged as
consumers are willing to pay for innovative products and the
use of silicone material for lifestyle products become more
and more popular. The Group had seized this opportunity by
producing high quality products with innovative features to
meet the needs of customers. As a result, the sales for the
non keypads segment have dramatically increased during the
year.

The owned-brand “SIPALS"” which was established for producing
fancy lifestyle products with silicone rubber also recorded an
improvement in its operation. The Group will continue to
develop this brand by offering more innovative products and
exploring the new markets.

During the year, by integrating our production facilities in
Dongguan and Huzhou, the Group had achieved better
cost control and supply chain management. However, the
operating environment remained very tough. These measures
can only partly offset the continued increase in the production
and appreciation of the Renminbi. As a result, the Group’s
profitability was heavily affected by these cost increments.

OUTLOOK

The economy of US and Europe has not seen improvements
since the financial crisis in 2008. In the Peoples’ Republic
of China (the "PRC"), continuous increase in cost for coming
few years is expected by all manufacturers. It is anticipated
tough business environment will linger on for a considerable
period. To overcome the adversities, the Group will diversify
the product portfolio and continue to expand the customer
base to broaden the income stream.

While the overall economy and consumer confidence seem
to have been bottomed out, Greece and the rest of Europe
might post uncertainties and risks to the global economy.
To cope with these challenges, the Group will continue to
implement a number of stringent cost optimization measures to
reduce operating costs in order to maintain its competitiveness.
Moreover, the Group will further strengthen its relationship with
existing customers and diversify its customer base. With the
strategy for relocation of production base to Western China and
South East Asia where the production cost is relatively lower
than that of Eastern China. The Group believes that it will make
a positive contribution to the Group's profit in the future.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT Anniversary
e ax

The Directors are optimistic about the future development BEMREEERHAKERERRELE 15
of the Group's business and will continue to implement our #&E T 1T 2 ARNEFRR » IRAKNQENE
well-established business strategies to enhance the Company's 18 N A% 5 75 58 A &R [@] ¥R -

value and to bring outstanding return to the shareholders.

APPRECIATION €|

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to H&f& ' KAAENKHEEEBLSEE TEAE
thank the management and staff for their dedication and hard  BEHERE - AREBIELERMNEE H - A&
work during these challenging times. The Group will strive to ~ ESE HZEE N EANMBIHAL ©

strengthen our leading position in the industry.

Huang Sheng-Shun EE
Chairman and Executive Director TERANTEE

—BR--FFEH RKESEZERARQA 19
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

EHOENRE

MARKET REVIEW

Since the financial tsunami in 2008, the global economic
recovery remains sluggish. U.S economy remained weak while
the European soverign debt crisis was deepening.

Consumer confidence and spending have been contracted,
leading to a drop in the demand for traditional products.

In addition, the immense popularity achieved by tablet PCs and
3G smartphones has slowed down the demand for conventional
notebooks, computers and mobile phones. As a result, it
brought huge challenges to the consumer electronic device
market.

At the same time, a new opportunity emerged as consumers
were willing to pay for innovative products and the use of
silicone material for lifestyle products became popular. During
the year, the Group was able to capture the opportunity of the
surging demand for, and in turn sales of, non keypad products.
The initial success of expanding our customer base in this
market has helped to offset the drop of business from original
customers. As a result, the Group's turnover has maintained at
a similar level as last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Company’s Overall Performance

With the stimulus package launched by governments
worldwide, the market condition was still tough especially
after the emergence of European sovereign debt crisis. The
operating environment for manufacturing industries continued
to be vulnerable. During the year, the turnover for the financial
year ended 31 July 2011 decreased by 3% as compared to last
year. The primary income source of the Group was still derived
from sales of consumer electronic devices and computers, but
its percentage to total turnover decreased from 44% to 42%
and 32% to 31% respectively.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
XEBBRESE

Portable devices with touch-screen panel, such as smartphones
and tablet computers, became popular. Inevitably, this trend
adversely affected the demand for traditional products with
keypads and hence the Group's turnover.

Besides, the initial success of expanding our business to sales
of non keypad products has contributed to the total turnover,
offsetting the drop of business from original customers.
Therefore, the Group's turnover has maintained at a similar level
as last year. The gradual popularity of lifestyle products made
of silicone rubber posted the sales of non keypad products as
a new driving force of the Group.

Although the Group implemented prudent management
strategies in controlling operating and production costs, the
gross profit margin was deteriorated by a significant increase in
costs of material and labour in the PRC. This was compounded
with the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB"). With the recent
Western Development Program of China, fewer migrant workers
were willing to leave their western hometowns to seek for works
in coastal areas. As a result, many factories had to increase the
wages to attract workers. In addition, the PRC government
continued to increase the statutory minimum wages which
further boosted the total labour costs. On the material sides,
most commodities and raw materials were seeing substantial
price uptrend. With all these unfavorable impacts, the Group's
profit decreased during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
KI5 oI K

In response to labour shortages in the coastal region, the Group
commenced construction of a new production plant in Guangxi
Province, where labour supply with relatively lower wages was
available. It is believed it will help to improve the gross profit
after the completion of plant.

During the year, the owned brand “SIPALS"” was able to maintain
steady growth by providing a wide range of new lifestyle
products with environmental friendly features and cultural
concepts. During the year, SIPALS continued to explore the PRC
market apart from the Taiwan market. Thanked to the increase
in popularity for fancy lifestyle products with silicone rubber,
the operation was seeing encouraging improvement. To sustain
its growth, the Group will continue to maintain high-margin
products and focus on marketing these products to broaden
its customer base and explore business opportunities.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to the future, the economy of the United
States of America and Europe will not see much improvement
or even deteriorate. It is believed that the macro environment
will continue to be challenging. The management will remain
cautious about the Group's business outlook.

In light of the very tough environment in the industry, the
management noticed that some competitors had started to
exit from the industry, which is beneficial to the Group's further
advancement. With the advantage of economies of scales and
reputation in the industry, the Group is determined to achieve
higher market share in the coming years.

The Group will continue to put more efforts on research and
development to improve product quality, develop application
scopes of raw materials as well as broaden our product
variety. This proactive strategy will enable the Group to have
a broader mix in customer portfolio which in return can provide
a more stable income stream and more sustainable growth in
turnover.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
RGO K R

The continuous increase in production costs in the PRC and
the resumption of appreciation of RMB will threaten the
Group's overall performance. Apart from the enhancement
of operational efficiency, the Group has started the plan to
relocate certain production procedures to the western part
of the PRC or even Southeast Asia to lower our production
cost.

We believed that these forward-looking efforts will strength
the leading position of the Group and paving the foundation
in the future.

-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

Turnover represents the gross revenue generated from sales of
our products, net of discounts, sales tax and value added tax.
Qur turnover is affected by the volume of total products sold
and the product mix because our product lines have different
selling prices.

The consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 July 2011 was
decreased by 3% to HK$787.3 million (2010: HK$812.1 million)
while our profit attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$42.6 million (2010: HK$67.3 million).

Basic earnings per share of the Company was HK5.48 cents
based on the weighted average number of 777,863,000 shares
in issue during the year (2010: HK8.51 cents based on the
weighted average number of 790,610,000 shares).

SALES BY PRODUCT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IR E R AT

Keypads for consumer electronic devices

Turnover for the sales of keypads for consumer electronic
devices decreased by approximately 8.0% to HK$327.6 million
in 2011 from HK$355.9 million in 2010.

Since the global economy remained sluggish and the debt
crisis in the Eurozone extended to many European countries,
all those uncertainties undermined the consumers’ confidence.

This led to a decrease in our turnover accordingly.

Keypads for mobile phones

Turnover for the sales of mobile phone keypads decreased
by approximately 52.1% to HK$58.8 million in 2011 from
HK$122.7 million in 2010.

During the year, the huge demand for the Smartphones

. with touch- screen panels has speeded up the replacement

iof Iragiltlonal m¢ l?de phones with keypads By Smartphones
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHREAD

Keypads for computers and notebooks

Turnover for the sales of keypads for computers and notebooks
decreased by approximately 6.9% to HK$240.6 million in 2011
from HK$258.5 million in 2010.

The immense popularity achieved by tablet computers has
slowed down the demand for notebooks and netbooks.
Although it has been believed the tablet computers could
not fully replace traditional computers, they took up part of
the demand for traditional computers. Therefore, the Group
has recorded a decline in turnover under this rapid changing
market.

Automotive peripheral products

Turnover for the sales of automotive peripheral products
decreased by approximately 11.7% to HK$32.3 million in 2011
from HK$36.6 million in 2010. The U.S economy remained weak
while the Europe sovereign debt crisis was deepening, so the
demand for automobiles especially in these two regions was
decreased. As a result, sales order for automotive peripheral
products also decreased accordingly.

Lifestyle products

Turnover for the sales of lifestyle products increased by 430.9%
to HK$74.9 million in 2011 from HK$14.1 million in 2010.

With the emerge of new market for innovative lifestyle products,
and immense popularity of the use of silicone material for
lifestyle products, the sales in this segment have dramatically
increased during the year.

Cost of Sales
Cost structure

The overall cost of sales increased by approximately 0.96% from
HK$631.5 million in 2010 to HK$637.6 million in 2011. Since the
operation environment of the industry in the PRC continued to
be tough, such as shortage of labour and RMB appreciation, cost
of sales recorded an increase notwithstanding the decrease in
turnover. The implementation of effective cost control measures
could only setoff part of the increase in production costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHREAD

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for 2011 was HK$149.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 17.1% from HK$180.5 million
for 2010. By the contraction of turnover together with the
boost in production costs, our gross profit decreased under
the extremely challenging environment.

As the Group is now in the progress of relocating the production
base to western China, it is unavoidable to incur additional
costs during the process. This further deteriorated the gross
profit during the year.

Other operating income

Other operating income increased by approximately 51.5%
to HK$26.5 million in 2011 from HK$17.5 million in 2010,
primarily due to the gain on disposals of some available-for-
sale investments during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
5.2% to HK$26.6 million in 2011 from HK$28.1 million in 2010.
When counted as a percentage of the turnover, the total
amount was 3.4% (2010: 3.5%). The slight decrease was due
to the contracted sales volume.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 10.8% to
HK$104.8 million in 2011 from HK$94.5 million in 2010. Apart
from the continuous increase in operation costs in the PRC and
appreciation of RMB, addition management and administrative
costs had been incurred in the process of relocating the
production base to western China.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 July 2011 decreased from
HK$67.3 million to HK$42.6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 36.6%. The net profit margin of our Group
decreased to 5.4% for the year ended 31 July 2011 (2010:
8.3%).
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EREHREAD

DIVIDEND POLICY

Our Directors expect that dividends will be paid as interim
and/or final dividends. We currently intend to pay annual
cash dividends of not less than 30% of our Group’s audited
consolidated profits after taxation to our shareholders for
the applicable year. However, the determination to pay such
dividends will be made at the discretion of our Board and
will be based upon our operating results, cash flows, financial
positions, capital requirements and other relevant circumstances
that the Board deems relevant. The payment of dividends may
be limited by legal restrictions and by agreements that we may
enter into in the future. Our Directors are of the view that our
dividend policy will not affect the sufficiency of our working
capital in the coming years.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND
TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management
and investment of uncommitted funds. The net proceeds from
the international offering (as defined in the Prospectus) were
mainly placed on short-term deposits with authorized financial
institutions in Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group's receipts were mainly denominated
in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and RMB. Payments were
mainly made in US dollars and RMB.

In respect of US dollar, the management regards that the foreign
exchange risk for Hong Kong dollar to US dollar is not material
because: (i) Hong Kong dollar remains pegged to US dollar; and
(ii) most of the Group's purchases are denominated in US dollar,
which will be settled by sales receipts in US dollar.

In respect of RMB, as the Group's production plants are located
in the PRC, most of our labour costs, manufacturing overheads,
selling and administrative expenses are denominated in RMB.
Therefore, the appreciation of RMB will adversely affect the
Group's profitability. The Group will closely monitor foreign
exchange exposure for RMB and consider hedging significant
exposure when necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHREAD

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's source of fund was cash generated from net proceeds
of the international offering and operating activities.

REREBRMBER

AEENE SRR Z QB EENMSRIEA

FENEEEHNRE -

As at As at

31 July 2011 31 July 2010

R=B——F RZZT—ZF

tA=+—-8 +tA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash and cash equivalents RERBLFEY 262,248 333,789
Net cash outflow WML FEE (80,154) (126,982)
Current ratio BN % 5.5 4.9
Quick ratio EE K 4.2 39

With our strong financial background upon listing on the Stock
Exchange, we expect we will have sufficient cash to meet future
capital expenditure requirements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATES

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of any
subsidiaries and associated companies for the year ended
31 July 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R W B DT

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised from the international offering received

by the Company was approximately HK$635 million.

The usage of net proceeds until 31 July 2011 are as follows:
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Planned Utilised
Particular amount amount
ko) SRR EEAR
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEET
Expansion of production facilities BERYBEMEERE
for silicone rubber
based products 468 (262)
Upgrade and expansion of RARET I EERE
upstream production facilities 56 -
Strengthening research and hnsgfftatae
development capabilities 39 (38)
Implementation of resources HITERBREI RS
planning system 22 (M
General working capital —REEES 50 (50)
Total st 635 (351)

The remaining net proceeds have been deposited on short-

term basis in licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong and

the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHREAD

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS,
CONTINGENCIES AND
CHARGES ON ASSETS

Capital commitments contracted by the Group but not yet
provided for in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
July 2011 were approximately HK$19.5 million, which was mainly
related to the expansion of production capacity in Dongguan
and Huzhou in the PRC and the acquisition of land use right in
Indonesia. Such capital commitments will be financed by the
net proceeds from the international offering.

As at 31 July 2011, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities and the Group’s assets were free from any charge.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As the Group is committed to expand our production capacity
and develop high value-added products, such as mobile phone
keypads, experienced workers, engineers and professionals are
the most important assets to the Group. We offer on-the-job
training and encourage staff to attend continuous professional
training in order to update their skills and knowledge.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including quality
staff quarters, trainings, medical, insurance coverage and
retirement benefits, to all employees in Hong Kong and in
the PRC. As at 31 July 2011, the Group has 7,424 permanent
and temporary employees (2010: 9,076). The total salaries and
related costs for the year ended 31 July 2011 amounted to
approximately HK$320.0 million (2010: HK$293.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR HES

The Group adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on
16 May 2007 for the purpose of recognition of employees’
contribution before the Listing. As at 31 July 2011, 6,240,000
share options were still outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, of which 4,410,000 options are held by
employees of the Group. The Company also adopted a Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme on 16 May 2007. During the year,
a total of 5,994,000 were granted to the eligible grantee. As
at 31 July 2011, a total of 13,130,000 share options were still
outstanding under the Post IPO Share Option Scheme of which
4,176,000 share options are held by employees of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
ERERRE

Shareholders
BER

Board of Directors

3

TEERHRE

Company Secretary
AEWE

Audit Executive Nomination
Committee Committee Committee

EREET HITZEES REZEE

External
Auditor

_ TR G

Strives to attain and maintain the highest standards
of Corporate Governance

o Whistleblowing Policy was voluntarily established by the
Company to provide a reporting channel and guidance
on whistleblowing to employees, suppliers and customers
for reporting serious concerns about any malpractice

° Separately prepared the audit committee report and
remuneration committee report on Annual Report

J Continuing professional training to the Directors and
Senior Management was provided by the Company
periodically

Remuneration Compliance
Committee Committee
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted its own code on corporate
governance practices (“the CG Code”) which is not less than
the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “HKEX Code") contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules of Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company is committed to high standard of corporate
governance and has applied all the principles in the HKEX
Code. This report is prepared with reference to the HKEX Code.
Throughout the financial year ended 31 July 2011, the Group
has complied with the provision set out in HKEX Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions, by Director of the Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for directors’
securities transactions (the "Model Code”). All the Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the required standards
set out in the Model Code during the year.

The Company has adopted its "Code of Ethics and Securities
Transaction” to regulate the Directors and employees of
the Group in dealing shares of the Company and provide
guidelines and procedures on handling the conflict of interests
of Directors.
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DEERRE c o
BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Composition of the board of directors BEEEWARK

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company comprises A RFEEE((EEZg ) ANZHITESE W
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three  ZIEHITEER =L B IENTESAK - &
independent non-executive Directors. The function of the FE&MEE A3EEIEERFRAND AIIREAE
Board is to guide the management to ensure the interests of  zZX X E|{REE o

the shareholders of the Company are safeguard.

As at 31 July 2011, the Board comprises the following WRZ-Z——&F+A=+—0 BFESHIUTK
members: B4ARK :

Date of first Date of last

appointment re-election as

Name of Director Position to the Board Director
EEpE B BREZER B —REEE
ESENENHYE EERESWAEH

Huang Sheng-Shun Chairman/Executive Director 23/2/2006 25/11/2010
=5 IR/ HITES 23/2/2006 25/11/2010
Huang Te-Wei* Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 23/2/2006 25/11/2010
iR THREE PITES 23/2/2006 25/11/2010
Lin Hung-Ming Executive Director 14/12/2006 10/12/2008
N HITES 14/12/2006 10/12/2008
Wong Tak Leung Executive Director 23/2/2006 10/12/2008
"HER HITES 23/2/2006 10/12/2008
Wu Ih Chen** Non-Executive Director 23/2/2006 29/12/2009
RE W EHITES 23/2/2006 29/12/2009
Kirk Yang Non-Executive Director 18/4/2008 10/12/2008
1 ER HHITEE 18/4/2008 10/12/2008
Hsieh Yu Independent Non-Executive Director 16/5/2007 25/11/2010
ik BUIFBITES 16/5/2007 25/11/2010
Jou Yow-Jen Independent Non-Executive Director 29/12/2009 N/A
BE#e BIFITES 29/12/2009 TEFA
Yeung Chi Tat Independent Non-Executive Director 16/5/2007 29/12/2009
B BUIFBITES 16/5/2007 29/12/2009

* Mr. Huang Te-Wei be appointed as Chief Executive Officer on ~ * EERLER-_ZS——F_FA—HEZTA
1 February 2011. THAREL -

**  Mr. Wu lh Chen re-designated from Executive Director to Non-  **  REWMIELERPATESHATAIENTES

Executive Director and resigned as Chief Executive Officer, both WEHETH AR AR ——F_F—H
on 1 February 2011. ERY o

—E-—FER AFEEERERAR | 37
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The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time, taking into account the scope and nature of operations
of the Company, to ensure that the size of the Board is adequate
to provide a diversity of views and facilitate effective decision-
making. The Directors come from diverse background with
varied expertise in finance, legal industry and business fields.
The biographical details of all Directors and the relationships
among them are set out in the “Directors’ Profile” on pages
10 to 15 of this annual report and the Company's website.
Save as disclosed in the section of "Directors’ Profile”, none
of the Directors except Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is the father
of Mr. Huang Te-Wei, has any financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships among members of
the Board.

The Board
EEE

33 %

22 %

Non-Executive Directors

FEMITES

Executive Directors

WITES

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate
and strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant
to the business of the Group. All Directors bring a variety of
experience and expertise to the Company.
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AN A At
TEEAWSE

Executive Directors

B

BITEE
Name Position Current Function/Experience
e B BAIRE 58
Huang Sheng-Shun Executive Director & ° development of corporate operation and strategies
mRTE Chairman PERLEERRBNER

HITESERTIRE
Huang Te-Wei Executive Director & o marketing, administration and financial planning
=IER Chief Executive Officer ITIHHERE - TTEEIE R ESHR 2l

HITESRITHAER

o daily operation of the Group and strategic planning
AEEN B RSB KERE
o overseeing the Group's compliance and internal
control matters
EBEAREENARMARNERER
Lin Hung-Ming Executive Director & o research and development
M Research & foe B R
Development Director
HITERRMAER
BERHBEE

Wong Tak Leung Executive Director & o sales and marketing

H5ER Deputy General SHE RITIHIERE
Manager

HITERREIRLE
Non-Executive Directors
FBITEE
Name Position Experience/Skill
HE Bt e R
Wu |h Chen Non-Executive o management, operation, investment, merger and
REW Director and Adviser acquisition

FRITESRER BIE - 28 RENGHE
Kirk Yang Non-Executive Director e corporate finance, investment, merger and acquisition,
e A IHITES public relations and institutional investors relations

TEPE - RE - B AHBRIBBREERE

SR —EEH AHEESRERAT
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUHBITEE
Name Independence’ Experience/Skill
HE B R HiRE
Yeung Chi Tat v o auditing and corporate restructuring
BEE Bt hbxEE
Hsieh Yu v o legal and compliance
A FERERAR
Jou Yow-Jen v o Statistics, econometrics, financial time series,
A analysis and financial information analysis
geat » FTEKE - MBREFIIDT KT BER ST
Note 1: all independent non-executive directors are free fromany  f/z#7 : FTERMIERITESHMES RERAIERE

business and relationships that could materially interference
with the exercise of their independent judgement.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the Chairman, Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, and the Chief
Executive Officer (the "CEO"), Mr. Huang Te-Wei, the son of
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, are segregated in order to ensure a
clear distinction between the responsibilities of the Chairman
and the CEO.

There are clear demarcations of responsibility and authority
between the Chairman and the CEO which ensure an appropriate
balance of power, increased accountability and greater capacity
of the Board for independent decision-making.

The Chairman focuses on the Group's business and strategic
matters to ensure the Board is operated effectively. In addition,
the Chairman will lead the Board to establish good corporate
governance practices and procedures for the Group.

During the year, the Chairman led the Board and ensured that
all Directors were properly briefed on issues to be discussed
at board meetings. The Chairman also ensured all directors
received adequate and timely information, which were complete
and reliable.

The CEO is responsible for the strategic planning, administration
and financial operation and to ensure the approved Group's
strategies are effectively implemented to achieve the goals of
the Group and to oversee the Group's compliance and internal
control matters.
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Functions of the Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and affairs with the goal of
maximizing long-term shareholder’s value, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests. The Board has the following
main duties:

. determine all the corporate matters;

. be responsible for the management, direction and
supervision of the businesses of the Group; and

° be responsible to ensure the effectiveness on Group's
financial reporting and compliance.

The Board has matters reserved for its decisions and these
include:

° the Group's long-term strategy and business plan;

° major capital projects, acquisitions or divestments;

o funding decision of the Group;

° internal control, risk management and compliance; and

° annual and interim financial results and shareholder

communications.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
managementofthe Group's businessesto the executive Directors,
senior management and certain specific responsibilities to the
Board committees.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances. While allowing management
substantial autonomy to run and develop the business, the
Board plays a key role in structuring and monitoring the
reporting systems and internal controls. The composition,
functions of each Board committee and their major role and
function are described below. The final decision still rests with
the Board unless otherwise provide for in the terms of reference
of relevant committees.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range
of skills and business experience to the Group. They also bring
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance
and risk through their contribution to the Board meetings and
to the Board's committee meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there
are three independent non-executive Directors, representing
one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive Directors, one of them have appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors the written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers, Mr.
Hsieh Yu, Professor Jou Yow-Jen and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat to be
independent.

The independence of each Director is reviewed annually
by the Nomination Committee based on the definition of
independence defined in the HKEx Code. The Nomination
Committee is satisfied as to the independence of Mr. Hsieh
Yu, Professor Jou Yow-Jen and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, all of whom
do not have any relationship perceived to interfere with the
exercise of their independent business judgment with a view
to the best interest of the Company.

Directors’ appointment, re-election and removal

Each of the executive Directors has renewed his own service
contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 16 May 2010 and subject to a termination
by giving not less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Wu |h Chen was appointed as an executive Director in
2006. His service contract has been renewed on 16 May 2010
and terminated on 1 February 2011. The Company then issued
a formal appointment letter to Mr. Wu for appointing him as a
non-executive Director of the Company for a period of three
years commencing from 1 February 2011 and subject to a
termination by giving not less than one month’s prior written
notice.
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Mr. Kirk Yang has entered into a formal appointment letter with
the Company for appointing him as a non-executive Director
of the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1
February 2009, subject to a termination by either party giving
not less than one month’s prior written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors except
Professor Jou Yow-Jen has entered into a formal appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 16 June 2008, subject to a termination by either party
giving not less than one month'’s prior written notice.

Professor Jou Yow-Jen has entered a formal appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
29 December 2009, subject to a termination by either party
giving not less than one month'’s prior written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
all Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Board meetings and board practices

The Board has scheduled to meet at least four times a year
on regular basis (“Regular Board Meeting”), and the Board will
also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required ("Ad hoc Board Meeting”). The
meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All Directors
participate in discussing the strategy, operational and financial
performance and internal control of the Group.
The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the
meeting and each Director may request to include any matters
in the agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for
the regular meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda
items have comprehensive briefing papers, which are circulated
at least 3 days before each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.
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All Directors may access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. The Company Secretary
is also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are observed and providing the Board opinions on
matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of
the Board meetings.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company
will not dealt with the matter by way of written resolution or
by a Board committee (except if that Board committee was
specifically established for such purpose). The independent
non-executive Director with no material interest in the matter
will attend the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered
appropriate. Other than the exceptional allowed under the
Listing Rules, any Director who or whose associates have any
material interest in any proposed Board resolutions will not be
counted as a quorum in the relevant Board meeting or no vote
for the Board resolutions.

All the Board committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.

The following table shows the number and the attendance
records of the regular Board meetings held during the year:

PIABESRBSARMENZZLRYE - A7
WERREANEEFRATHRNESSRNE
MEFR - ARAMEBETAREREFTEEHKE
AT - i?ﬁﬁfﬁk?%%ﬁé\S%%zFE’J%ﬁ
AEREREER

ﬁi?&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%’*ﬂ%?%%ﬁ@%lﬁqﬂ
FEMNGEER  ARANGEBEERERK
i<‘<ﬁﬂﬁ$§/\a(%ﬂlJﬁ&t§E’Jﬁﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ’]i?
ZEEBRINEBEZFH  WRREE R
FRPEEAN =@ E’JﬁJ_intﬂﬁEé%H#ﬁf“E
BEZEENEH - R ETRREFFHHIIME
Sh - EFFRREMERNESSERART T?Eﬁ{ﬂﬂ
BEANGZNEMEEREBEA - HFEFA
FREZSSRANETEARA T EHER
ERORARKERE -

PIEESEZ B EHRM
HRFRIRIER o

EEEERTHERAN

TRETRFAEHEHNESE SR
hFE e

MEE &

No. of board meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

HERE BBRE
Regular Ad hoc
EHER HRlER
Executive Directors HITEE
Huang Sheng-Shun m 4/4 3/3
Huang Te-Wei B 4/4 3/3
Lin Hung-Ming MR 3/4 3/3
Wong Tak Leung BER 3/4 1/3
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Wu lh Chen REW 4/4 2/3
Kirk Yang THEA 4/4 1/3
Independent Non-executive Directors  BUHLHITEE
Hsieh Yu FiE 4/4 3/3
Jou Yow-Jen A 2/4 3/3
Yeung Chi Tat tHEE 4/4 3/3
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Access to information

To allow the Board to make proper decision, the management
will provide the Board with timely, appropriate and sufficient
information through financial reports, business and operational
reports and budget statements to keep them informed the
latest development of the Company.

The Directors are also provided with names and contact details
of the Company’s senior management and the Company to
facilitate directors access to senior management and the
Company Secretary.

Continuing professional development

The Directors are provided with continuing training in areas such
as corporate governance, financial reporting, PRC tax updating,
changes in Listing Rules so as to update and refresh them on
matters that affect or may enhance their performance.

Any Director may request the Company to provide independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company to discharge
his/her duties to the Company.

Introduction tailored kit will be given to newly appointed
Director to his/her individual needs. This includes meetings
with senior management to enable them to have better
understanding of the Group’s business and strategy and the
key risks and issues.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and the senior management of
the Company for the year 2011/2012. The insurance covers
them against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred
arising out of the corporate activities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board

has delegated specific functions to five Board Committees. The
principal committees of the Board are the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Compliance

Committee and Executive Committee. The terms of reference
for these committees adopted by the Board are published on
the Group's website (www.tayang.com). The details of which

are as follows:

EEZE8
EREEgMNAEEFEZEGRRIETHRE - Ui
DEEEWNTRSE - TENEFEEGREZ
ZEg FHEES  EE%Z5% 6HREE
ERNNTEER - EFZERILZESRANE
12 0 [ B PA AN S B A (www. tayang.com) * 5
BEHAT -

Committee membership

ZEEHRE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Compliance Executive
Name Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
®E EVERES REZES gHWzEe EHRZER BTZEg
Huang Sheng-Shun Bl v/
Huang Te-Wei HEH v v
Wu h Chen REH v v
(resigned on RoFE——F
1 Feb 2011) ZHA—HEF)
Lin Hung-Ming MR /
(appointed on (R_F—%
1 Feb 2011) ZA—HEZ()
Hsieh Yu Bl v/ / /
Jou Yow-Jen 5k v / v/
Yeung Chi Tat BoE v/ v v v
Chan Oi Fat RE % v/ /
Wu Pei Min ESliiy v/
(resigned on (R_F—%
1 Jan 2011) —H—AFHT)
Li Yung-Ming FK 4
(appointed on (R=F——%
1 Jan 2011) —H—HEZA)
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Audit Committee

Composition

The Audit Committee was established on 16 May 2007 and
comprises three members, all are independent non-executive
Directors, with financial, legal and professional experience and
skills to understand financial, governance, internal controls and
risk management of the Company. It is chaired by Mr. Yeung Chi
Tat with Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor Jou Yow-Jen as members.
During the year, the role of the members remains unchanged.
The external auditors and the financial controller also attended
meetings by invitation.

The Audit Committee met two times during the year, the
attendance of the committee members are shown as the
following table:

Anniversary
aF

BRERES
R
ERZEEN-_TELERATABRY - @

ZERKEBHEK RO RBIYIFRITES
SEPE  ERRBEETEHEB KRNI
A EEARBNTE - B - RBEPEERER
EEERH BERZEBEQABTERELE
B MREERAYPEHIER/EE - FA » K
BRBE RIS TE o SNISAZBIAN o B 75 48 BE TR
EELFE -

BERZEERNFRARAMAEE  TRETZ
&

ES
BB ML

No. of meetings attended/

Name No. of meetings held
®H R, EBRE
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) BEEERE) 2/2
Hsieh Yu EiE 2/2
Jou Yow-Jen B 2/2
The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include the following: ZEBZZE@NBREBEMT

o the integrity of financial reports;

o the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk
management system; and

o the independence of the external auditors.

Further details on the work of the Audit Committee for the year
2010/2011 could be found under “Audit Committee Report”.

o EHYBRENTEML

s ERASEMNANEEMEREERS
AR &

o EEINERBEIRBILIML -

BEREEEN T %E/:%——Eiﬁ
EME— BRI BEREEERE | —
Fkﬂ o

—E——FEEH KFEEEERERAF | 47
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Remuneration Committee
Composition

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Yeung
Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor Jou Yow-Jen,
of whom are all independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee met three times during the year,
the attendance of the committee members are shown as the
following table:

FMEES

HE R

FINZEeRBERGEELRLE(ER) WMk
ERANLHE - 2RO RBILIFRITES ©
FHZEERNFRAR-REE  TRETZ
BaXBMHFERLE

No. of meetings attended/

Name No. of meetings held
A HERE ERRE
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) BEE(ERE) 3/3
Hsieh Yu EAIEA 3/3
Jou Yow-Jen Ahe 3/3
The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include FHMEZESMEERENT :

the following:

D determine on behalf of Board, the Group’s remuneration e ﬁi‘%% SETHEBARANRITEER

policy for the executive directors and the senior
management team of the Company;

o consider and advise on the terms of any contract to be
offered to a director; and

] monitor the remuneration package of the Executive
Director and senior management team and make

recommendation.

Further information of the Remuneration Committee’s activities
is contained in “Remuneration Committee Report”.
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Nomination Committee
Composition
The Nomination committee comprises three members, all are

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi
Tat (Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor JouYow-Jen.

The key objective of the Nomination Committee is to ensure the
Board comprises individuals with requisite skills and experience,
to ensure that it is effective in discharging its responsibilities.

The Nomination Committee met one time during the year,
the attendance of the committee members are shown as the
following table:

Anniversary

B

RERES

kg
REZEEH-AMEBEN 2B ABIHE
WITEF  BTEEE(ER)  BUELER
RHLHE -

REZBENETERBIERESSHERM
Frae RAEBHER A LER  UWERREES
AAMMITRE -

REZEENFAEFA—REE  TRETZ
BEREMHELE

No. of meetings attended/

Name No. of meetings held
®A HERE, SRR H
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) GEE(ERE) 1/1
Hsieh Yu A 1/1
Jou Yow-Jen B 1/1

The criteria for appointment of a new director are set out
herein below:

° the independence in case of an independent non-
executive Director;

° possess core competencies that meet the needs of the
Company; and

° be able to commit time and carry out duties and
responsibilities.

During the year, no new director has been appointed by the
Company.

The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes
recommendation of the appointment of new director to the
Board as follows:

o evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
on the board and determine the role and desirable
competencies for a particular appointment in consultation
with the management; and

o conduct an interview with the potential candidate to
assess suitability and to ensure that the candidates are
aware of the expectations and the level of commitment
required.

R ESFREQESIT ¢

o BYMEURMABIIFNTES):

s BWAARFMTHRORKE K&

o  BREIMRMEHETRELBE -

RER > ARRREZTHES -

REZBESIRNEAEFERANES 1B
PR

e FEREFENRRE  MAEALKLRETE
EEBE WHEAAEEBRETE XN
ERENBEMAFREN &

e HEREASEUNHHEEAEE I
BRIFEANTERAERATRAR
J_g_ o

SR —EEH AHEESRERAT
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Process for the appointment of New Director

Evaluation Interview

B s

o skills o FREE e assess suitability
* knowledge o A o LA ERERE
® experience o KKEG ® assess competence

e independence o B/t BEEY]

(if applicable) (4@ FA)

Nomination committee activities during the year

Significant matters discussed by the Nomination Committee
are summarized as follows:

o To review the experience and background of Mr. Wu |h
Chen and resolved the re-designation of Mr. Wu as a
Non-executive Director and adviser of the Company be
presented to the Board for approval;

o To review the experience and background of Mr. Huang
Te-Wei and resolved the nomination of Mr. Huang as
new Chief Executive Officer of the Company, following
the resignation of Mr. Wu, be presented to the Board for
approved,;

° To consider the re-election of the retiring directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting having regard to his
contribution and performance;

o To review and determine independency of an independent
non-executive director during the reviewing period;

and

° To assess the effectiveness of the Board.
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Compliance Committee
Composition
The Compliance Committee currently comprises Mr. Yeung

Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Huang Te-Wei, Mr. Lin Hung-Ming and
Mr. Chan Qi Fat.

The overall responsibility of the Committee is to ensure that the
Group complies with all the relevantrules, laws and regulation as
set in different jurisdiction and Listing Rules of Hong Kong.

Compliance Committee activities during the year

The Compliance Committee met four times during the year. The
major activities undertaken by the Committee were to oversee
the financial, legal, statutory and listing rules requirement,
internal control and corporate governance practices of the
Group.

The Compliance Committee reported their discussion and
recommendation to the Board periodically.

Executive Committee

Composition

The Executive Committee comprises four members, by whom
two are executive Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Huang Sheng-

Shun with Mr. Huang Te-Wei, Mr. Chan Oi Fat and Mr. Li Yung-
Ming (appointed on 1 February 2011) as members.

The Executive Committee was established on 3 September
2007 and is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s businesses, the overall financial performance of
the Group in fulfillment of strategy, plans and budgets and
the Group capital expenditures as defined in the terms of
reference.

The Committee reports on these topics on its own conclusions
and recommendation to the Board.

Anniversary

B

BREES

R

AREBEANMIBSERE(ER) - BER
Stk - MRS R B AR -

ERZEENBERAEERAREETHN
TRFRVEEERLEE EMARUNMBEEER
A ERIOEM o

EHREEEFANEE
ERRZEERNFRARNARER -SMEEE
ETHNERARD/EEVE AR AEEK
K ERAIER - UARAREENARBEIE R
KERER -

o>
i
W
]
8
s
&
If

EEQEREL T m o

R

HNITZESHUEREHEK - HPME /T
BEXx-yTZBEemEBattErER &R
Bt REBERERFKHBRE(R_FT—
— - HEZE)REE -

HITZEER _ETLFNAA=ZBNIL BE
AEBMAENRBEE  BEANSENERY
BRI A m R L RES ~ s8I RBE UL AEE
MEAFX IS @ FHERRBESE AL -

0

ZEEeMN LHENESSERL Am RIZH
et

S

—e——FEH AHEESRERAT

51



52

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PREAME

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ acknowledgement

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 July 2011. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities
for preparing the accounts and presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment for the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited ("SHINEWING")
acknowledged their reporting responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2011.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, SHINEWING was appointed as the Group's
auditors until the conclusion of next annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 July 2011, the remuneration paid/
payable to SHINEWING in respect of their audit and other
advisory services were as follows:

LR Ty

E S RAABEN R AR
EREEEREFRCEALAABE T~
—FEA=t—BILFENEAMERE - &
FEARRSEEERERARBADANEK
HoRARARRLSHE  EHR2E DT
fif - BEL B AL AR R BEEE
BN BRREEROEHLERATS ROER
THBEE -

EXFR(EB)SEEHBAERAF([1EXK
RN AREEBBEEZE —T—F A=+
—HLEFEREPEREROZEARER A
WEME -

1% S Bl 357

FA - EXRPNEZERAEENZEN &
ET—ERRBFAGHERAL -

RBE-E——ELA=+—BILEE  #E
SREAEMRBE N, B kR A H
mT

2011

=F——F

HK$'000

THERT

Audit services FEaiT IR 960
Other advisory services E At B8 R AR 75 350
Total mst 1,310
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems. The internal control systems are
designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks
to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and
ensuring the reliability of financial information used for business
and publication. Qualified management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Company has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited (“SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct an annual review of
the effectiveness of the Company’s material effectiveness of
the Company’s material internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management.
Audits were carried out on all significant business units of the
Group. The internal control report is submitted and reviewed
by the Audit Committee. In addition, internal audit’'s summary
of findings and recommendation are discussed at the Audit
Committee meeting with a view to improve the Group’s
operations.

Anniversary
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During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control and risk management
procedures and was satisfied that the Company’s internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, control
department is established to provide day-to-day management
of the compliance and control of the Group in order to eliminate
risks of failure of operational systems and the achievement of
the Company'’s objectives. The control department is currently
headed by Mr. Huang Te-Wei, the Executive Director and CEO
of the Company, and it reports directly to the Board.

Control department will conduct meeting regularly and work
closely with SHINEWING Risk to monitor the internal control
systems within the Group in order to provide reasonable
assurance as to the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
integrity and reliability of financial information and to safeguard
and maintain accountability of its assets. Additionally, the
various divisions’ head of the Company met with the head of
Control Department each month to ensure a sound internal
control system is in place and maintained. To enhance the
knowledge of relevant staffs of the Group, training will be
provided to them in the matter of relevant rules and applicable
laws as when appropriate.

Based on the internal control report, the Board is of the view
that the internal controls of the Group are adequate and
complied with the code provision on internal control as set
out in the Listing Rules.
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Risk Management [ B B

The Group manages risk under an overall strategy determined AEEREEETSETHNERRBERRR -
by the Board. The framework of the risk management comprises  EREREEH T EEZL AKX ¢
of the following key elements:

e identify and assess of all the risks; o WRWAHEAAERRE
o formulate the risk management strategies; e  HIERBREIERA
o design and implement of risk management and plan; o R UWEMmELEIEKLFTE

o monitor and report the risk management performance; and o  ESRESREMREIERIR 0 &

e continuous improvement of risk management and e FE N E R R B IR MORR BB &Y FE S 5T
mitigation action plans. 2l o

PROCESS

C ACCOUNTABILITIES
BE

BE

risk identification, risk assessment risks are identified, assessed and all senior management are responsible
control assessment responded by responsible person for ”ik meillageentz o
BBRRER - BB - HEEALTER G RESER FARREREARRRER

RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK
Rl EELEE

MONITORING AND
REPORTING DEVELOPMENT
BE EERER

reporting covers the impact, effectiveness the senior management monitors the risk annual assurance is provided regarding
of control measures to deal with the risk r?rgg\sn?oﬁl?d supports and develops the the extent for compliance with risk

P R 2= S T R IR R e R * s e management

S AL ST Rl 4 P BOETELLARER LEREERH il vl A
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The major risk factors assessed by the Group are listed as AEEFENEERBEZRZIOT :
follows:

Risk Factors Mitigation
S FE &
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Risk Factors Mitigation
4SS FE ¥t
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Risk Factors Mitigation
S FE &

Please refer to the Audit Committee Report for the committee’s HrEZg8eR T —TF —T— —FHE
activities in 2010/2011. & BRUBREEeRE -
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Corporate social responsibility
Environmental protection & safety measures

To support the good environment support, the Group continues
to pursue a proactive policy in environmental protection
and have implemented a series of environmental protection
practices, details of which are as follows:

° Dongguan Ta Yang factory and Huzhou factory obtained
ISO 4001 certification;

o Install a discharge and sedimentation tank in our plants to
treat domestic sewage before discharging to the sewage
drains in the neighbourhood;

o Install noise-barriers in our electricity general rooms and
in the plants with air compression equipment respectively;
and

o install ventilating ducts to collect exhausted gases

generated during production processes before emitting
to the atmosphere.

In addition, the Group emphasizes on safe production measures.
These measures includes safely tips which sets out certain
guidelines on occupational safety such as safely production
measures and procedures for handling emergency. In order
to promote the safety awareness, the Group also organizes
induction training and occupational safety training for our staff.
The Group has regularly checked the equipment to ensure the
staff is working at safety place.

Anniversary
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Green policies

We implement paper recycling policy for papers in Hong Kong
and the PRC offices. Staffs are also encouraged to practice energy
saving habits, such as setting their computers to sleep mode when
notin use, controlling the temperature of air conditions and using
internal communication in the form of electronic direct mail.

During the year, the Group successfully achieved in reducing
the usage of energy, water and paper.

Employment and social affairs

The Group enhances our cohesiveness by providing annual
bonus and arranging gathering in Chinese Lunar Year. Besides,
the Group organizes sports competitions, such as basketball
and Tug-of-war sports competitions, arts competitions, such as
singing contests and writing competitions, on an ad hoc basis
to promote mutual cooperation and understanding among
the staff. There are also corporate orientation programmes to
enable the mainland staff to better understand the Group’s
culture.

Learning and development

The Group carries out various training programmes through
planning and budgeting for the development and cultivation
of manpower. These programmes, such as in-house educational
training, external open courses, team development training
and CD-training programmes, provide staff from all levels to
learn through training, including new staff training, professional
technical skill training and management training, which helps to
enhance their own ability as well as the strength of our team.

In addition, the Group also encourages the staff to share
working knowledge and experience through various channels
like e-mail, reading groups and seminars/sharing functions
so as to create a learning environment and to enhance the
effectiveness of learning.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of
the Company and investors. The Board also recognizes that
effective communication with investors is the key to establish
investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining high degree of transparency
to ensure the investors and the shareholders are receiving
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group via the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
press announcements, and also the Company’'s website at
www.tayang.com.

The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed the
Group's strategy, operations, management and plans.

The Company’s website is also a source of information for
its shareholders and prospective shareholders. All materials
on annual reports, interim reports and announcements are
available on our website immediately following confirmation
of their release. The contact details of the Investor Relations
are also available on the Company’s website which allows
shareholders to contact the Company easily.

The Directors and the committee members are available to
answer the questions through the annual general meeting.
External auditors are also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions
are proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate

issue.
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Our investor relations activities include:
o face to face meeting with analysts and fund managers;
o teleconferences with analysts and fund managers;

o financial results briefings with analysts and the media to
coincide with the press release;

. update of the Company'’s website regularly;

] broadcasting relevant information to investors through
the Group's mailing lists;

J holding annual general meetings with shareholders; and

] providing disclosed information on a time basis via the
Company and Stock Exchange's website.

Regular Meeting with
Analysts and Media

SRR R SRER AT
EHEE

AEBNREERRIB B -
o  HEAWMEMESKREEHHEESE -
o HEAMMMESKBIEEFEGH

o HOMEMMEBIET K EREMER
B M TS B R R — B0

i

o EHIEMARRMEL

- BERAREBTAERRAEHGEH
A
. EREBORTEEAE R

. EBEBALTRERANEHRRE
WEER -

Shareholders Meeting
RERE=H

INVESTOR
RELATIONS
ACTIVITIES

Teleconference

EFEE

REEBRED

Company's
Website

DRI

Publish Financial
Reports, Announcement

and Press Release
FIBHHERE - DF
REERE
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Shareholders’ right

The Annual General Meeting of the Company (the "AGM")
provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, the management and the external
auditors.

At 2010 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of
final dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment
of auditors, the authorization to grant the general mandate
to issue and repurchase of shares were proposed and all the
resolutions were conducted by poll and approved by the
shareholders. The results of the voting by poll were declared
at the meeting and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively.

Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to
the Board of the Company by sending their written request to
the Company’s correspondence address in Hong Kong or the
Company’s email address.

Significant changes in articles of association

During the year, there is no significant change to the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Shareholdings information
As at 31 July 2011

HK$2,000,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised Capital

HK$77,854,100 divided into up capital
778,541,000 shares of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully-paid
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The following table summarized the existing shareholding
structure of the Company as at 31 July 2011:

TREFAATR -T——FLA=+—BH
FEAR 2R -

% of issued

capital of the

Category No. of Shares Company

Al BHEE HARAF

ERITRA

HEDL

Controlling shareholders & Directors R R N E R 439,629,000 56.47%

Strategic Investors' RSB E 24,180,000 3.11%

Public & connected persons? UNSYSL LY N 314,732,000 40.42%

Total et 778,541,000 100%
Notes: BieE -

1. Strategic investors represent Mitsubishi and Shin-Etsu, which 1. FHILEEIEDANIEFAFE12,180,0008% &

held 12,180,000 shares and 12,000,000 shares respectively.

2. 66,635,000 shares out of 314,732,000 shares are held by certain
connected persons of the Group.

3. The issued capital of the Company as at 31 July 2011 is 778,541,000
shares.

BEST CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DISCLOSURE AWARD

In 2010, the Company was granted the Best Corporate
Governance Disclosure Platinum Award in Non-Hang Index
(middle to small market capitalization) category organized by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

We constantly review and strengthen our corporate governance

practices to align ourselves with the international best corporate
practices standard.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

FNEESHRE

This report provides the details of work undertaken by the

Remuneration Committee (the “RC” or the “Committee”)

during the year.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year, the directors who served on the RC were Mr.
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor Jou Yow-
Jen. All of them are independent non-executive directors.

Members of the RC have no personal interest in the Committee’s
decisions and they have no conlflict of interest arising from cross
directorship.

ACTIVITIES OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year, the RC met three times and the major business
of those meetings included the following activities:

o conducting the annual review of annual bonus for
all executive directors and making appropriate
recommendation to the Board;

° consider and determine the list of proposed share option
grantees (including all Directors of the Company) and
making appropriate recommendation to the Board; and

o consider and review the renewal of appointment letters
of two Independent Non-Executive Directors and making
appropriate recommendation to the Board.

/
o‘ BE

rHERFEERTFMHEZES((FMEES K
[ZEG )FRMMETIIEHFS -

FMEESEME

FRALEIFMEZEGNENEZTRBTELE

(XF) - SREERBADPLHE - 2RO RE
VIFITESE -

@H%E\ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’\é/\ 2 )RR AE AT
CAMEREREEEMELEEAMNSE

FMESEEH

FR - FHEESAR=ZREH
AR NEEEENATRIE :

megL+rE
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i YRAEFESFEHEEES

.« HEREERRBREREASE@E
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration for the executive directors comprises basic
salary, bonus, share options and pensions.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration
Committee takes into account performance of the individual,
contribution, responsibilities, and reference to comparable
listed companies in Hong Kong.

The remuneration of independent non-executive director is
reviewed annually with reference to the salary research survey,
comparable companies and market condition.

Apart from basic salary, executive directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and
individual's performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate talented eligible staff,
including the Directors, the Company has adopted a Share
Option Scheme. The scheme enables the eligible persons to
obtain an ownership interest in the Company and thus will
motivate them to optimize their continuing contributions to
the Group.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of
executive directors and senior management.

B B

%ﬂf?%%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ@ﬂ
BIRE -

RERHE - LA - BAE

FINZE e FLHeRER - @ZBERA
iEl’\JI?Ei’%fﬁ BRINBE  Ye2EAEL
BEOEFELTARA -

BAFRITEENFHM 2 EHSHRTAS
A BB AR LSRR ESFRET -

BREAFEIN  WITEFTREEHSERER
BYISIEAL - EZBREM SN - FREERE
ARBREREME °

AABCIRNBERT B ARS! - 858 KA
BETREMEERAB(RRES) - Ex;ﬁrilﬁﬁ{%

REBATAEBSARRHAEER
BREEERAEEBRME

TRIARTESFLSRERBFME 2T
=

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
1] EN:Y B3] R
Basic Salary To reflect the market value e Cash payment * Reviewed annually
EXFH < of each individual WK SEE|
REMERATHTSEE e Monthly e Compare against
B H selected comparable
companies
B F )R] A LA A
310
e Market trend
Mi5i8[R
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Remuneration

A
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ZEEWE

Purpose

B &

Reward

E3)

Anniversary

~
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Policy details
BURF 1B

Discretionary Bonus

To motivate employees to

e Cash Payment

e Individual performance

BB FEAL deliver the high levels of AN EARR
performance of the e Annual e Market condition
Company and individual B ik W)
performance goals e The Group
SRR B ENSKTHAF performance relative
MEAKREBIZ to corporate targets
AEBERHNEERR
HRIR
Share Option To motivate the participants e Share Option e Eligible participants are
=i HEN2EE BB awarded in accordance
To attract and retain with the Share Option
the employees Scheme
el Mt EREE BERZRERBELE
FTEIES 2 2R
Pension To provide appropriate and e Cash contribution e MPF scheme
BRE competitive post We BB E
retirement benefits e  Monthly
RHEE REBRF N &A
RIKIZAEF)

2011 Executive Director Pay Mix

— == %t S — = = i AN
“E-—FHTEEHWES
0.96 %
11.42 % 57.22 %
30.40 %
. Salary, Allowances & other Bonus Share Options Retirement Scheme Contribution (“MPF")
benefits 1AL AL e R BIHR([8ER])

Fre o R REMER

SE-—FER AFEEZRERAR | 67
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HME B

The following table shows the breakdown of directors’
remuneration (in percentage terms) for the year ended

TREVIRBE-_T—FtA=+—HIF
FEEMENRAABDLRTR):

31 July 2011:
Salary,
Allowances Retirement
& other Scheme Share-based
English Name Fees benefits Bonus Contributions  payments Total
He 28
g2 P we  REMEN A BIGTEME  BREGR CHI
% % % % % %
Huang Sheng-Shun EER - 47.39% 43.44% 0.47% 8.70% 100%
Huang Te-Wei EER - 55.08% 31.74% 1.88% 11.30% 100%
Lin Hung-Ming WEH - 56.54% 32.71% 0.87% 9.88% 100%
Wong Tak Leung BER - 62.92% 22.72% 1.05% 13.31% 100%
Wu Ih Chen REH 7.15% 70.78% 4.67% 0.95% 16.45% 100%
Kirk Yang R 93.50% - - - 6.50% 100%
Hsieh Yu #in 85.82% - - - 14.18% 100%
Jou Yow-Jen BAgy 89.84% - - - 10.16% 100%
Yeung Chi Tat hEE 90.08% - - - 9.92% 100%

Details of the amount of Directors’ remuneration during the year
ended 31 July 2011 are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements and details of the Share Option Scheme
and grant of options by the Company during the year are set REZ@WHE RGE P IEHRERMIFEIS »

out in Report of the Directors and Note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)

Hsieh Yu
Jou Yow-Jen

Hong Kong, 28 October 2011
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
BERREGHRE

This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee
(the "AC") and the work it has undertaken by them during
the year. The main role of the AC mainly assist the Board in
discharging its responsibilities for the integrity of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, the assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control and review the independence
of the external auditors.

The members of the AC during the year were:

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)
Mr. Hsieh Yu
Professor Jou Yow-Jen

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee met two times during the year. Members'
attendance at the meetings held during the year is set out
on page 47. The financial controller and the external auditors
attended the meeting by invitation.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR WORKS DONE
DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the major works done by the AC were
summarized as follows:

o reviewed with the management and the external auditors
on the interim results and annual results and related
announcement including the related disclosures, integrity
of financial reporting and the accounting policies adopted
by the Group prior to the submission to the Board’s
approval;

o discussed with management on significant judgments
affecting Group's consolidated financial statements;

o considered and pre-approved the re-appointment of
auditors and their audit fee accordingly;

° reviewed and discussed the internal control report
including the status of implementing recommendations
on previous report;

//’
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E =]

o reviewed, assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management; and

o reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s

independence and objectivity and the effectiveness

during the audit process.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The AC has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the financial
reporting matters including a review of the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2011.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the AC engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited (the "SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct the internal control
review of the Group’s operation and made recommendation to
Board accordingly. Based on the report issued by SHINEWING
Risk, the AC considered that the key areas of the Company’s
internal control systems are reasonably implemented and the
Company has compiled with the requirements of the CG code
as set out in the Listing Rules in respect of internal control.
There were no matters concerns to be brought to the attention
to the Board.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The AC reviewed the independence of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited and recommended their re-appointment as auditors of
the Group for the financial year 2011/2012 in the forthcoming
AGM.

Members of Audit Committee
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)
Hsieh Yu

Jou Yow-Jen

Hong Kong, 28 October 2011
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are design and manufacture of silicone rubber input devices
which are mainly used in 4Cs: (i) Consumer (consumer electronic
devices), (ii) Computers (keypads for computers and notebooks)
(i) Communications (mobile phone handsets) and (iv) Cars
(automotive peripheral products). Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements. The nature of the principal activities of the Group
has not changed during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2011 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 102.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK6 cents per ordinary share, totally HK$46.7 million. The final
dividend is expected to be paid to those shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
14 December 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$28,342,000
on additions to property, plant and equipment mainly for the
expansion and enhancement of its production capability.

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 216.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 July 2011, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution amounted to HK$644,774,000. Movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year and
the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 July 2011
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 53.6% of the total revenue of the Group
and the largest customer accounted for about 19.7% of the
total revenue.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted
for approximately 7.8% and 24.6% of the Group's total purchase
for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Te-Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Hung-Ming

Mr. Wong Tak Leung

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu |h Chen
Mr. Kirk Yang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hsieh Yu
Professor Jou Yow-Jen
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lin Hung-Ming, Mr. Wong Tak Leung and Mr. Kirk Yang
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence to Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rule”) and as at
the date of this report still considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 July 2011, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, and decided
by the Board, as authorized by shareholders in the annual
general meeting, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance, experience, responsibility,
workload and comparable market securities. No Director is
involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme
and a Post-IPO share option scheme as an incentive to the
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out under the heading ”“Share Option Schemes”.

Details of the remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management of the Group are set out in Remuneration
Committee Report under the heading
Policy”.

"Remuneration

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year under review are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

Directors’ Interests

As at 31 July 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO") as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares in

the Company

(a)

Number of shares/underlying
shares held in the Company

RARTRG REBRONEE
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Anniversary
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RELFBEHRE, BERGEA
Approximate
percentage of
Equity issued share
Capacity in which Interests in derivatives capital of
Name of Director interests are held shares (Share Options)  Total interests  the Company® Notes
BEEpg BEERN RipER N ERAH oy NG [ fizE
5% fI£TA BITRARH
(BRE) BABALLS
Huang Sheng-Shun Settlor of 413,940,000/ - 423,070,000 54.34% 1&2
BhR Sunshiny Trust/
Sunshiny Trust Z5EA/ 152
Beneficial Owner 7,874,000 1,256,000
EEAEA
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of 413,940,000/ - 415,270,000 53.34% Tt03
E1EE Sunshiny Trust/
Sunshiny Trust & A,/ 123
Beneficial Owner 540,000 790,000
EEAEA
Lin Hung-Ming Beneficial Owner 9,640,000 1,180,000 10,820,000 1.39%
R EEBEA
Wong Tak Leung Beneficial Owner 5,760,000 1,135,000 6,895,000 0.88%
BER ERBEA
Wu Ih Chen Beneficial Owner 1,875,000 1,160,000 3,035,000 0.38%
REH ERBEA
Kirk Yang Beneficial Owner - 100,000 100,000 0.013%
B 3
Hsieh Yu Beneficial Owner - 146,000 146,000 0.019%
LA ERBEA
Jou Yow-Jen Beneficial Owner - 46,000 46,000 0.006%
By ERBEA
Yeung Chi Tat Beneficial Owner - 146,000 146,000 0.019%
hEE EEBEA
—E-—FFH KFEEZERERAR | 75
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Notes:

Sunshiny Trust is a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Huang
Sheng-Shun is the settlor, Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited (the "Hang Seng Bank Trustee”) is
the trustee and family members of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun
(including Mr. Huang Te-Wei) are beneficiaries.

The 413,940,000 shares, representing approximately
53.17% shareholding of the Company, are directly held
by the following seven British Virgin Islands companies
("7 BVI Companies”) in aggregate as follows:

Name of the 7 BVI Companies

Hit

No. of Shares held

Sunshiny Trust® 2 (55T © |BR T
ERETAN - BERITEIEBEERA
A([MEERITER D RETA - MEk
HAENRGEKE (BREREEL)R

YN

$2413,940,0000% % 7 - BD A& & & 49
53.17%MBEHE » BIA T EREBE L
HEAR([EREBREZESARDA
FTEERA  FBOT

Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital
of the Company

tREBRELZBEELRAEE BERGOEE HEATERIT

BT S
Ace Chain Investments Corporation (“Ace Chain”) 149,100,000 19.15%
China Gain Holdings Limited (“China Gain") 103,560,000 13.30%
Highwise Investment Group Corporation (“Highwise") 57,600,000 7.40%
Join Success Business Inc. (“Join Success”) 34,560,000 4.44%
Jumbo Regent Investment Limited (“Jumbo Regent”) 34,560,000 4.44%
Master Rich Business Limited (“Master Rich”) 28,800,000 3.70%
Million Era Holding Corporation (“Million Era”) 5,760,000 0.74%
Total #5t 413,940,000 53.17%

The 7 BVI Companies are respectively 100% owned
subsidiaries of Acuwake Enterprises Limited (“Acuwake”).
Acuwake is 100% owned by Bluebell Global Enterprises
Limited. ("Bluebell”). Bluebell is wholly owned by Hang
Seng Bank Trustee. Hang Seng Bank Trustee as trustee of
Sunshiny Trust, Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun as the settlor of
Sunshiny Trust are taken to be interested in such shares.
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is also a director of each of the 7
BVI Companies.
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3. Mr. Huang Te-Wei is a son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and 3. EEBLERAEBRAENT T UA
a beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei Sunshiny Trustf)Zm A » Bt - &1E
is taken to be interested in the same block of 413,940,000 BEEFESEAPBEREBELZHER
shares held by the 7 BVI Companies. A 75 A )[R — #£413,940,0008% i% 17

BHEER -

4. Details of the Directors’ interests in the share options 4. EENARABRONEREREENER
granted by the Company are set out under the heading FBEN T ESWERO R —
“Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares” below. £ o

5. The issued capital of the Company as at 31 July 2011 is 5. RAARRZZE——FLA=+T—HHE
778,541,000 shares. BATRRZN/R778,541,0000 X173 <

Details of the Directors’ interests in the share options BEERNARRMKHBEREPESF

granted by the Company are set out under the heading BEHA T ESKEROOERN]—

“Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares” below. £ o

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares EEWEROER

Number of

Shares
subject to  Approximate
Exercise Period Exercise price Exercise  outstanding percentage of
(subject to Balance as at  Grant during per share during  options as at the Company's
Name of Director ~ Date of Grant  vesting period) 1.8.2010  the period HKS  the period  31.7.2011 issued capital
) RHAH 8 R-B-%F BAgL  SROKE BATE RoF--F HRAT
(RBRHFR) NE-A B tA=t-8 BRIRAH
k54 HATRE  BOEW

BREMSR

WRHEE
Huang Sheng-Shun 16052007 08.06.2008 -15.05.2017 550,000 - 220 - 550,000 0.07%
B 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 750,000 - 0.96 (374,000 376,000 0.05%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 - 330,000 105 - 330,000 0.04%
1,256,000 0.16%
Huang Te-Wei 16.05.2007 08.06.2008 -15.05.2017 230,000 - 200 230,000 0.03%
L3 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 600,000 - 096 (300000) 300,000 0.04%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011 -10.01.2021 - 260,000 105 260,000 0.03%
790,000 0.10%
Lin Hung-Ming 16.05.2007 08.06.2008 -15.05.2017 320,000 - 220 - 320,000 0.04%
v 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 600,000 - 0.96 - 600,000 0.08%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011 -10.01.2021 - 260,000 105 - 260,000 0.03%

1,180,000 0.15%

—E-—E5H KRFEERERER2E | 77



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FEGHE

Number of

Shares
Exercise/  subjectto  Approximate
Exercise Period Exercise price lapse  outstanding percentage of
(subject to Balance as at ~ Grant during per share during  options as at the Company's
Name of Director ~ Date of Grant  vesting period) 1.8.2010  the period HKS  the period  31.7.2011 issued capital
EEpg RiEAH s RZ2-%% BRRL  SROKE B RZE--% HRAT
(ZERAMR) NB-R Br /%% tA=t-B BRAKAM
k54 WATE  BROAAM

BREMSR

KRA#A
Wong Tek Leung 16.05.2007 08.06.2008 -15.05.2017 275,000 - 2.20 - 275,000 0.04%
AR 24122009 2406.2010-23.12.2019 600,000 - 096 - 600,000 0.08%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 - 260,000 1.05 - 260,000 0.03%

1,135,000 0.15%

W Th Chen 16.05.2007 08.06.2008 -15.05.2017 455,000 - 2.0 - 455,000 0.06%
REH 24.12.2009 24062010 -23.12.2019 750,000 - 0.96 (375,000 375,000 0.05%
11.01.201 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 - 330,000 1.05 - 330,000 0.04%

1,160,000 0.15%

Kirk Yang 24.12.2009 24.06.2010 -23.12.2019 100,000 - 0.96 - 100,000 0.01%
e 11.01.2011 11.07.2011 -10.01.2021 - 46,000 1.05 (46,000) - 0%

100,000 0.01%

Hsieh Yu 24.12.2009 24.06.2010 -23.12.2019 100,000 - 0.96 - 100,000 0.01%
A 11.01.201 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 - 46,000 1.05 - 46,000 0.005%

146,000 0.015%

Jou Yow-Jen 11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 - 46,000 1.05 - 46,000 0.005%
By

46,000 0.005%

Yeung Chi Tat 24.12.2009 24.06.2010 -23.12.2019 100,000 - 0.96 - 100,000 0.01%
o pitd 11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 - 46,000 1.05 - 46,000 0.005%

146,000 0.015%

Further details of the share options are set out in the AN EMmFBEN T X BT
section headed “Share Option Schemes” below. B8 o

78 | TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



(b)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EE S LT

Interest in associated corporations of the

Company
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RARBRBEEEANES

a

Anniversary
BE

Percentage of
the relevant

associated
Number of corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity in which shares issued share
Name of Director corporation* interests are held Class of shares interested capital
Esi# ERiEER RERENSH RGEH BEREH  HEBERLE
Rir#E BRATREM
(Rl
Huang Sheng-Shun Hang Seng Bank Trustee Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
EHR as trustee of Sunshiny Trust ~ Sunshiny TrustBIZFEA US$1.00 each
BERTERER BREEW0ETHERR
Sunshiny TrustE)EFEA
Acuwake Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf)Z5EA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Ace Chain Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZ5EA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
China Gain Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZ5EA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Highwise Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZ5EA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Join Success Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZ5EA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Jumbo Regent Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZ5EA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Master Rich Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZ5EA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Million Era Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny TrustfIZEA US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
—B——EEH AxEEsRARAFN | 79
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Percentage of
the relevant

associated
Number of corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity in which shares issued share
Name of Director corporation* interests are held Class of shares interested capital
Esis REEEER REEENSH RGER REREN  HEBERLE
Rir#E BRATREM
(Rl
Huang Te-Wei Hang Seng Bank Trustee Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
EER as trustee of Sunshiny Trust ~ Sunshiny TrustEIF 3 A US$1.00 each
BERTERER BREEWETHERR
Sunshiny TrustE)EFEA
Acuwake Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Ace Chain Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
China Gain Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X 2 A US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Highwise Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Join Success Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Jumbo Regent Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Master Rich Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
BREEW0ETHERR
Million Era Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trustf1 X2 A US$1.00 each
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*Note:

For details of the corporate structure of each of the associated
corporations, please see Notes 1 and 2 of the sub-section
headed “(a) Long positions in Shares and underlying shares
held in the Company”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2011, none of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company nor their
respective associates had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company maintains two share option schemes, namely the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of recognising the contribution of
certain executive directors and employees of the Group and
retaining them for the continual operation and development
of the Group. Both schemes were approved by the written
resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on 16 May 2007
and had a life of 10 years from its adoption.

Under the Share Option Schemes, the Board may, at its
discretion, offer any employee (including any Executive
Director) of the Group, options to subscribe for shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in
the two schemes.

/

Anniversary

BF

Mt -

BRSEBABNDEREFS

F2H[ ()
gt

RARR B RARRER DML R |20 &K &
K2
B EXPREEN  RZE——FLA=+—

B BEEZRARAEBETRABRKRESAN
e ABERAR B REEMABBEE(ER
RiErm MERGIEXVED) A - BRI
NEFHHEE  (QRIEES LB HHIEXV
METR8D BAMEARRNA LR AR
KR (BIRRE Bl 58 75 M B 15615 E AR
RREFRBAOEDIORE) + RO)REZS
K HRE B 3 35215 78 5 RE I #X 6k P 4t & RO 1
MR SURR ¢ HORBIFETABMEAR
AR R P SOR R

BB IR HE T S

ARRRERMIBBBAETE - DR RERARH
SENBRE 8 R E R AR ERBARE
g EERAUAEEETHITEEREENE
Bl WBRBATASAEEEELENER -
MIEF B ER —TTEFAATNAEME—
BRERAEBERBRLLE - BRHARRNE B
FT104F ©

REBERETE - EFSABRBRAAKEEM
BE(EREANTER)RLBRE AR
IR MIR R BIPT AR TE RO IR R R R AN R AR

,T/\ °

TE-—FFH XAFEEERERAA

81



82

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
-

g

The Pre-IPO Share Option

(a)

Purpose of the Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO share option scheme
on 16 May 2007 (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
to recognise the contribution made by the executive
directors and the employees of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company on Stock Exchange.

Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company and/or any its subsidiaries,
including any executive director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries but excluding any non-executive director
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares in respect of the Scheme may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
9,070,000 shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme of
the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 months period must not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue.
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Time of exercise of options

An option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable at the subscription price of HK$2.20
per Share (subject to adjustment and vesting period).
If a grantee does not cease to be Participant from the
date of grant of options (i.e. 16 May 2007) to him up to
the business date immediately prior to the date of the
1st anniversary ("Anniversary”) of the Listing Date, the
grantee may exercise up to 1/5 of the options granted to
him on or after the date of the 1st Anniversary. In the event
that the grantee does not cease to be a Participant up
to the business day prior to the date of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th
and 5th Anniversary, he is entitled to exercise an addition
of up to 1/5 of the options granted to him on or after the
relevant date of Anniversary respectively.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is HK$2.20 per share representing
approximately 37.1% discount to the international offering
price (assuming the offer price is the maximum of HK$3.50
per share).

Payment on acceptance of option

Anon-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant of an option is required to be paid by each
of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have no remaining life
as no further options may be granted but the provisions
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in force and effect and options which
are granted during the life on the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme may continue to exercise in accordance with the
respective terms of issue.

On 16 May 2007, the Company granted 9,070,000 options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No further
options would be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on or after the listing date of the Company i.e.
8 June 2007.
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme adopted
on 16 May 2007 (“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were
summarised as follows:

(a)

Purpose of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge
The Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme will provide the participants an

the contribution of the participants.

opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives:

o motivate the participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

J attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going

business relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Participants of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme include
(i) eligible employees (whether full time or part time
employee including any executive director) of the Group
and any invested entity; (i) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity;
(iii) any suppliers of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any customer
of the Group or any member of the Group; and (v) any
consultant, advisor, manager, officer or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to
the Group or any invested entity.
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Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue at the date of approval of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (i.e. 16 May 2007). The Company may seek
approval of the shareholders in general meeting to renew
the said 10% limit such that the total number of shares
in respect of options that may be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval to renew the limit. Notwithstanding the above,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of total number of shares of the Company
in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue in respect there of is 63,056,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 8.10% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the date this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 months period must not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.
Any further grant of options in excess of the said 1%
limit shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such participant and his or her associates
abstaining from voting.
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Timing of exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion
and in any event such period shall not be longer than 10
years after the date of grant of the option.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is such
price as determined by the Board of the Company at
the time of the grant of the options, but in any case the
subscription price shall not be lower than the higher of:

o the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date on which the options
are offered, which must be a business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the options; and

J the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of offer.

Payment on acceptance of options

A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant of an option is required to be paid by each of
the grantee upon acceptance of the granted options.
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(h) Duration of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in force

for a period of 10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 16 May

2007). However, the Company may terminate the Post-

IPO Share Option Scheme prior to such period and in

such event no further option may be granted but options

granted prior to such termination shall continue to be

valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 July 2011, the outstanding number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme was 13,130,000 shares, representing 1.69%

of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of

this report.

The other principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus

of the Company.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:
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The following table disclose movements in the share options

during the period:

Option to subscribe for shares of the Company

BRENBANESE TREE

TRBALRRGMERE
Exercise Exercise
period price
Category or Balance Granted Lapsed  Exercised Balance  (subject per
name as at during during during asat  to vesting share
of grantees Option Type 1.8.2010  the period  the period  the period  31.7.2011  period) HKS
REANERALE BRESH R-2-2&  BaRY  BREN  BRAE RZE--F TEE BRTEE
NE-H tA=t-B  (REBHMR) BT
i i
Directors
g%
Huang Sheng-Shun Share Option Scheme | 550,000 - - - 550,000  08.06.2008 - 2.20
Bk BRE 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 750,000 - - (374,000) 376,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
BIRESE-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 330,000 - - 330,000  11.07.2011 - 1.05
BIRE 3B 10.01.2021
1,256,000
Huang Te-Wei Share Option Scheme | 230,000 - - - 230,000  08.06.2008 - 2.20
B BRE 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 600,000 - - (300,000) 300,000 24.06.2010 - 0.96
BIRES3-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 260,000 - - 260,000  11.07.2011 - 1.05
BIRE 3B 10.01.2021
790,000
Lin Hung-Ming Share Option Scheme | 320,000 - - - 320,000 08.06.2008 - 2.20
HER BRE 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 600,000 - - - 600,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
BIRESE-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 260,000 - - 260,000  11.07.2011 - 1.05
BIRE 3B 10.01.2021
1,180,000
Wong Tak Leung Share Option Scheme | 275,000 - - - 275000 08.06.2008 - 2.20
BER BIRE 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 600,000 - - - 600,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
BIRES3-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 260,000 - - 260,000  11.07.2011 - 1.05
BIRE 3B 10.01.2021
1,135,000

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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Option to subscribe for shares of the Company
TABRAARGHERRE
Exercise Exercise
period price
Category or Balance Granted Lapsed  Exercised Balance  (subject per
name as at during during during asat  to vesting share
of grantees Option Type 1.8.2010  the period  the period  the period  31.7.2011  period) HKS$
RRANEEIN BRESR RZ%-%% HRET BRi®  BRAE R-E--F 68 BRAEE
NA-H tA=+-0 (RBBHFR) BT
fie fiie
Wu lh Chen Share Option Scheme | 455,000 - - - 455000  08.06.2008 - 2.20
REH BRET 2 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 750,000 - - (375,000) 375,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
BRE 2 -A 23122019
Share Option Scheme 1I-B - 330,000 - - 330,000 11.07.2011 - 1.05
BRET2N-B 10.01.2021
1,160,000
Kirk Yang Share Option Scheme II-A 100,000 - - - 100,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
R BRE 2N -A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 46,000 (46,000) - 0 11.07.2011 - 1.05
BRE2N-B 10.01.2021
100,000
Jou Yow-Jen Share Option Scheme 1I-B - 46,000 - - 46,000  11.07.2011 - 1.05
By BRET2)-B 10.01.2021
46,000
Hsieh Yu Share Option Scheme II-A 100,000 - - - 100,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
I BRE 2N -A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 46,000 - - 46,000 11.07.2011 - 1.05
BRET2N-B 10.01.2021
146,000
Yeung Chi Tat Share Option Scheme II-A 100,000 - - - 100,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
hEE BIRE 2 -A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 46,000 - - 46,000 11.07.2011 - 1.05
BRE2N-B 10.01.2021
146,000
Total for Directors 5,430,000 1,624,000 (46,0000 (1,049,000) 5,959,000
e N
—E-—FFH KFEEZERERAR | 89
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Option to subscribe for shares of the Company
TRERAIRGNERE
Exercise Exercise
period price
Category or Balance Granted Lapsed  Exercised Balance  (subject per
name as at during during during asat  to vesting share
of grantees Option Type 1.8.2010  the period  the period  the period  31.7.2011  period) HKS$
REANERSNA BRESR R=2-%%  BARE  HRAXN BRAR R-E--F GR8 BRITEE
NE-H tAzZt-B  (ZERHAR) o
ifg3 if33
Employees Share Option Scheme | 4,830,000 - (420,000) - 4410000  08.06.2008 - 2.20
&8 BRI 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 6,984,000 - (499,000 (1,672,000 4813000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
RIEREN-A 23122019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 4,370,000 (182,000) - 4188000  11.07.2011- 1.05
RIER 2B 10.01.2021
Total for Employees 11,814,000 4,370,000  (1,101,0000  (1,672,000) 13,411,000
St
All Categories Share Option Scheme | 6,660,000 - (420,000) - 6,240,000  08.06.2008 - 2.20
FERE e HE 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 10,584,000 - (499,000 (2,721,000 7,364,000  24.06.2010 - 0.96
RIREREN-A 23122019
Share Option Scheme II-B - 5,994,000 (228,000) - 5766000  11.07.2011 - 1.05
kR 2B 10.01.2021
Total 17,244,000 5994000  (1,147,0000  (2,721,000) 19,370,000
5
Notes: K1zt -
1. The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately 1. ARRBHREE T ——F—A+—8F

before the date on which the share options granted on
11 January 2011 was HK$1.05 per share.

2. The vesting period of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme |is 2.
from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

3. The vesting period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme II-Ais 3.

from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.
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4. The vesting period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme II-B is
from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

5. The share options were held by grantees who ceased to be the
employees of the Group during the period.

6. No share option were cancelled during the period.

7. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options were
exercised was HK$1.22.

Save as disclosed above, no share option were granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO share options
Scheme.

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS
GRANTED DURING THE YEAR

The valuation of share options granted during the year is set
out in Note 38 the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 July 2011, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons have an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are recorded in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

. BF

4. BERAMBEREBREII-BNEBHMAR
HE#METEHAMARER -

5. ZREBEBREHABAKLEESREEIESRNEA
BAFA °

6. HIRBLEGEIATABAE -

7. ARRRIBRMREEERETE R A

FHRHERT.228T °

Br EXPRINEEE SN - BIERBEE R AFEER
AR 8 R B R AR SR B 8IR T
(LR -

FARHNBRENGE

FRELNERENGESINGS T BHREM
FF38 ©

FERRVERS

W=T——ELA=+—8  HREEHA - U
TALRAR AR SRR BB R R 5
T 5 5% DI BXVB 52 R35 B AW AL
AIBE BB R R 1) 336A/E R R
RARTVEE HBRB RS IAE -

TE-—FER AFEEZERERLQAF
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Long positions in the Shares and Underlying

R REERD VTR

Shares
Percentage
of interests
as to the
Number of Number of issued share
shares held in  shares subject capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company to options Total Company Note(s)
REEE Enttg BERARRGEE BRESR &t Ly ONG[) (i
LG BRAH
BRAAMY
Acuwake Enterprises Limited Interest of controlled corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 1
Rt EER
Bluebell Global Enterprises Limited Interest of controlled corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 1
Rt EER
Hang Seng Bank Trustee Trustee of Sunshiny Trust 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 1&4
International Limited Sunshiny TrustH{EFEA R4
BERTETEBRERAA
Hang Seng Bank Limited Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 4&5
BERTBRAR REH AR 45
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking  Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
Corporation Limited XEnEE RS
BELBELRTERAA
HSBC Asia Holdings BV Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
Rt EER
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
Rt EER
HSBC Holdings BV Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
Rt EER
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
Rt EER
HSBC Holdings plc Interest of controlled Corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
ELERBRAR REH AR
Ace Chain Investments Corporation Beneficial interests 149,100,000 - 149,100,000 19.15% 1

BifiEs
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Percentage
of interests
as to the
Number of Number of issued share
shares held in  shares subject capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company to options Total Company' Note(s)
RREH REME FERRARNYE BREVR 3t ERAE fizE
HRHHE BITREM
REAALY
China Gain Holdings Limited Beneficial interests 103,560,000 - 103,560,000 13.30% 1
BalER
Highwise Investment Group Beneficial interests 57,600,000 - 57,600,000 7.39% 1
Corporation s
Huang Sheng-Shun Settlor of Sunshiny Trust/ 413,940,000 - 423,070,000 54.34% 2
EBE Sunshiny TrustfZFEA,/
Beneficial interests 7,874,000 1,256,000
BalER
Tong Mei-Jen Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust/ 413,940,000 - 423,070,000 54.36% 3
EXY Sunshiny TrustBIFE A,/
Spouse interests 7,874,000 1,256,000
[ 4
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust/ 413,940,000 - 415270000 53.34% 8
BEE Sunshiny TrustBIFE A/
Beneficial interests 540,000 790,000
BalER
Chao Yu Ting Spouse interests 413,940,000/ 790,000 415,270,000 53.34% 9
BER FiBER 540,000
Wu Pei Min Corporate Interests/ 57,350,000 - 57,500,000 7.39% 6
RTE NAlER/
Beneficial interests 150,000 -
BalER
Wu Chung-chieh, Jack Corporate interests/ 57,350,000 - 57,408,000 7.31% 6&7
i AR/ 6%
Beneficial interests - 58,000
BalER
—E-—-FEH KRFEEERERAE | 93
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The 413,940,000 shares relate to the same block of shares in
the Company. These shares were directly held by the 7 BVI
companies, all of which were wholly-owned by Acuwake
Enterprises Limited (“Acuwake”) which in turn was wholly-owned
by Bluebell Global Enterprises Limited (“Bluebell). Bluebell was
wholly-owned by Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited
("Hang Seng Bank Trustee”) as trustee of Sunshiny Trust. Ace
Chain Investments Corporation, China Gain Holdings Limited
and Highwise Investment Group Corporation are three of the 7
BVI companies which hold their respective shareholding of the
Company directly as detailed in the above table. For details of
the interests of Sunshiny Trust in the Company, please refer to
notes 1 and 2 of the sub-section headed “(a) Long positions
in Shares and underlying Shares in the Company” under the
section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests” in
the above.

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun as settlor of Sunshiny Trust is taken to
have an interest in such shares. Details of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun’s
share options, please refer to sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” for details. Sunshiny Trust of which Hang Seng Bank
Trustee International Limited is the trustee. Please refer to Note
1 of the sub-section headed “(a) Long positions in Shares and
underlying Shares in the Company” under the section headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests” in the above.

Ms. Tong Mei-Jen, the spouse of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, is also
a beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust. As such, Ms. Tong Mei-Jen is
taken to be interested in the 413,940,000 Shares directly held by
the 7 BVI Companies as controlled companies of Sunshiny Trust.
Ms. Tong Mei-Jen, as the spouse of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, is
also deemed to be interested in such shares which Mr. Huang
Sheng-Shun is interested in.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank
Limited was owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited was
wholly owned by HSBC Asia Holdings BV which was a wholly
owned subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited. HSBC Asia
Holdings (UK) Limited was wholly owned by HSBC Holdings BV
which in turn was wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands).
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) was a wholly owned subsidiary of
HSBC Holdings plc.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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413,940,000 & 17 45 Al —HL A 2 =D © 7%
EROBLREBELHERAIEERF
%55~ A& #¥9 FH Acuwake Enterprises Limited
(lAcuwake]) 2 &R - MAcuwakeRIIFBluebell
Global Enterprises Limited ([ Bluebell ) & &
%G ° Bluebell HIEARITELEEBEERA
AI((EERTEFLDEEES - BSunshiny
TrustH) 1§ 5& A ° Ace Chain Investments
China Gain Holdings Limited
K Highwise Investment Group Corporation
REREBELBESARNAPF=RAA] "
RERFABAREERESERRRATNKR
1 o HEASunshiny Trusti AR A Al 2 B RF
B B2HEERIETHABNER]—
I T @R AR EIRD MAEERO T E ]
DEREIPHFE1 o2 ©

Corporation *

= B 5% %% 4 1E BSunshiny Trustf) Z 5T A -
WRAENRZERNFPHAER - BEEN
FEMBREFS  F20BRETE 1S
& © Sunshiny Trustf){EsEA B EAERITIET
RERAR > 2 ENEERFETH
AB# R | — 8Nl ()R A R D R AR AR
MEEF R | ETEFEET

= et AW RC B E X2 £ IR BSunshiny
Trustt) 2 A Bt - EEXR L EHARER
BEtREBEZ# S QA (1R XSunshiny
TrustH 42 61 22 B ) B % #5 5 #9413,940,000%
Bt EEER - EBRTENKEBERD
HETHEIERERREEERERENZE
iR

BAERTEAERERARABLERITER
RANEENBAR - B LBELRTE
BRI #EAELERITERRA R K62.14%E

P
m °

FELBEZIRTTAR QA HHSBC Asia
Holdings BV (HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)
Limitedh 2 EM B 2R )2 B A -
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(6) 57,350,000 shares out of 57,500,000 are beneficially-owned by
Golden King Holdings Limited and Joint Kingdom International
Holdings Limited which were 50% held by Ms. Wu Pei Min and
50% held by Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack respectively. Accordingly,
Ms. Wu Pei Min and Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack are deemed to
have beneficial interests in all these shares by virtue of SFO.

(7) The 40,000 shares out of 58,000 represent shares exercisable
pursuant to options granted to Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack on 24
December 2009 under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme of the
Company which is exercisable at a price of HK$0.96 per share
during the period from 24 June 2010 to 23 December 2019.

The 18,000 shares represent shares exercisable pursuant to
options granted to Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack on 11 January
2011 under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company
which is exercisable at a price of HK$1.05 per share during the
period from 11 July 2011 to 10 January 2021.

(8)  Mr. Huang Te-Wei is the son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and
a beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei is
taken to be interested in the 413,940,000 shares directly held
by the 7 BVI Companies as controlled companies of Sunshiny
Trust. Details of Mr. Huang Te-Wei's share options, please refer
to sub-section headed “Share Option Scheme” for details.

(9)  Ms. Chao Yu Ting is the spouse of Mr. Huang Te-Wei and
accordingly is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which
Mr. Huang Te-Wei is interested in.

(10)  As at 31 July 2011, the issued capital of the Company is
778,541,000 shares

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2011, the Directors and
the Chief Executive of the Company were not aware of any
person who has an interest or short position in the Shares,
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

(10
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57,500,000/% & 3 # #957,350,0008% f& 15
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Kingdom International Holdings Limited®
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE EZEWERGODIESHER

SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
or the chief executives of the Company or any of their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
and in which a Director of the Company had material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at
any time during the year, nor had there been any contract of
significance entered into between the Group and a controlling
shareholder of the Company during the year ended 31 July
2011.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 July 2011, the Company had
repurchased a total of 1,104,000 shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate HK$1,364,000,
all the shares repurchased (including those repurchased shares
not yet cancelled in the previous year) had been cancelled.
Details of the repurchases are set out below:

B EXPRIEEESN - MEREAIRRE - NAF]
HEAEMZER AT - HERRHFRRNME R
BiES2BEAZE  EARBRESHTIBEITH
ABHRER BN BHI8HTIA T FREEESB
Y B8 7R A B) ol () L At 2K B e B £ B 1 75 T 2

N
S5 o
m

EENESHNER

/N I e S CIE 23 N RS NS AT
BRRREERFRFENERRRE - BB E
AANRESERRMEEAEARENER
a#) - BMERBE_T——FLtA=1T—H
IEFE A AR B K AR BRI AR R AT S AR
BEZ2AK -

BE - HEIXBEEARQAT LW

REE-_Z——FtA=-+—HILFE £A
A) DA 4288 B (81,364,000 7T 7£ Bt 22 AT B8 [2] A
NAE)FIREEO. 108 Tk (DA ££1,104,0008% -
MATBEERD(BERBEFEHARTHEN
EEERN) BT -  BEFBLOT

Number of shares Purchase price Aggregate
Period repurchased per share purchase price
HE BoRHHE BRIBEE HEEE
Highest Lowest
RE RIE
‘000 HKS$ HK$ HK$'000
TR BT BT T
3-17 August 2010 1,104 HK$1.29 HK$1.19 HK$1,364
—T-TFN\A=BEt+LEH 1,104 1.29%7T 1198 7T 1,36478 7T
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The repurchases were made by the Directors, pursuant to the
mandate granted by the shareholders, with a view to benefit the
Company and the shareholders as a whole in the enhancement
of the net assets per share and earnings per share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's
listed securities during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 July 2011, in so far as the Directors were aware, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had any interest
in a business that competed or was likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group, and to review the Company’s annual report and half-
yearly reports to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board. The audit committee comprises of Mr. Yeung Chi
Tat, Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor Jou Yow-Jen, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors of the Company.

//’

Anniversary

BF

EERERRETHORELETER - UEeE
BEEFERBERAN  SARFREBRRE

BxXE-

B EXFTIREESN - ARE REE(AINE AR
REABERE HEXBLAQREM LD

&%

BE MRS

R-ZE——FtHA=1+—H $EFHAA &
FREFEENBEARENERNTEEHE
P 355 5 X T RE R K 5 S N R TS P E B (AR AR

ﬁo

BB E

REARBNAREHERMANKHESEHEER
® WEAHELEBRENREEZRARFA
R BIRR AR EBEH KD

ANBERE
RIBEARBAAHBRCIREHNER RIEEEM
R AREAH - ARBREEUNERSTE L
MRAFTRE N LR R T B BTN 25%H)
IKFE o

BERERS

ARRDEBREMRAURIBZEZES - A
EEFABERE - FERREENTERER
B0 N BB AN SR B RO B 7% BR SB AR Ko O B2 I
R WERMAAARFREFFERS - LH
HREFERIEZNRER -BERZEEHE
TERL - BMEERBAYEDREER - &A
BRARNRBIBLIFANITES °

B —EER AFEEERERAR

97



98

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FEGHE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's annual
results for the year ended 31 July 2011 in conjunction with
the Company’s auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year.

The Company's corporate governance practices are set out
in Corporate Governance Report on page 35 of this annual
report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine members who are entitled to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
8 December 2011, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 6 December 2011 to Thursday, 8
December 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares can be registered. All transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 December 2011.

In order to qualify for the approved final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
15 December 2011 to Friday, 16 December 2011 (both days
inclusive). All transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 14 December 2011.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company are pleased to recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HKé cents (2010: HKé cents) per
share for the year ended 31 July 2011, totaling HK$46.7 million
(2010: HK$46.6 million) which is expected to be paid on or
before 28 December 2011 to its shareholders per its register
of members at the close of business on 14 December 2011
subject to the final approval in the annual general meeting to
be held on 8 December 2011.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 July 2011 have been
audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2011 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company for the re-appointment
of Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Sheng-Shun
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong

28 October 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B 2 REN R E

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Eue

Shineﬂ)Zné

TO THE MEMBERS OF TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 102 to 215, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B R BETRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
July 2011 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ip Yu Chak

Practising Certificate Number: P04798

Hong Kong
28 October 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=_ZE——F+A=+—HIFE

Notes 2011 2010
ffsE —E2——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Turnover ] 8 787,348 812,093
Cost of sales SHERK A (637,618) (631,547)
Gross profit E7 149,730 180,546
Other operating income HEp@alg A 8 26,479 17,474
Selling and distribution expenses HER DAY (26,638) (28,086)
Administrative expenses AHFEY (104,751) (94,525)
Other expenses HihFA % 10 (5,156) (5,072)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELEMB L RdE 12 2,249 =
Share of results of jointly controlled entities  FE(FIRIEHI BN ELE (838) =
Share of result of an associate JELEE AR ER (85) 383
Profit before tax BRA A A 40,990 70,720
Income tax credit (expenses) FiEREe (AX) 1 1,654 (3,454)
Profit for the year attributable to owners AREHEA AEEERET
of the Company 13 42,644 67,266
Earnings per share BREF| 15
Basic ER HK5.48 cents &4l HK851 cents 7l
Diluted B HK5.48 cents &l HK8.50 cents /&Ll

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME e a
AN <
For the year ended 31 July 2011 HZ—ZFT——FtA=+—HILFE
Note 2011 2010
Bt —2—-fF —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
Profit for the year FREA 42,644 67,266
Other comprehensive income (expenses) Hi2EBRA ()
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETEROE R Z5
translating foreign operations
Exchange differences arising RENEENERZHE
during the year 39,390 9,410
Reclassification adjustments FNEARELENE
relating to deemed AR B EAE
disposal of subsidiaries during the year 12 (386) =
39,004 9,410
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHESREE
Net gain arising on revaluation of FNEFHAHREESR
available-for-sale financial BEEENNGFH
assets during the year 23,881 6,791
Reclassification adjustments FRAEHELERHHESR
relating to available-for-sale financial BENBNHEAE
assets disposed of during the year (6,550) -
17,331 6,791
Share of other comprehensive income (L — R & A R KRR
(expenses) of an associate and THERNEMZE
jointly controlled entities WA (FAX)
Share of exchange reserve of an associate JEILE B A RIRE R B 184 (120)
Share of exchange reserve of eI RS E B
jointly controlled entities B 933 -
1,117 (120)
Other comprehensive income FREMEERA
for the year, net of tax Gy 57,452 16,081
Total comprehensive income for the year, AUNGIE 2PN RS
net of tax, attributable to owners FEBALRE(RHE)
of the Company 100,096 83,347

—E——FER AFEEERERAT | 103



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARR R

As at 31 July 2011 R=ZE—F+A=+—H
Notes 2011 2010
fisE —E2——f —55
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEx
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE k&t 18 312,675 320,309
Construction in progress EEIR 19 749 1,916
Prepaid lease payments BNHEEFE 20 59,924 57,106
Investment property REMHE 21 26,510
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESRERE 22 74,509 44,892
Held-to-maturity investments BEREIENE 23 = 11,610
Interests in jointly controlled entities RAFEZHB RS 24 16,741 -
Interest in an associate RN—EEE QR R 25 1,442 1,528
Loan receivable from a jointly controlled e — R £ REHE
entity B 26 7,801 =
Deposits for acquisition of land use rights B T E RN RS 6,811 5,171
507,162 442,532
Current assets MEVEE
Inventories 53 27 180,181 165,127
Trade and other receivables W E SR
H IR 28 286,960 302,050
Prepaid lease payments ENEERR 20 1,378 1,301
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities ~ JEUFEFIFE %'J,\ BT 29 12,991 =
Income tax recoverable Ak E S 16 =
Held-to-maturity investments BEEE Hﬁ&ﬁ 23 23,660 =
Held-for-trading investments REEERE 30 986 47
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 31 4,172 2,938
Bank balances and cash RGBS 32 262,248 333,789
772,592 805,252
Assets classified as held for sale HRABELEEE 33 2,772 =
775,364 805,252
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables ENESEFRR
HihERFUR 34 100,507 118,909
Income tax payable FER A5 40,517 44,997
141,024 163,906
Net current assets MBEEFE 634,340 641,346
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRDERE 1,141,502 1,083,878
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FINANCIAL POSITION -
= A AR
e Mg R R
As at 31 July 2011 R=E——F A =+—H
Notes 2011 2010
G —e——F  -3-%%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Capital and reserves BARK G
Share capital LN 35 77,854 77,801
Reserves B 1,060,299 1,002,449
Total equity BneE 1,138,153 1,080,250
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Deferred income FEEWA 36 1,040 1,014
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBAE 37 2,309 2,614
3,349 3,628
1,141,502 1,083,878

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 215 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 October 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

B=

FIREEF2BENGAVBERRIIECESS
NoT——F+A -+ N\ B ERRETE
YHTHNEEREEE

Director

BE=

TE-—FFER KFEEERBERAA

105



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 July 2011 BZ—ZT——FtA=+—HIFE

Share Investments ~ Share  Capital Statutory
Share  Share  options  Retained Exchange revaluation repurchase redemption  surplus  Legal
capitl  premium  reserve  profits  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  Total
8 Rt Ex iR
R BOER BERSE RELN EXRE EGER RORE AORE BRLRE MEER 48
HKS000  HKS00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HK$000
T Thn TEn i TEr TRn TR TR TR TEn TEn
(Note ) (Noted ~ (Note3)  (Noted
(M) (MR (M) (W)

At 1 August 2009 NEENEN\A-H 80000 659,945 8702 203668 86,309 7380 - - U8R 49 1,070,925
Profit for the year g - - RO - - - - - -G
Other comprehensive income for the year  EREMBZENA = = = | Y] = = - - 16081
Total comprehensive income for the year  EMAENALE - - . V. I Y/ - - - - Bw
Evercise of share options fiietaE i B 6] = = = = = . = 19
Transfer to reserve for value of FRKERENER

share options forfeited #zhE - - (626) 62 = = = = = - =
Equity-settled share-based transactions ~ ERERHRAERRS = - 4 = = = = = = -4
Appropriation to reserves BoRE - - - (483 - - - = 483 = =
Shares repurchased and cancelled BEORHERD RN 27,008 - = = - = - M)
Repurchase of own shares BEASRhONGE

pending for cancellation = - = = = = (1.219) = = - (1.219)
Dividend declared and paid during the year £MERREERE = = - (48000) = - s = = - (48000)
At31 July 2010 RIE-ERLAST-A 7801 6% 12455 216527 95,59 1417 (1.219) 201 9704 49 1,080,250
Profit for the year Emi = = - L = = = = = o
Other compreensive income for the year  FREHZEMNA - - - VA V) - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year  ERZENA B - - - b B - - - - 1000%
Exercise of share options filpEhE mn 3188 (84) = = = = = = - 2614
Transfer to reserve for value of FRKERENER

share options forfeited EfnRE - - M) H = = = = = - =
Equity-settled share-based transactions  ERERHRAZRRS = - M = = = = = = -
Appropriation to reserves BizEE - - - B - - - )] - -
Shares repurchased and cancelled BEERHERA Q9 R . 219) = -1 19 = - (13
Dividend declared and paid during the year #E KRB (S = = - 00 = = = = . - (00
At 31 July 201 RIE-—FLAZT-A I8 63378 14132 209919 1570 31502 - 20 32 9 1138153
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BZ—ZT——FtA=+T—HIFE

Notes: Hiat -

/

Anniversary

BE

Share repurchase reserve

Share repurchase reserve represents the amount paid on the
repurchase of shares during the year but the shares were not
yet cancelled as at the date of the reporting period.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the
shares repurchased which has been paid out of the distributable

reserves of the Company.
Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit
(after offsetting prior year losses) as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

Legal reserve

In accordance with Macau Commercial Code, the Company's
subsidiary incorporated in Macau is required to appropriate 25%
of its net profit to a legal reserve until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. Legal reserve
is not distributable to shareholders.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of approximately HK$53,931,000 (2010:
HK$50,818,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

P dn B8 1 55

et B 100 (o A 4R A 4F O A B 1B A (1B AR D 70
HEHRHEBHHARTH) NS HE

BEAREE R

EABERRERECBEOROMNEE  §H
BUARR A AR D KRBT

EERBAES

RIBHEARKMBETHED)EREE - A
REVER B R EENKHE R RAGER
B EE R RORREE MR RSN (8
HREFEBRRZ) MO%RBEREEERAKRA
e BEERFRBOESRESEMEARS0%
A1k BARMERER A D IKES A8 B
EAE

RIPEPIF X - AR R RORPIFEM ALY
MEARIABEEANN25%EEERE B
EZRENASREEME AR EMEARI50%
Bk EERBETEDIR TR -

EAUNCIE 2PNl
ARBEEANEEGA BN ERERARF

B 75 3R 35 P R 2 A0 0% A1 453,931,000 7T ( =
T —Z4 : 50,818,000/ 7C) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF

CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 July 2011 BEZ =T —F+tA=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Profit before tax BRI A& A 40,990 70,720
Adjustments for : AT RIAELFE -
Interest income FSWA (4,675) (4,925)
Dividend income % B A (509) (1,695)
Investment income from derivative TESMTERERA
financial instruments (364) 619)
Fair value gain on derivative TSR ITAATEKS
financial instruments (1,127) (2,934)
(Gain) loss on disposal of derivative HEMEERT A B
financial instruments (205) 2,369
(Gain) loss on disposal of HEREESHE (W) BHE
held-for-trading investments (112) 151
Fair value loss on FEEBRBELTERE
held-for-trading investments 22 -
Gain on disposal of HETREESR
available-for-sale financial assets & EMWE (11,750) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect AHHESREER
of available-for-sale financial assets ERRREEE 1,235 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNHERIELEH 1,393 1,298
Amortisation of deferred income BN (24) (23)
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BERSRETE
and equipment 44,515 41,415
Increase in fair value of investment REWMENH L TFEEM
property (1,879) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect HOE - BEREE
of property, plant and equipment REVREER 84 -
Share of results of jointly controlled EiLEREREROXE
entities 838 -
Share of result of an associate NG E 85 (383)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIELEMBR RN E (2,249) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE - BEX
and equipment RENER 150 466
Bad debts written off R - 4
Impairment losses recognised in K E 5 RA K E MR R
respect of trade and other receivables BRNBEEE 508 355
Reversal of impairment losses BBt U E FIRK
recognised in respect of trade HERARERR
receivables (119) (190)
Allowance for inventories FERE 228 390
Reversal of allowance for inventories FERERE = (3,895)
Government grants BT e (1,592) (1,853)
Equity-settled share-based payment RBERIE N AR £
expenses R 3,264 4,385
TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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CASH FLOWS c —
= 325 =
MEBEERER
For the year ended 31 July 2011 BZE=ZT— &+t A=+—HIFE
2011 2010
—E——f —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT
Operating cash flows before LEECEPAINLE
movements in working capital BenE 68,707 105,036
Increase in inventories FEEm (12,200) (51,386)
Decrease (increase) in trade and FEUE Z R R E A fElR
other receivables IR () 26,155 (92,472)
(Decrease) increase in trade and e E BRI E A e
other payables FIECRA)E M (17,103) 50,987
Cash generated from operations RELEEENHE 65,559 12,165
Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) refund (B EREEFER (174) 1,724
PRC income tax paid BEREMEH (3,806) (3,867)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RELEEHNRSFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 61,579 10,022
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BENMRE (27,847) (34,749)
Payment for construction in progress ERIRNAR (25,099) (8,040)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEIHHESHEE (23,734) (21,015)
Capital injection in a jointly controlled entity m—FRAXRZEHERETE (12,610) -
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments BERARRIERE (12,050) =
Increase in loan receivable from eI — LR B R
a jointly controlled entity EFE (7,801) =
Advance to jointly controlled entities BEEEZEEE (6,944) =
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use right BB L AR (6,811) (5,171)
Purchase of held-for-trading investments BERIEEERE (6,016) (17,266)
Payment for derivative financial instruments PTESBMT AN (4,384) (47,523)
Cash outflow on deemed disposal BIELERB AR
of subsidiaries (Note 12) Bemt(fit2) (3,281) =
Acquisition of prepaid lease payments YRR ERIE (94) =
Decrease in deposits with bank RITFETOR D - 1,026
Dividends received from an associate BUr—HEgE A RIS 185 387
Investment income received from EfTES R T AW
derivative financial instruments BERA 364 619
Dividends received from B EEEREWE
held-for-trading investments AR S 509 462
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERHZE
plant and equipment # P 5008 865 1,099
Proceeds from disposal of derivative HEMTES T AR
financial instruments FTiS508 4,482 45,265
Proceeds from disposal of HEREEEREN
held-for-trading investments Fr{s A 5,207 18,899
Interest received BUF 8 5,228 5,557
Proceeds from disposal of HEAREESREE
available-for-sale financial assets RIS RE 21,963 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ ARBREZEBNRSFE (97,868) (60,450)
—E-—FHEH ATE mR2A | 109



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF
CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 July 2011 BZ—ZT——FtA=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E—-F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEH
Dividends paid ERRE (46,707) (48,000)
Payment for repurchase of shares BEIRM AR (1,364) (30,426)
Cash received from government grants ERBAHEERE 1,592 1,853
Proceeds from share issued under REBRERT 23T
share options scheme R 9 BT 5008 2,614 19
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ ARBEZHNRESRE (43,865) (76,554)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BEeRBEEEBNRLFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (80,154) (126,982)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FANRERESEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 333,789 458,000
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREETE
RATE CHANGES 8,613 2,771
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRORERESSEY
THE END OF THE YEAR, represented RITEBRER S
by bank balances and cash 262,248 333,789
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2011 #E2 =L —F+tA=+—HIEFE

GENERAL

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“"Corporate Information” section to the Annual Report.
The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of silicone
rubber and related products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC whose functional currency is
Renminbi (“RMB"), the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries is HK$.

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of
the Company consider that it is appropriate to present
the consolidated financial statements in HK$.

At 31 July 2011, the directors of the Company consider
the ultimate holding company of the Company to be
Bluebell Global Enterprises Limited which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

—REH
RAFSBEZERERAB(AXEF ] ER
EREEMALA/BRAA - EBEOHRN
BERABMARZMBRAR(HBRA])
ERET - ARBNEMPERRLEE
EEMEBNII ERAFR AR ER ]
—HE o ARB REMBRB( A%
B ETENEWRRAAMEMRER
HE °

e BHRRIIAET(EITI)ZS -
BRI BB R AMINEE B R
ARBTARE DN RABREMEB
DRI EEI RAET

RRARRREBERB LT MARBES
R EMBHRREAETZY -

RZZE——FELA=+—H KXAAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FER#H:TR&EIETTHNE BB
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BREER([BEBYBRE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") 28 ])

WAEE  AEEERKRASESSH

MAR(EBRHAMAR ) BEHEHAT

el RSB RT R~ BRT RB B #ET

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by

112

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(the “HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009 in relation
to the amendments that
are effective for annual

REEIRBUHREEL]) -

BRMBERE
R (ERTHR)

“TENFEERG
R E AR BGE
BRAR-_ZF—TF
—A—HBH%z&R

periods beginning on or 96 B 2 BARR A R
after 1 January 2010 BIEET

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010 in relation
to the amendments that
are effective for annual

BRMBEHRE
R (ERTHR)

—T-TEFERG
AR BE
ERR—_F—FF
Tt A— B &
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Classified as Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations (as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2009)

The amendment to HKFRS 5 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRSs other than HKFRS 5 do not apply
to non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as
held for sale or discontinued operations unless those
HKFRSs require (i) specific disclosures in respect of non-
current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations, or (ii) disclosures about
measurement of assets and liabilities within a disposal
group that are not within the scope of the measurement
requirement of HKFRS 5 and the disclosures are not already
provided in the consolidated financial statements. The
application of amendment to HKFRS 5 had no material
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to the
classification of leasehold land. Before the amendment
to HKAS 17, the Group was required to classify leasehold
land as operating leases and to present leasehold land
as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The amendment to HKAS 17 has
removed such a requirement. The amendment requires
that the classification of leasehold land should be based
on the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is,
whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been
transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendment to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 August
2010 based on information that existed at the inception
of the leases. The application of amendment to HKAS
17 had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

The directors ofthe Company anticipate thatthe application
of other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and

Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters®

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements®

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements®

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities®

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement®

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial
Statements®

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets*

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits®

HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) Related Party Disclosure?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=-ZT——FtA=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial
Statements?
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendment) Funding Requirement?

L Amendments that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2012

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued in November 2009
andamendedin October 2010introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities and for derecognition.

J HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the accounting for changes in fair value
of a financial liability (designated as at fair value
through profit or loss) attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
recognised in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9
will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial

statements for the annual period beginning 1 January
2013 and that the application of the new standard will
have a significant impact on amounts reported in respect

of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities.

However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable

estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been

completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 titled Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets increase the disclosure requirements
for transactions involving transfers of financial assets.
These amendments are intended to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when a financial asset
is transferred but the transferor retains some level of
continuing exposure in the asset. The amendments also
require disclosures where transfers of financial assets are
not evenly distributed throughout the period. To date,
the Group has not entered into transactions involving
transfers of financial assets. However, if the Group enters
into any such transactions in the future, disclosures
regarding those transfers may be affected.

The five new or revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements and disclosures including HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 28 (2011) were
issued by the HKICPA in June 2011 and are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Earlier application is permitted provided that all of the
five new or revised standards are applied early at the
same time. The directors of the Company anticipate that
these new or revised standards will be applied in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for financial
year ending 31 December 2013 and the potential impact
is described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one
basis for consolidation, that is control. In addition, HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with
complex scenarios. Overall, the application of HKFRS 10
requires a lot of judgement. The application of HKFRS 10
might result in the Group no longer consolidating some
of its investees, and consolidating investees that were
not previously consolidated.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified.
Under HKFRS 11, there are two types of joint arrangements:
joint ventures and joint operations. The classification in
HKFRS 11 is based on parties’ rights and obligations
under the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31,
there are three different types of joint arrangements:
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and
jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting. The application of HKFRS 11
might result in changes in the classification of the Group's
joint arrangements and their accounting treatments.
Specifically, the Group’s jointly controlled entities that
are currently accounted for using the equity method
of accounting would be classified as joint ventures and
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 11.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement was issued in June
2011 replaces the fair value measurement guidance
contained in individual HKFRSs by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of fair
value accounting, but provide guidance on how it should
be applied when its use is already required or permitted
by other standards within HKFRSs. The directors of
the Company consider that had the amendment been
adopted during the year, the disclosure of three-level
fair value hierarchy would be applied to the investment
property of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 have been issued to improve
the presentation of other comprehensive income. The
amendments require entities to group together the items
of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future by presenting them separately
from those that would never be reclassified to profit or
loss. The application of the amendment to HKAS 1 might
result in changes in presentation of the Group’s statement
of comprehensive income.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and investment property, which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XEEFBE#®)

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are
carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Company had directly disposed of the relevant assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly
to retained earnings). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XEEFBE#®)

(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
that associate.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount, any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2011 BHZ=—T——FtA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of the interest in
the associate that are not related to the Group.

Joint ventures
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to
as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting except
when the investment is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Classified as Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations. Under the equity method, investments in
jointly controlled entities are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the jointly controlled entities. When the Group's share of
the profit or loss of a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 #E2 =L —F+tA=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XFE€:iHE 2
(Continued)
Joint ventures (Continued) EEdEE)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group's investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transaction
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. TEEFBE#®)

124

(Continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production, supply of goods
and administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimated accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 #E2 =L —F+tA=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XEEFBE#®)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purpose are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any impairment
loss between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in profit
or loss. Any appreciation of the fair value of that item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assets and is recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to consolidated
income statements over the period of the rights using the
straight-line method.
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3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XEEFBE#®)

126

(Continued)

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z =T ——FtA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XFE€:itHE 2
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TMIE#E)
Financial assets ERMEE

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of
the four categories including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective basis for
debt instrument other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net
gains or losses.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BHZ=—T——FtA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. TEEFBE#®)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) TRTHRE®)

Financial assets (Continued) ERMEEE)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss B FIESRRI 18 2 R FE /) &

MEE

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including RATEIRTEEENEENE@ME

financial assets held for trading and those designated as EDRME BEFEEECHEER

at FVTPL on initial recognition. R ERRET RIEATESIRIL
BaNEENSREE -

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: WETIER SHEEGHHEAFE
BE

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of L WEeMEENEEZENARTA
selling in the near future; or BREHERE 5 %

. on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified . TREENVSERAREBRANEE
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group AHEENEZRIANSEMNES
manages together and has a recent actual pattern W—&7  WEAROEREEE
of short-term profit-taking; or FMERX 3%

e itisa derivative that is not designated and effective s SRIBEEAREEENITEIAR
as a hedging instrument. AIEREREHRIA -

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for WEIRTIER FHIEEESREEMN

trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial SN REBEER RV FERFIEETRA

recognition if: FETIBR IR 2 AR IR

J such designation eliminates or significantly reduces o B AR BRI RRIEEF 25
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that WRAEAREREZ A —HER
would otherwise arise; or 17

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial s SHEEMAKEREENCSRAE
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is ME 2 HP IS WIREAEE
managed and its performance is evaluated on a ZLERBRERHIRE R - B
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's TEEEEERTHRKRR  moLE
documented risk management or investment BRI BB A2 B R 3
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more e SREEANEE RBIALAZ
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the PETEZEHNZERES - MEF
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be BEERFEIRAFENEHE
designated as at FVTPL. D(BEEXBE)ETERA B

WHEBBEARE
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XE€:itEE 2
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) EMITE %)
Financial assets (Continued) ERMEEE)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable from
a jointly controlled entity, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from jointly controlled entities and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent
to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XE€:itEE 2
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) EMITE %)
Financial assets (Continued) ERMEEE)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investments revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XEEFBE#®)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified as other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

i)  Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when all
the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuingmanagerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XEEFBE#®)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
i) Sale of goods (Continued)

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;
o it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow to

the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

ii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

iii) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment

have been established.

iv) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the lease.

Equity-settled
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. XEEFBE#®)

(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BE=—ZT—F+tA=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. FEE:HE s

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the exchange reserve).

From 1 August 2009 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign
operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly
controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled
entities that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
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Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is a
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the
related assets. Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES 3. FE&FEE@)
(Continued)
Research and development expenditure 55 K B 2% B XX

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

M MmAS RN EEENABEERAR
Fx

EZ S5 Ml R 45T BA B
AENEERIR

A FE PR P RESFT A AN R B ) & 5 IR R B
ARREFAH TR MENIIRE
MOEEABREEELHE S5tk
B& - ZEbar RARBRRIREETE
MR REMERSBANEEREDL -
BERAERABEA IR L FAET

ZE M RARARRSTER - 1E

FIEstErT AR EETHR - A%Fe
FHAFHEZ MR ER - mEREEIT R E
B MoK - RIEELERT R A
SR REARIRERR,

EAERSTBRNEZRHE

UTREZERERERSITHRRBREST
PRI S 4 & M IS IR T R & 8
AREEARTENERHBOS REFTE
(RT3 »

SE-—FER KFKEEZERBRZ

141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

142

CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (Continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
held-to-maturity investments in the light of its capital
maintenance and liquidity requirements and have
confirmed the Group's positive intention and ability to
hold those assets to maturity. As at 31 July 2011, the
carrying amount of the held-to-maturity investments is
approximately HK$23,660,000 (2010: HK$11,610,000).
Details of this asset are set out in Note 23.

Reversal of overprovision for Macau Complementary
Income Tax (“MCIT")

In respect of the reversal of overprovision for MCIT as
mentioned in Note 11, the management exercised their
judgement to determine that certain provision for MCIT
had gone beyond the five years time-barred period for tax
assessment and therefore, the respective provision for the
relevant period is reversed. The management will review
the reversal of MCIT provision on an ongoing basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values
involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment, in
accordance with relevant accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations
if there is indication of impairment. The calculations and
valuations require the use of judgement and estimates on
future operating cash flows and discount rates adopted.
As at 31 July 2011, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no impairment indication and the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment is approximately
HK$312,675,000 (2010: HK$320,309,000).
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CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Impairment of construction in progress

Provision for impairment on construction in progress is
made when the construction project is suspended for a
long period; the construction project is technically and
physically obsolete and its economic benefits to the
Group is uncertain; or other evidences can prove the
existence of the decline in value of construction project.
An impairment loss is recognised individually for the
shortfall of the recoverable amount of construction in
progress below its carrying amount. As at 31 July 2011, the
carrying value of construction in progress is approximately
HK$749,000 (2010: HK$1,916,000).

Impairment of prepaid lease payments

The Group assesses annually whether prepaid lease
payments have any indication of impairment, in
accordance with relevant accounting policies. The
recoverability of the carrying amounts of prepaid lease
payments is assessed by independent qualified valuer.
In determining fair values, the independent valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited (“BMI"), has made reference to recent
market prices for similar leasehold lands in the same
locations and conditions. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised their judgements
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions. As at 31 July 2011, the
carrying value of prepaid lease payments is approximately
HK$61,302,000 (2010: HK$58,407,000).
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CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain investments in listed securities
as available-for-sale and recognised movements of its fair
value in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investments revaluation reserve. When the fair value
declines, management makes assumptions about
the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the consolidated
income statement. As at 31 July 2011, the carrying value
of listed securities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets is approximately HK$72,227,000 (net of impairment
loss recognised of approximately HK$913,000) (2010:
HK$32,860,000, with no impairment loss recognised).

For the available-for-sale financial assets not quoted in
an active market and measured at cost, the management
uses their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique. Valuation techniques commonly used by the
market practitioners are applied. The Group’s unlisted
equity investments with carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,282,000 (net of impairment loss recognised of
approximately HK$322,000) (2010: HK$12,032,000, with no
impairment loss recognised) are valued using a discounted
cash flow analysis based on the assumptions supported,
where possible, by observable market prices or rates. The
estimation of fair value of these equity investments also
includes some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates.
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CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Fair value of investment property

Investment property is carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2011 at its fair
value of approximately HK$26,510,000 (2010: Nil). The fair
value was based on a valuation on the property conducted
by an independent firm of professional valuers using
open market value by reference to comparable market
transactions which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value
of the Group's investment property and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in
the consolidated income statement.

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based
on assessments of the net realisable value of inventories.
An allowance is applied to inventories where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the net
realisable value is lower than the costs of inventories.
The identification of obsolete inventories required the
use of judgement and estimates on the conditions and
usefulness of the inventories. Where the actual outcome
in future is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance write-back in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. As at 31 July 2011, the carrying value
of inventories is approximately HK$180,181,000 (net of
allowance of approximately HK$1,160,000) (2010: carrying
value of approximately HK$165,127,000, net of allowance
of approximately HK$932,000).
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CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. Such provision for
impairment is established if there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables.
Management reassesses the adequacy of any such
provision on a regular basis. As at 31 July 2011, the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables is
approximately HK$286,960,000 (net of provision for
impairment of approximately HK$778,000) (2010: carrying
value of approximately HK$302,050,000, net of provision
for impairment of approximately HK517,000).

Income taxes

The Groupissubjectto income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The management of the Group uses their judgements
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
derivative financial instruments. Assumptions are made
based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific
features of the instruments. If the inputs and estimates
applied in the model are different, the carrying amount
of these derivatives may change. As at 31 July 2011,
the carrying amount of derivative financial instruments is
approximately HK$4,172,000 (2010: HK$2,938,000).
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CRITICALACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
Share-based payment expenses

The share-based payment expense is subject to the
limitations of the Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing
Model and the uncertainty in estimates used by
management in the assumptions. The estimates include
limited early exercise behavior, expected interval and
frequency of open exercise periods in the share option life,
and other relevant parameters of the share option model.
For the year ended 31 July 2011, share-based payment
expenses amount to approximately HK$3,264,000 (2010:
HK$4,385,000).

Fair value of the retained interest in jointly
controlled entities

In determining the fair value of retained interest in jointly
controlled entities in Note 12, valuation is conducted by
an independent firm of professional valuers using the
discounted future cash flows method to determine the
value-in-use of the jointly controlled entities. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result
in changes in the fair value of the retained interests in
jointly controlled entities and corresponding adjustments
to the gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries reported
in the consolidated income statement.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The overall
strategy of the Group remained unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
balances and cash and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the associated risks. Based on recommendations of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and share buy-backs.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments
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2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Financial Assets EHMEE
Held-for-trading investments HEEERE 986 47
Held-to-maturity investments BEARRIHKRE 23,660 11,610
Derivative financial instruments TTESRMTE 4,172 2,938
Loans and receivables Bk ERFIA
(including bank (BRERITESRLIRE)
balances and cash) 557,322 617,926
Available-for-sale financial assets AI{tHES R EE 74,509 44,892
Financial Liabilities SREE
At amortised cost R SHA AR 94,939 113,594
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets,
derivative financial instruments, loan receivable from
a jointly controlled entity, trade and other receivables,
held-for-trading investments, amounts due from jointly
controlled entities, bank balances and cash and trade and
other payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by several
subsidiaries of the Company in currencies other than
those subsidiaries’ functional currencies. In addition,
certain portion of the loan receivable from a jointly
controlled entity, available-for-sale financial assets, held-
to-maturity investments, derivative financial instruments,
held-for-trading investments, trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash and trade and bills payables
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:
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Assets Liabilities
BE af&
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F _—_T-TF ZB— - _T-THF
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T Tt Fr Tt
United States Dollars  EJt([ZFiT])

("USD") 29,007 35,967 3,037 4,381
Euro (“"EUR") BT (TBEoT ) 364 1,293 - —
Malaysian Ringgit BRI FE]

("MYR") 3,000 - - -
Japanese Yen (“JPY”)  HEN(THE]) 774 1,162 = 41,006
New Taiwan Dollars Fak(zsharl)

("NTD") 302,329 193,638 150 4,317

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency

hedging policy. However, the management monitors

foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of USD,
EUR, MYR, JPY and NTD.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2010: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2010: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2010: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A negative
number below indicates a decrease in profit where HK$
strengthens 5% (2010: 5%) against the relevant currency.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

MHEREABREEEE
(%)

=R BR

\ms

A}
I
i
S

(4
LA

BRE D
AEBXERRET
B A ENEERR -

i

&)

u
f

BT - S

TREIAREE LB T EBINENE
RITBRS%(—F—FF : 5%)HBRE -
5%(ZF—FF  5%) RRAEEEEA
B H A B SN 2 fen DEE R B BT R O UK
BL®  WAETEELERSIER L
BTG - MREDMEREAINEE
ENREEERIRE - XYHINEETD
5%(—F—FF : 5%) B ABRKERF
REODHE - T?EE’JE%MQT@?T'JEA/%E
AR THES% (2 —FF : 5%
BB A R 1@%71%@%@1?%52135%
(ZT—FF :5%)  MIEHEN R H

For a 5% (2010: 5%) weakening of HK$ against the relevant nEKEREERNTZE M FXHE
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact ERAISIESK o
on the profit and other equity, and the balances below
would be positive.
usD EUR MYR JPY NTD
EYv BT e BT maw
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET FHT THET FHT
Profit or loss before tax R AT A BB
- 2011 ——ZE——F (10,050) (206) (390) (4) (4,230)
- 2010 ——T—FF (11,496) (679) - 179 (2,367)
In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is %ﬂi R R E LRSI A R MR E

unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BXERBREEREEEREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
Interest rate risk = & pan

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable-rate loan receivable from a jointly
controlled entity, deposits with bank and held-to-maturity
investments and is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and held-to-
maturity investments for the year ended 31 July 2011.
To mitigate the impact of interest rate fluctuations, the
Group continually assesses and monitors the exposure
to interest rate risk.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point (2010: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates have been 50 basis points (2010: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’'s profit before tax would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$770,000 (2010:
HK$608,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate loan
receivable from a jointly controlled entity, deposits with
bank and held-to-maturity investments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities and investment in warrants. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to price risks at the end of reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity securities and
warrants had been 5% (2010: 5%) higher/lower:

- pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 July 2011 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$70,000
(2010: HK$3,000) as a result of the changes in fair
values of held-for-trading investments and derivative
financial instruments; and

- investments revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$3,611,000 (2010:
HK$1,643,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed available-for-sale
financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z=—ZT——FtA=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors, financial
institutions and investment counterparties will default
on their obligations to repay the amounts owing to the
Group, resulting in a loss to the Group. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in the event that the counterparties
fail to perform their obligations at end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 77%
(2010: 69%) of the total trade and bills receivables as at
31 July 2011.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 26% (2010:
23%) and 55% (2010: 48%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds and held-to-maturity
investments is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.
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and maintains a level of deposits with bank and bank
balances and cash deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

All financial liabilities are non-interest bearing and their
maturity dates are within one year or on demand.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

ii)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments; and

iii)  the fair value of derivative financial instruments is
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, use is made of discounted cash
flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for
the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or
short-term maturities.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or

7.
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liability that are not based on observable market data B EHABBENGHERITEE -
(unobservable inputs).
31 July 2011
—E=——%+tHA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
=—F == st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&T F&T
Financial assets at FVTPL EBEAFEYREAE
BRAKEN
SREE
Held-for-trading investments RIEEEREA 986 - 986
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIT A 418 3,754 4,172
Available-for-sale AftHESREE
financial assets
Listed equity securities FTIRAREE S 72,227 - 72,227
73,631 3,754 77,385
—E——FFH KFEEEZERERAA \
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. B EREEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
pOSitiOh (Continued)

(%)

MR E TR R ER D F
EBEitE &)

31 July 2010
—E-THE+HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F—E F_E RET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&TT FHAT FAT
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEIRIERE
NEENEMEE
Held-for-trading investments FIEEBERE 47 - 47
Derivative financial instruments TTESRMTE 4 2,934 2,938
Available-for-sale AHHEEREE
financial assets
Listed equity securities R AN RE S 32,860 = 32,860
32,911 2,934 35,845

There have been no transfers between Levels 1 and 2
during the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=-ZT——FtA=+—HILFE

TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8.
INCOME

Turnover represents sales value of goods sold to customers

ERFREMBEERA

EXRBEEETERPNEREEEERTT
0 HEBRKIBET

net of discounts, sales tax and value added tax.

Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: FRDHERWERNT -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Turnover ¥
Sale of goods HEEm 787,348 812,093
Other operating income H i a A
Interest income FEWA
— Bank deposits —RITHERK 4,495 4,562
— Held-to-maturity investments —BEEIHKRE 180 363
Total interest income MBI A 4258 4,675 4,925
Increase in fair value of KEMER DAL
investment property 1,879 -
Investment income from PTESBIAER
derivative financial TEWA
instruments 364 619
Gross rental income (Note a) HeWALLZE(MzTa) 592 =
Fair value gain on PTESMITAEATE
derivative financial Wz
instruments 1,127 2,934
Dividend income SRIN 509 1,695
Gain on disposal of HERHELESH
available-for-sale BENE=
financial assets 11,750 -
Gain on disposal of HERIEFEERE WS
held-for-trading
investments 112 -
Gain on disposal of derivative HETES R T AW
financial instruments 205 -
Government grants BB &
— Amortisation of deferred — ERNIRER A B
income for the year (Note 36) (FF5E36) 24 23
— Grants related to expenses — HLRESR R EAD AR A
recognised as other bRk kA
operating income (Note b) (FF5ED) 1,592 1,853
Reversal of impairment losses BRI EKE 5 R
recognised in respect HRERERE
of trade receivables 119 190
Sundry income IR 3,531 5,235
26,479 17,474
Total revenues =ABEE 813,827 829,567
—E-—E5H AHEEERRER2F | 159
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8. ¥R EHMKLZULA @)
INCOME (Continued)

Notes: Mzt -
a) An analysis of the Group's net rental income is as a) REFHRSWAFHBHDHWAT -
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Gross rental income He W ABTE 592 -
Less: Outgoings W X (GTATTER )
(included in
administrative expenses) (105) -
Net rental income HeWAFHE 487 -
b) For the year ended 31 July 2011, the amount represented b) HE_Z——FtA=1+—HLtFE"
unconditional grants from Huzhou Municipal People’s BREZEERNT ARBTAEEBF
Government for subsidising the operation of high BElmBHR L ENBKERDE - &
technology enterprise in the PRC. For the year ended 31 2T ZTFLA=+—HIFE B
July 2010, the amount represented unconditional grants BHEER = e@RERBEEB T E
from Dongguan Social Security Authority for subsidising RERBREROEIEHFHBIE -

the unemployment insurance contribution in the PRC.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 9.

The Group's revenue, results, assets and liabilities are
primarily attributable to the manufacturing and sale of
silicone rubber and related products, of which information
is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker, chief executive officer, for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment. The directors of
the Company consider that there is only one operating
and reportable segment for the Group.

Revenue from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from
its major products:

N\
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7 EE R

AEEMbE 28 BERAGBTIZR
KERENMHEVRBIAHEEmMR - T2
LEARRE(BITTHAREL) @ € MERMZ
FEMUDREERLFERE - NAF]
EERR AEERA—ARLERATR

=NV G

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHTT
Keypads for consumer BEFHEmIRE

electronic devices 327,609 355,942

Keypads for computers B R B E KRG
and notebooks 240,553 258,477
Lifestyle products AVEEm 74,935 14,114
Keypads for mobile phones FHeirig 58,835 122,705
Automotive peripheral products — JTEEEE R 32,270 36,559
Others Hity 53,146 24,296
787,348 812,093

SE-—FER AFEEZERERQA
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. opER®)

Geographical information @ E R

The Group's operations are principally located in the PRC AREBHLETBMRPELES -
and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and AEEMIINSRERE R EEEIERE
information about its non-current assets by geographical EEREBEMEHEI D ER 7
location of the assets are detailed below: mr

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
ShERE F s FRBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——% —F-TH —¥——F -FT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT DT FER  TEn

The PRC (excluding B (BBERIN)

Hong Kong) 452,769 426,713 396,954 374,205
Hong Kong e 145,040 151,968 16,604 10,297
Other Asian countries  EfbgaHBEXR 154,703 197,355 9,852 -
The Americas M 24,684 25,076 = =
Europe BUM 10,152 10,981 1,442 1,528

787,348 812,093 424,852 386,030

Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale financial ENBEEYTRREAIHEES/HE
assets, held-to-maturity investments and loan receivable E -EAEIEEEREK—BLRE
from a jointly controlled entity. SRR R SR
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10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the
total sales of the Group are derived from sales of silicone

\
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B B110%HY

EPWmNREYBREREEREE -

rubber and related products in both years and are as FHyWF -
follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A PR 155,351 192,014
Customer B Y= 101,538 100,479
Customer C (Note) PR N/A FiEH 97,971

Note:  The corresponding revenue does not contribute over Kt BEBRURGAEBRREZ_—ZT——
10% of the total sales of the Group in the year ended F+rA=+—HIEFEZIHEBTE
31 July 2011. L10% °
OTHER EXPENSES 10. R
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Exchange losses P& 5 518 3,665 2,082
Impairment loss recognised in HAMEHESREE
respect of available-for-sale REVREEE
financial assets 1,235 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment ZEER 150 466
Fair value loss on FEBEEREAR
held-for-trading investments NEREE 22 =
Loss on disposal of derivative HETE ST AERE
financial instruments - 2,369
Impairment loss recognised M - BB RERE
in respect of property, ERRBEEE
plant and equipment 84 -
Loss on disposal of HEREEERE
held-for-trading investments B EI e - 151
Bad debts written off B i sH = AR - 4
5,156 5,072

B —FER KFEEZERARAA |
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES 1. FiI8H (ER)BEX

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Hong Kong Profits Tax FBMEH
— current year —ARFE 17 21
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR
— current year —AREE 7,901 10,284
— overprovision in prior years —iBAFERERE = (438)
7,901 9,846
MCIT BRFIPrS IR
— overprovision in prior — BT FERER S (M)
years (Note) (9,267) (9,917)
Deferred taxation R IR
— current year (Note 37) — RFE(M7E37) (305) 3,504
(1,654) 3,454

Note:  Due to no formal tax assessment notice has been
issued by the Macau tax authority and the expiry
of five years time-barred period in accordance with
the Macau Complementary Income Tax (Decree Law
21/78/M) Article 55, the management of the Company
assessed that the overprovision for MCIT in prior years
of approximately HK$9,267,000 (2010: HK$9,917,000) is
written back and credited to profit or loss during the
year ended 31 July 2011.
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11.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES 11. Fi8%8i (%)X (&)

(Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Ta Yang Group (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited was
incorporated as a commercial offshore entity in Macau
and is exempt from MCIT.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. Accordingly, provision for PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25%
of estimated assessable profits for both periods, except
disclosed as follows:

- Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial
Company Limited (“Dongguan Tay Yang”), Huzhou
Ta Yang Electronic Technology Company Limited
("Huzhou Ta Yang”) and Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber
Plastic Industrial Company Limited ("Dongguan Tai
Yang") are foreign investment enterprises and are
entitled to tax concessions whereby the profit for
the first two financial years beginning with the first
profit-making year is exempted from income tax in
the PRC and the profit for each of the subsequent
three years is taxed at 50% of the prevailing tax
rate.

—  The first profit-making year of Dongguan Tay Yang is
2005. Accordingly, Dongguan Tay Yang is exempted
from PRC income tax from 1 January 2005 to 31
December 2006 and is entitled to a 50% exemption
of income tax from 1 January 2007 to 31 December
2009. From 1 January 2010 onwards, provision for
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for Dongguan Tay Yang
is calculated at 25% of its estimated assessable
profits.

M EF R EEFEHIBRFE R EET
FEERL )5 M B9 16.5%FTH ©

REFSEHEMABRZESMMAAR
AR AEEBAMMHAERE KB
BRSNS -

RESBORFIREERERBE)ERARE

RPIREMA L ABER R AR - &R
REARFIFTS MBI ©
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BN REERAEGBORERGS - - &
MBARR _ZEZN\F—H—BRHH
K F25% - At - FEME QR T E
EEMRBHRBREZZMERENGTE
AR M B 25%ET E - NPT IREE
BRI -

- REFFBRBHMERAB(RSE
TAED MM KXFEFRERERA
B(HMAF ) BRE K F K2
HmARRAB(R=KF]D B
BERE AIZABERR &t
B EENFE LR B ERRFE
BN E] ER e AN BT ISA  B&
B =FBFHR N BT ERF
R o
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St —HHEREANTEME
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(Continued)

11.INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSES

- In September 2008, Huzhou Ta Yang is recognised
as an approved technology enterprise and is eligible
to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2009

to 31 December 2011.

—  Thefirst profit-making year of Dongguan Tai Yang is
2008. Accordingly, Dongguan Tai Yang is exempted
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax from 1 January
2008 to 31 December 2009 and is entitled to a 50%
exemption of income tax from 1 January 2010 to 31

December 2012.

11.

FrE® (R

- RIZZTNFNA - AMKFER
AARERMER - WAIR-ZEET
NF—A—BRE_ZT——F+=

A=+ —BHRZR15%EER

- %%ﬁﬁéﬁéflﬁﬂﬁrﬁ_y7
NE - Bt REXFE =
F-A—AEE_ZTZF hi-f— ﬂ
=+ —HEEReSATBERERR
wH - WE_T-—TF-—HA—HE
E_T——Ft_A=1—HHH
%ﬁSO%E’JFﬁ SERR

The income tax (credit) expenses for the year can be FAMFHR(ER) X EBEE WaRm
reconciled to the profit before tax per the consolidated FABR AT E A SRR T
income statement as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit before tax Br A5 BT a1 40,990 70,720
Tax expense at rates applicable &G/ 5AE & & a1
to profits in the jurisdictions BRATETERN
concerned HISFX 7,034 26,560
Tax effect of income BERTLAL
not subject to tax s (1,160) (2,482)
Tax effect of expenses not TSR] HIR A 75 7 2 19
deductible for tax purposes MBTE 1,721 1,574
Tax effect of share of AE—[EEE A RIEED
result of an associate mBTE 14 (63)
Tax effect of share of result AME—FHRREHEE
of a jointly controlled entity FENMBTE 88 =
Overprovision in prior years BT FEBERE (9.267) (10,359)
Tax effect of tax losses *ﬁﬁ;@ﬁﬂ‘%%?ﬁﬁ@
not recognised MBTE 1,576 120
Effect of tax exemptions B P A R A
granted to PRC subsidiaries %RIE/W%E']E”—* (1,660) (5.475)
Utilisation of previously BABEARER
unrecognised tax losses MIEE = (6,425)
Income tax (credit) FAMSHER)AX
expenses for the year (1,654) 3,454

Details of deferred taxation are shown in Note 37.
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12. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 12.

During the year ended 31 July 2011, the Group entered
into an agreement with Sunviewtec Inc., an independent
third party, for subscription of new shares in Ocean Genius
Group Limited (“Ocean Genius”) which was then a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. After the subscription,
the Group and Sunviewtec Inc. each holds 50% equity
interests in Ocean Genius and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Huzhou Ri Jun Electronic Technology Company Limited
("Huzhou Ri Jun”) (collectively referred to “Ocean Genius
Group”). Accordingly, the Group lost control over Ocean
Genius Group and the subscription by Sunviewtec Inc.
constitutes a deemed disposal of 50% equity interest in
Ocean Genius Group by the Group.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was

HEHER B LA

REBEE-_ZE——FtA=1+—HLHF
B ANEEEE T E = FSunviewtec
Inc REERAAEEZEMB AR
Ocean Genius Group L|m|ted ((Ocean
Genius TR EI - RRBEH
8% » ANEE KSunviewtec Inc. {4 H
Ocean Genius& & 2 & [f 8 2 &) 5 M

BREFRIEARARAMBEE]) (&t
[ Ocean Genius 5 E ] )AI50%H% A #E
= o Eit - AEEKEEOcean Genius
£ B R HIHE - BSunviewtec Inc.fEH
RIEBERAREARER N E0cean Genius
S ES0% A o

LRGN EERBEIEDN -

lost:
HK$'000
TET
Property, plant and equipment ME - WERZE 10,507
Construction in progress FETIE 35
Inventories FE 1,666
Trade and other receivables U E SRR R R B A e W SRR 935
Bank balances and cash IRITESREIR S 3,281
Trade and other payables B SRR M E MR FIE (5,433)
Amount due to the Group RN AL B F0E (6,046)
Net assets disposed of FrHEEEFE 4,945
Reclassification of cumulative BRIEH EMEB A RIRE R 5T
translation reserve upon fE R FEENDBEEER
deemed disposal of
subsidiaries to profit or loss (386)
4,559
Gain on deemed disposal RIELENB AT KR
of subsidiaries 2,249
Total consideration RBEERE 6,808
Satisfied by: HATIEBER
Fair value retained in jointly RERZEHERAREN A FE
controlled entities 6,808
Net cash outflow arising BIEHELATIER E4H
on deemed disposal: eI FER ¢
Bank balances and Rt &ERITER IR S
cash disposed of (3,281)
—E——EEH AEEERRERAF
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

12. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 12.

(Continued)

The portion gain attributable to recognising the investment
retained in the former subsidiaries at their fair value at
the date of control is lost was as follow:

RIELEMHB LT @)

FERILN R LG E B A FERE
B AT BT /BB X R B V3R B B 1A MO ek
AT

HK$'000

TET

Fair value of residual interest FlspiE = AT E 6,808
50% of net assets derecognised B A& IEHERE EFEAS0% (2,473)
Portion of gain Wzs 35> 4,335

For the period from 1 August 2010 to the date of deemed
disposal, the above subsidiaries were mainly engaged
in manufacturing of keypads in the PRC. The revenue
contributed by the subsidiaries was approximately
HK$1,991,000 and loss of approximately HK$596,000 was
included in the Group's profit for the year ended 31 July
2011. The net cash outflow of the subsidiaries disposed
of amounted to approximately HK$5,537,000 during the
period prior to deemed disposal.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (o i
BB mERMEE
For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z =T ——FtA=+—HIFE
ROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FREF
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Profit for the year has FERER TR (GTA)
been arrived at after A& :
charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration ZER I & 1,180 1,118
Amortisation of prepaid lease HARNHEFIREH
payments 1,393 1,298
Costs of inventories sold (Note a) BEFE/KA(MzFa) 637,390 635,052
Allowance for inventories FEREGIAHEEKE)
(included in cost of sales) 228 390
Reversal of allowance for BOFEREGTAEERE)
inventories (included
in cost of sales) - (3,895)
Share of taxation of an associate Mk — & N AIFH1AE = 426
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZBITE
plant and equipment 44,515 41,415
Directors’ emoluments (Note 17) EEME (KIE17) 8,402 10,536
Impairment losses recognised FHEWE R R E A
in respect of trade and FEW R IBRER B R A
other receivables (Note 28) B (Hi5E28) 508 355
Research and development W EE RS (Fftb)
costs (Note b) 6,941 10,028
Payments under operating BRI REFHEE
leases in respect of land HEB TR
and buildings 8,597 8,090
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BTN (T REEEHE)
emoluments) (Note 16) (MisE16) 320,023 293,126

Notes:

(a)

Cost of inventories sold included approximately
HK$302,903,000 (2010: HK$282,633,000) relating to staff
costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges
which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above.

During the year ended 31 July 2011, research and
development costs included staff costs of approximately
HK$2,561,000 (2010: HK$5,643,000) for the Group's
employees engaged in research and development
activities, which are also included in staff costs as disclosed
in Note 16.

EEFERABRERETRA
ERXLREEHEERAHENSH
#9302,903,000% T( = T — T £ :
282,633,000/ 7L) - BRASREITEFTA
R EXBURENBREENA -

REE-_T——FtA=+—HIF
B MERARIEREHEEHNASE
EE 8 B TR ZA492,561,0008T( =%
—Z4F : 5643,000870) * ZESEEI
Rt AMEE16FT BRI B TAAR -

—E-—FEH AFEEZRARAF |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RARM

For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

14. DIVIDENDS RECOGNISED AS
DISTRIBUTION DURING THE YEAR

14.

FARIR/DIKHRE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Dividend recognised as FAERRD IR
distribution during the year:
2010 final dividend declared EERRENZZE—FF
and paid of HK$0.06 RNEARR B8 1%0.0678 7T
(2009: HK$0.06) per share —ETETNF  0.06/57T) 46,707 48,000

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK$0.06 (2010: HK$0.06) per share for
the year ended 31 July 2011. The proposed final dividend
will be paid on or before 28 December 2011 to those
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s
register of members on 14 December 2011.

This proposed dividend is subject to approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during both years.

15.

AAREEEZERBEE_T——F A
=+ —HILEFEIRMNFR R EF0.06
BIL(ZZT—TF :0068T) o BIKK
HEEHEN —ZE—F+=-A=+N\H
KRR TR 22— F+=ZA+ 1
SR /NCT S )

ARRBR B AFRRREREBRRBFEAR
SLHE HERE -

BRAEF

(a) EIN
SRERRFEREEEAAT
i A FE A % RS A B 377 25 AR
HIETF IS 8EE -

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Profit for the year RRARER ANEIERT]
attributable to owners of (F#&1)
the Company (HK$'000) 42,644 67,266
Weighted average number B #{7EiBARA INE
of ordinary shares FHE(FR)
in issue ('000) 777,863 790,610
Basic earnings per FRERZF (B
share (HK cents) 5.48 8.51

170 |
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has one
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share

/

\

BE

15. BB X2

(b) #8
SRIA T EHR2 BN
S B AT AR B TS0 o
BRIETFIBGHE - AR~
B B PR -

Anniversary

options.
2011 2010
ZE——fF —T-EF
Profit for the year ZAYNCIE ZE PN
attributable to owners of  J&E#|(FET)
the Company (HK$'000) 42,644 67,266
Weighted average number & 217X @A A0 I
of ordinary shares FE(FAR)
in issue ("000) 777,863 790,610
Effect of dilutive potential BEEBRMNES
ordinary shares ('000) FE(TR) 421 1,183
Weighted average number FLAGHE G iREE & F)
of ordinary shares for B AR
diluted earnings per FHH(FR)
share ('000) 778,284 791,793
Diluted earnings per FREFRAN GBI
share (HK cents) 5.48 8.50

16. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

16. ETRA (T EEEEHE)

2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T

Salaries, allowances and e AN EMEA
other benefits 294,298 277,814

Retirement benefit schemes RIREFET B K

contribution 23,404 12,274
Share-based payments VARR 7 2 B 5 B9 1T 3K 2,321 3,038
320,023 293,126

—E-—EEHR AFEEERBERAF |
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BEZ=_ZT—F+tA=+—HIFE

16. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING 16. ETEA(TEIFESINE)

172

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTYS)
(Continued)

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined
contribution schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance which are available to
qualified employees. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently
administered funds. Monthly contributions made by the
subsidiaries are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated
under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities
in the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this country
participate in respective government retirement benefit
schemes (the "Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are
requiredto contribute tothe Schemesto fundthe retirement
benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions made to
the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the
PRC are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the Schemes.

Employees employed by the Group's operations in Macau
Special Administrative Region (“MSAR") are members
of government-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the MSAR government. The MSAR operations
are required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the MSAR government is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by
the relevant authorities of the PRC, the retirement scheme
operated by the MSAR government and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in Note 38.

(&)

BENMBARRERERIEATRS
RGPS A B E BRI EBMHNG
gl  ZEHENEERBYLEREESH
B ENBARNEESR - MEBRQFE
FRARERFMRANETBED LHIR
HERAAR TE /] ARV B E R ER (10E A ) 1B

K o

RIETEARERNVRL - AEEHE
PP B X B 2 B AR B BT B R IR AR AU R
B ([ZEE ) IMBARZA IR Z
FFTEMEHER . RABEREBRREINI
BHREES - MZEFTEELOER
TR BERPIFTANERFMRANE
TEALUFE HEEHEERARRR
KEEXNBERARE - AEEHRZF
AHEME - R IR E L FTEI
FRIE R o

AEBRORPIR BT (DRI E )
ST PR A B 1R B AR PR R U A
SHRARENE B (BRI FREBFR
SRR o PORFIHRFIR S B K IEAR
FZRKENEEEAFHERER - &
BREENERES - BRULTRMSEREK
FIFTEERRIREREEIM S - AKE
MR EEAREZABIREEDER -

BRARBHNEIHREARER+TEAR
ERRYZEFE - RFVSR TR
SRR Bl R BB RS A E B AR
FHEIEH AR o

ARBRTAKEREBRENFER
iNGE R



-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED A
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z=—ZT——FtA=+—HIFE

N\

17. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 17. EEREREEEMS
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the EffsEMNILB(ZE—ZTF: +
nine (2010: ten) directors are as follows: B)EEZENMeHIMT
For the year ended 31 July 2011 BE-Z——FtHA=+—HLEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus contributions  payments Total
BE FoBE  BREL BB URBA @zt
REfMERN fElS  EROGR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR FiEn TiEn

Executive directors HTES
Huang Sheng-Shun =] - 1,200 1,100 12 220 2,532
Huang Te-Wei EER - 712 410 24 146 1,292
Lin Hung-Ming HRH - 908 525 14 158 1,605
Wong Tak Leung EER - 720 260 12 152 1,144
Wu Th Chen (Note) REA(HET) - 891 59 12 207 1,169
Non-executive directors F#H{TES
Kirk Yang BIER 90 - - - 6 96
Wu lh Chen (Note) REH () 90 = = = = 90
Independent BUENTES

non-executive

directors
Yeung Chi Tat B 180 - - - 20 200
Hsieh Yu #in 120 - - - 20 140
Jou Yow-Jen BHy 120 - - - 14 134

600 4,431 2,354 74 943 8,402
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

17. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 July 2010

17. EEREREEEMNS 2

(a) EEME(#)
BE-Z-ZFtA=+—HLFE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary schemes ~ Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contributions  payments Total
e He EH KiEA RINER SARR 1R &% &t
REfMEM AN EROEK
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TR TR TR TR TER
Executive directors HITES
Huang Sheng-Shun B - 1,384 1,300 12 322 3,018
Huang Te-Wei aER - 731 285 12 206 1,234
Lin Hung-Ming R - 948 670 12 28 1,858
Wong Tak Leung B = 715 255 12 217 1199
W Th Chen REH - 1,361 880 12 299 2,552
Non-executive director ~ FHTEES
Kirk Yang BEH 180 - - - 25 205
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive
directors
Yeung Chi Tat htE 180 - - - 25 205
Hsieh Yu Bkt 120 - - - 2% 145
Jou Yow-Jen (appointed ~ AHL(R=TENE
on 29 December 2009 ~ TZAZTHBEEE) 71 - - - - 71
Chuang Hong-Jen HEC(R-TENF
(resigned on TZAZTAREE)
29 December 2009) 49 - - - = 49
600 5139 3,390 60 1,347 10,536
Note:  Mr. Wu |h Chen ceased to be the executive Hiit - REBREEB T ——F_R

director of the Company and Chief Executive

Officer and was re-designated as a non-executive

director of the Company with effect from 1

February 2011 for a term of three years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The discretionary bonus for both years was
determined by reference to the performance of
the directors and the profitability of the Group.

On 1 February 2011, Mr. Kirk Yang and the Company
signed a deed of waiver whereas Mr. Kirk Yang
agreed to forgo to receive directors’ fee from the
Company commencing on 1 February 2011.

Other than disclosed above, no other directors

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 31 July 2011 and 2010.

Senior management’s emoluments

All of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group for the years ended 31
July 2011 and 2010 were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above.

No emoluments have been paid by the Group
to the directors and senior management as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 July 2011 and 2010.

N\

//’

Anniversary

BE

\

17. EEREREEEMNS 2

(a)

EEMME e
MEEEORBEANC2RE
EXBRAEEMANE HE
BE

RZE——F_HA—H BEBEE
HEEARRRILHARREY  REZ
24 BEBEEREE T ——
F-_A—BERERARTRNE
FHE -

B DA EEE S - BIEESENE
E-T——FR-F-TFLH=
T RLEFERELRBREEM
<

EREEEMS
BE-_T—FR-FT-TFtH
=t-BLEFE  AREAEES
HALTZBRARFES @ HEWD
B 8 3

REBE-_ZE——FR-_FT-FTFL
A=+—HLFE  AEELER
EESREREXNME  (ER
IR 51 1% S5 A0 A S AN A AN S (5 B 1) 42
By SRR AR (E -

SE-—FER AFEEZERERQA
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=F——

FELA=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. ¥ - MEKR®E

Properties Furniture,
held for Motor Plant and fixtures and  Leasehold
own use vehicles  machinery  equipment improvements Total
BEERNE RE  HEREE HR #EB REmE h
P& %1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TR TR TAT TR
COST KA E
At 1 August 2009 REZNENA-B 102973 6,119 276,286 63,527 58,485 507,390
Exchange realignment B 5 SR 1,237 72 3,335 736 681 6,061
Additions AE 1,277 936 23,243 2,611 3,124 31,191
Transfer from construction in BREATETR
progress (Note 19) (K#E19) 19,772 - 4,402 728 - 24,902
Disposals HE - (546) 9.776) (63) - (10,385)
At 31 July 2010 RZZ-ZELA
== 125,259 6,581 297,490 67,539 62,290 559,159
Exchange realignment [ A% 4,836 313 14,917 3,399 3,228 26,693
Additions NE 162 945 14,816 2,165 10,254 28,342
Transfer from construction in ERERRTR
progress (Note 19) (PIzE19) = - 23,159 1,039 2,089 26,287
Transfer to investment ERTNENE
property (Note 21) (PzE21) (21,877) - - - - (21,877)
Disposals HE = (1,017) (5,433) (543) - (6,993)
Eliminated on deemed disposal S {EHEMEAF
of subsidiaries (Note 12) E2ap(CiRab)) - - (7,749) (263) (2,760) (10772)
At 31 July 2011 RZE——%+A
=t-A 108,380 6,822 337,200 73,336 75,101 600,839
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ RiHTERFE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 August 2009 RZZENENA—A 10,751 3,29 124,306 34,053 31,264 203,673
Exchange realignment [ A% 139 36 1,558 456 393 2,582
Provided for the year EREE 4,957 613 22915 7,833 5,097 41415
Eliminated on disposals HERHH = (491) (8,266) (63) - (8,820)
At 31 July 2010 RZE-SF LA
=t-A 15,847 3,457 140,513 42279 36,754 238,850
Exchange realignment & 53R 722 164 7,159 2,187 1,863 12,095
Provided for the year FREE 5,050 756 24,593 7,993 6,123 44,515
Impairment loss recognised RERHERA
in profit and loss HEER 84 - - - - 84
Transfer to investment BREERENE
property (Note 21) (PzE21) (1,137) - - - - 1,137)
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - (778) (4,790) (410) - 5978)
Eliminated on deemed disposal ~ R{ERENBAF]
of subsidiaries (Note 12) k8 (f12) = = (104) (48) (113) (265)
At 31 July 2011 RZZ——5F+A
== 20,566 3,59 167,371 52,001 44,627 288,164
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 July 2011 RZE——%
+A=t+-H 87,814 3223 169,829 21,335 30,474 312,675
At 31 July 2010 RZT-%F
+A=+-H 109,412 3124 156,977 25,260 25,536 320,309
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z =T ——FtA=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives less residual value as follows:

Properties held for own use situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion.

Estimated useful life

18.

/

Anniversary

BE

M BENREE

W% - BRE R R IR B M E AR
T e A RS EESE
8 -

ME i ERHER R REARERD

THHI R BAE R RIE A F 8 (52 B H31850
FRINBEENE -

Residual value

5t Al 68 A S 28 FeREE
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%
TE 54
Plant and machinery 10 years 10%
TR 5= Bt 25 106
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
BRI~ RENRME 54

Leasehold improvements

Shorter of the lease term

and 5 to 10 years -

AEyRERE

The carrying value of properties held for own use shown
above comprises of:

FHHA KR 5ZE 104 -
LABRKS & Ak

Ll EE BMENREERRE

2011 2010
—E-——F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHTT

Medium-term lease FHEE
—in Hong Kong — (I RES 9,051 9,287
— outside Hong Kong —BAIM[E 78,763 100,125
87,814 109,412

During the year ended 31 July 2011, the Group transferred
a factory building previously included in properties held
for own use to investment property. The directors of the
Company conducted a review of the factory building at
the date of change in use and compared the carrying
amount of the building transferred with its fair value.
The review has showed a decrease in the carrying
value and accordingly, impairment loss of HK$84,000
(2010: Nil) has been recognised in respect of properties
held for own use.

RBE_Z——FtA=+—HL#F
B AEE&-HEESARIEFERY
ENTITHAEEREREYE - AAF]
EECRAENEE A TRMAREETT
EH > W HZECEROAENKREE
HEEQNFELEK - BRABTR  REE
BFITEE - EHitt - CRSIEE BYEE
FROR (B &5 1884,000/8 TL( — T — T 4 :
F) e

—E-—FEH AFEEZRARAF |
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RARM

For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. 21 R&

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 August HANAA—AB 1,916 18,740
Exchange realignment RS 56 38
Additions NE 25,099 8,040

Transfer to property, plant and  $EEE¥Y) « KE K&
equipment (Note 18) L (FIRE18) (26,287) (24,902)

Eliminated on deemed disposal R{EH &I B A A

of subsidiaries (Note 12) B 88 (BIRE12) (35) =
At 31 July BntA=+—~ 749 1,916

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use
rights in respect of land located in the PRC held under
medium term leases, on which the Group's factory plants
and staff quarters are built. The remaining period of
the land use rights of the Group ranges from 40 to 47

20. ASHERE

BENHEERRBREA BN EL RS
HHEERAN T (REEEZBE L -
BREBME&RBITES)RII0ERENK
AAE o ANEE L ERENFIRIRN

FAOEATFERF -

years.

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBMEELI DT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Current assets MENEE 1,378 1,301
Non-current assets IEmBNEE 59,924 57,106
61,302 58,407
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z =T ——FtA=+—HIFE
21.INVESTMENT PROPERTY 21. REW=
HK$'000
FHTT
FAIR VALUE DFE
At 1 August 2009, R-FTHAENA—A -
31 July 2010 and 1 August 2010 —F—T&+A=+—FH
K=ZZFE-FFN\H—H _
Transfer from properties EEAREaRME
held for own use 20,740
Transfer from prepaid lease HEaBENEENIE
payments 3,209
Change in fair value recognised ~ R4RE Wz R HERHY
in the consolidated NEEES
income statement 1,879
Exchange realignment HE 5, R B 682
At 31 July 2011 RZE——F+HA=+—H 26,510

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 July 2011, the Group transferred
a factory building previously classified as property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$20,740,000 and
HK$3,209,000 respectively to investment property. The fair
value of the investment property on the date of transfer
was amounted to approximately HK$23,949,000 which was
valued by BMI. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions. BMI have appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

The carrying value of investment property shown above are
situated in the PRC and held under medium-term lease.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment property.

The fair value of the Group's investment property at 31
July 2011 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by BMI. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions.

(a)

(b)

REBE-Z——FtA=+—HILF
B AEES—HEESBRAYME |
B RREHTHMAE R REMEER
R (8RB 2 Al 49 420,740,000 7T &
3,209,000 ) ERHEREM R - NE
BAH - RMABRHZREVERFE
B {B.49 /23,949,000 7T © s B (LB
T2 ZRERME FoR f R 2 6 32
SEBRTSRIZETE - PMABRAES
BER RO SRR E AU T
HERMZER -

A EPIRIR B M E R BREERI N T E
WIAREIHERF

AEEREEHERARARRIMES L
ARG ENIE Y EESIG AN TER
XEtE - D BRARIIEREYE -

REBRBEMER-_Z——F A=+
—HERFETIARMABERE BT
MNEEAERMET - ZRAMEDNSE
MR E R R B U RO R S ERE
MIGEIREE
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BHZ=—T——FtA=+—HIFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise:

22. HHEEHEE

AHhESREERR

Notes 2011 2010
k=3 —2——f —T—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT THET
Listed securities: FHES
- Equity securities listed —EBABIM[E
outside Hong Kong, ETRRARES -
at fair value /NS T (a) & (b) 72,227 32,860
Unlisted securities: LR
— Equity securities — IRAFE 5
- At cost — LK AME () 2,604 12,032
— Less: provision for —R BB R
impairment loss (d) (322) -
2,282 12,032
74,509 44,892
Notes: 5t
(a) The fair value of the above listed securities is determined (a) it FESFAATEERERR S
based on the quoted market bid prices available on FIAISHTIS R EABETE - RBE
the relevant stock exchange. During the year ended 31 ZE——FtA=T+—HILFE AR
July 2011, the directors of the Company considered the RAIEER R LMEFNMEARETK -
significant decrease in market price of the listed securities Hit B E N RS W R KRR EREL
and an impairment loss of approximately HK$913,000 913,000 (ZEB—FF : F) -
(2010: Nil) was recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.
(b) Included in the above listed securities are investments (b) Lt FTESBIERMTEETERD

in Formosan Union Chemical Corp. (“Formosan”) of
approximately HK$17,201,000 (2010: Nil). Formosan is
a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is the common director of the
Company and Formosan.

Also, as at 31 July 2011, there are investments in Force
Mos Technology Company Limited (“Force Mos”) of
approximately HK$5,459,000 (2010: Nil). Force Mos is a
company listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange and there is
common director of a subsidiary of the Company and
Force Mos.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z =T ——FtA=+—HIFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

()

The unlisted equity securities are issued by private entities
incorporated in Taiwan. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of each reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 July 2011, two of the investee
companies are successfully listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. Accordingly, the Group re-measures the unlisted
equity securities from carrying amount of approximately
HK$12,032,000 to fair value of approximately HK$26,315,000
at the respective date of listing of shares in the investee
companies, with changes in fair value of approximately
HK$14,283,000 credited to investments revaluation reserve
in the year.

The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying
values of the unlisted equity securities and considered
that in light of the operating losses of an investee
and the market conditions, total impairment losses of
approximately HK$322,000 (2010: Nil) had been recognised
during the year. The directors of the Company were in the
opinion that the impairment was made based on their
best estimation with reference to the market situation and
circumstances of the equity securities.

Included in available-for-sale financial assets are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other than
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

a

N\

Anniversary

BE

22. HHEESHEE #)

()

JEETBRARE SRR B RN A SZ AL
AERET - SR FNEEAREHR
BRARBENE - WARZEES
NEBAFE[ABEEL - ARAE
ERRERNTEREENFHETE -

REBEE-Z——FtA=+—HLF
B - MEREHKRABKINNEEES
RS LT - Eit - AEBEEHER
FHlRAES - AERE#12,032,0007%
TEMEAKREHRARAKD EHE
% B BE) A T {EX926,315,0008 T+ A
A2 8 414,283,00078 705 A F R
RE B EE

AAREREERE L TRAEFAE
EE  TRBENEEHRAAELS
BEBREEITSRR - WAFARE
RREE BB 49322,0008 L (=T —
TFE ) ARAEERE ' RET
AERBELERAREBLHNTIHER R
RIEGTENSEGMETE

AHHESREERRE TIIAEHER
MIhEE R AN B SIER S5 ©

2011 2010

S i =7

‘000 '000

T3 T

NTD Ak 266,104 179,568
SR —EER AXEEZRERAF
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

23. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 23.&&5Z3HKE

Held-to-maturity investments comprise: HEZIMREBRE
2011 2010
—F——-F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T T
Unlisted debt securities IEEMERES
— Fixed-rate (Note a) —BEEFE(H5Ea) 12,050 =
— Variable-rate (Note b) —FBFIE(M5Eb) 11,610 11,610
23,660 11,610
Analysed for reporting MHmEELR DT -
purposes as:
Current assets MEEE 23,660 =
Non-current assets ERBEE = 11,610
23,660 11,610
Notes: HieE:

(@)  The fixed-rate unlisted debt securities carry interest rate
at 4.95% per annum and will mature in September 2011.

(b)  The variable-rate unlisted debt securities carry interest at
three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR")
plus 0.95% per annum, payable quarterly, and will mature
in May 2012.

() Includedin held-to-maturity investments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

(Bl TE | % IF b T A 15 3 SR R A 1 R 4.95
EitE  BHESHN_Z——%N1A

FH

FBARIE R EBEFE=1EARK
RITRZEFRE ([BZERTRZEF L) 0
0.95EMFEMEHE - BEMNEHEE
XAt R E——FR AR -

HAEZIHREBETIINEFEERED
DB AN BRI ERN S -

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

‘000 ‘000

Fr T

usb e 1,500 1,500
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE
24. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24. Rt EZ4IE@NERS
ENTITIES
2011 2010
—E——-F —T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost REMRG - LKA E 19,418 -
Share of post-acquisition result D MFUWEEEELE &
and exchange reserve b 5 95 =
19,513 -
Transfer to assets classified HBEESBEARBERE
as held for sale (Note 33) &E (M57E33) (2,772) -
16,741 -

At 31 July 2011, the Group had interests in the following

significant jointly controlled entities:

R-ZB——FtA=+—RH AEER
AT EZARZEHERDEAER

Proportion of

Nominal value  nominal value
Form of Place of of issued and  of issued
Name of business incorporation/  fully paid capital held
company structure operation share capital by the Group Principal activity
DEER EBRBEA EMERL, BRTRME  AREFSCRT IEXEK
Reny BRAHNEE RAEE MG LA
Ocean Genius Incorporated Hong Kong 10,836,000 50% Investment holding
shares of
HK$1 each
Ocean Genius RalizAvs BE 10,836,000f% 50% REAER
BREE
1B TR
Huzhou Ri Jun Established The PRC USD2,345,995 50% Manufacturing of keypads
WM BB FR3L HE 2345995%L  50% TERR
Ta Yang Agricode Incorporated Malaysia 10,000,000 50.1% Production and sales of
Sdn Bhd shares of (Note a) fertiliser and other
("Ta Yang Agricode”) MYR 1 pesticides products
each
Ta Yang Agricode BalAva SRAER 10,000,000%  50.1% AERBERHRE
Sdn Bhd BREE (Mfsta) AR & m
(ITa Yang Agricode ) 15 5H)
fin
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RARM

For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

24.INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24 A4S OES )
ENTITIES (Continued)

Note:

(a)

The Group holds 50.1% of the issued share capital of Ta
Yang Agricode. However, under a joint venture agreement,
the Group and the other significant shareholder jointly
control the composition of the board of directors of Ta
Yang Agricode. Therefore, Ta Yang Agricode is classified
as a jointly controlled entity of the Group.

On 31 July 2011, one of the wholly-owned subsidiaries,
Great Ocean Development Limited (“Great Ocean”),
entered into sale and purchase agreements with three of
its staff and an independent third party (the “Purchasers”)
pursuant to which Great Ocean agreed to sell and the
Purchasers agreed to acquire total of 1,100,000 shares
in Ta Yang Agricode at aggregate cash consideration of
MYR1,100,000 or equivalent to approximately HK$2,890,000.
The share transfer has notyetbeen completed as of the date
of issuance of these consolidated financial statements.

Hiat

(a) AEEFAETa Yang Agricode 2 B1TR
RE50.1% © AT - IRIEE E W - A

SEEHMEZRRARZESTa

Yang

AgricodeE Egm A K- Bt Ta
Yang Agricode? 8 &7 5 B &) £ F4%

I EEE o

RZZE——FtA=+—0 Hbh—H
2EMBRARAKRNFERARAR(K
FDEE=FZE8TIUR—EBYUE=
FTERZDAZESEHZE Bk X

FRELEMESRAEEETa
Agricode® #£1,100,0008% f% 15 -

Yang
H

RAB AR /1,100,00055 5 (S AR E R4
2,890,000/ 7T ) ° RANER & BTk Tl

BHAH - BRRMEREERTK

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect AR RS BN FEEG E
of the Group's interests in jointly controlled entities which R AR TR 2 MV B RS BRI
are accounted for using the equity method with the line- BRI
by-line reporting format is set out below:
2011 2010
—B——fF —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FABT
Current assets MENE E 37,082 =
Non-current assets FEMBEE 32,955 =
Current liabilities mEBaE (34,660) =
Net assets EEFE 35,377 —
Group's share of net assets AER B G HE R IE I
of jointly controlled entities BERNEETE 17,713 =
Revenue & 25,430 =
Loss for the year FANEE (1,674) =
Group's share of loss of jointly 68 B e A S R %
controlled entities for the year BENFAEE (838) -

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RAR M

For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE

24.INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24. A EiE4E

25.

ENTITIES (Continued)

Included in the cost of interests in jointly controlled
entities is goodwill of approximately HK$1,800,000 (2010:
Nil) arising on acquisition of jointly controlled entities
during the year.

a

Anniversary
BE

0 N\

BHER e

= me

\/\I_J? %”EH*W*E EIJEXZ’KE%EEE
RE LR TS EEREENEEY
1,800,000/ T (ZE—BF : B) o

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 25. R—EBE QRS
2011 2010
—F——F —TFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FABT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE MR - EREAE 1,278 1,278
Share of post-acquisition profit D FUEEE &= F &
and exchange reserve less BEE 3, {4 R 8 A 43k
distribution of profit 164 250
1,442 1,528
Details of the associate at 31 July 2011 and 2010 are as RZE——FRZE—FTF+HA=1+—
follows: EEO) NG ﬁlﬂ— :

Proportion of

Form of Place of Registered/  ownership

Name of business incorporation/  paid up interest

company structure operation capital directly held  Principal activity

RAEER ERRBER EMARL Fidi EREAEN TEXK

REw BRRK BRERRLA

SiTY Silcum & Ta Yang  Incorporated Germany EUR250,000  50% Trading of silicone tiles and
International GmbH electrical switching systems
("SiTY") and related items

SITY Silcum & Ta Yang  #EfftAkAZ (EE 250,000817C  50% YBELEERGN
International GmbH EBAERES

(SiTY))
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

25. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 25. R —EBE QX R NER @)
(Continued)
The summarised unaudited financial information in respect BRAANEBEZ NN AEEZTBE
of the Group's associate is set out below: BT EEHH 0T -
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Total assets BERE 7,297 7,250
Total liabilities BB (4,413) (4,194)
Net assets BEFE 2,884 3,056
Group's share of net assets REE A E QRN
of an associate BESE 1,442 1,528
Revenue Wz 20,347 23,787
(Loss) profit for the year FAR(ERE) &M (169) 766
Group's share of (loss) profit REE EGENE AR
of an associate for the year FA(ERE) & (85) 383
26.LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINTLY 26. Bl — R HEZE 5 S8 0
CONTROLLED ENTITY £
Loan receivable from a jointly controlled entity in amount JEU — el k(R 12 E 88 A B R0/23,000,00055
of MYR3,000,000 is unsecured, interest bearing at LIBOR W AEIRR Tﬂﬁwﬁﬁ TRIZESREIZE
plus 3% per annum and repayable in 2014. RIEEFEETE - WHR - —VIF(EE -
27.INVENTORIES 27. 78
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Raw materials R AT 67,580 65,781
Work-in-progress E&m 61,626 46,583
Finished goods EAK 50,975 52,763
180,181 165,127
During the year ended 31 July 2010, there was significant REBEE_ZT-—ZFLtA=+—HBILF
increase in the net realisable value of raw materials due to IER J%‘:TXHE'J—J&EE@TEEEEC m iﬁﬁ']ﬁ
market shortage in raw materials. As a result, a reversal of MR BRI AEIEM - FAit - HEZ
write-down of raw materials of approximately HK$3,895,000 —ZEFELA=T—RIFERRAEE J?
(2011: Nil) has been recognised and included in cost of MR 493,895,0008 0 ( —F——4F ¢
sales for the year ended 31 July 2010. ) Wit ASHEMXRK -
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(a)

0\

(a)

//’

Anniversary

BE

28. EWE SRR R E b ENFIE

2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade and bills receivables  FEWE ZERF R EWEIE
— from third parties —BWRE=F 250,144 277,682
— from an associate — JE U N ) 2,130 1,868
Less: Impairment losses B ERE =778
recognised in respect FEWE 5 BRF %
of trade and bills JE U 2 15 T SR A
receivables from RIEEE
third parties (778) (373)
251,496 279,177
Prepayments, deposits BRRIE  Re Rk
and other receivables H At FEUL IR 35,464 23,017
Less: Impairment losses B B E At EE MR IR
recognised in respect HEREREEE
of other receivables - (144)
286,960 302,050

The Group normally grants to its customers credit
periods ranging from 30 days to 135 days which are
subject to periodic review by the management.

An aged analysis of trade and bills receivables,
net of impairment losses recognised, presented
based on the invoice date at the reporting date
is as follows:

AEE—RETEEFPNFI0BE135H
MEEH - WHEEREERFERT

i
&

FREC DT 25120

HEBDH KD HERAREEERY
B 5 MR E B ZER BN
e

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month or —EAARIREREER
on demand 137,959 122,850
More than 1 month but — @A EBLR
less than 3 months ={@A 81,063 113,904
More than 3 months but =EAREELR
less than 12 months +={&A 31,767 41,630
More than 12 months +—@AMNUE 707 793
251,496 279,177
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. B E BRI R H it FEIRR

(Continued) IE (#&)
(b) The movement on impairment losses of trade and (b) EUE SR EWEEARIERE
bills receivables is as follows: BEsMT :
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
At 1 August RAA—B 373 406
Exchange realignment b 5, SR B 25 3
Impairment losses B R (E R 1E
recognised 508 213
Impairment losses reversed B EEIRERIE (119) (190)
Amounts written off HsE AU E R £ 58
as uncollectible (9) (59)
At 31 July WtA=+—A~ 778 373

Included in the impairment losses recognised are ERRBEESERELHRERS
#9778,000% T( = & — & F:
373,000/ 7T ) ) fE 51| 2 IR E FE 1 B
SERREWEE - KB &
HZEREFEERERR o @5
B R (B FE W R TE 3 22 BE [ B A
HIEELBTRONEFPER -

individually impaired trade and bills receivables with
an aggregate balance of approximately HK$778,000
(2010: HK$373,000) over which the Group does
not hold any collateral. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to customers that are in
financial difficulty or of poor credit history.

(c)  The movement on impairment losses of other ¢ EmMmERFNENREEEZH
receivables is as follows: T

2011 2010

—g——§ -T-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT THET

At 1 August RAHA—H 144 -

Exchange realignment PE i FE 2 2 2

Impairment losses B R (E e

recognised - 142

Written off g4 (146) -

At 31 July mntA=+—~H - 144
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(o)

(Continued)

As at 31 July 2010, included in the impairment
losses recognised were individually impaired
other receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$144,000 (2011: Nil) which were
due to long outstanding. The Group did not hold
any collateral over these balances.

At 31 July 2011 and 2010, the analysis of trade and
bills receivables that were past due but not impaired
are as follows:

-

N\

Anniversary

BE

28. EWWE Z BRI KR H it FE UL X
I8 ()
© (4&)

W—_ZT—ZTFELA=+—H" B
ERBREEEEELESHREY
144,000 L(ZFE——F : T)HY
15 B Rk B E fh EUWGRIE - B
BEEAER—BREBH - NEFTE
MR EESRFEEMERR -

RIEB——FR_T-TFLHA=
+—0B - EAEEINERE R
BHRAREREEOIIT -

Past due but not impaired

CRHEIREE
Over Over
Neither past 90 days but 1 year but
due nor Less than less than less than
Total impaired 90 days 1 year 2 years
st hig: k] $R90R 90H L E BE-F
TR E BOR-%F EBIR@E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TAT TET TAT TAT
31 July 2011 —E—FtA=+-H 251,496 208,745 39,000 3,055 696
31 July 2010 —Z-ZFtA=1-H 279,177 263,664 13,903 1,479 131

Trade and bills receivables that were neither past
due norimpaired relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

3 48380 5 7 HER R 1 ) B LK 3 AR AR
R e W B2 42 BT HA Y B 4B R RC 8 Y
ZEEPAR - ARBAUERZE
RERFS B EAERS -

B —FFR AFEEEBRARAF
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

28. EWWE 5 BRI & EH 1t FE LK
I8 (&)

(d)

(Continued)

Trade and bills receivables that were past due but
not impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track payment record
with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which

(d)

(e)

(%)

B8 BB 3 R (B 10 R ML B 5 AR K
RERREEANKEZ 2GRN
REHENBYEF B - RIFEE
Ki ANEEERYESAE
RSN AR R P BB E - E
B EREBANZEEMRIELRE
B AREYEIZFEHRETE
EfE A -

e E 5 iR K M FE KRR B R
THARBAE RN INEE B AN
EHIENDHE

they relate:
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-—TF
‘000 '000
Fx S
UsSD ETT 24,423 28,548
NTD Far 24,095 2,100
EUR BT 206 178

29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are

unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

29.

FE W 3 [B) 42 5 B8 B8 YRR OB

EMHFIEHIBERNRALSEET 2
BRIRERERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

//
0"

%

Anniversary

BE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AN =
e BHmERMEE
For the year ended 31 July 2011 #Z =T ——FtA=+—HIFE
30. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 30. SEEERE
2011 2010
= —FFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FABT
Equity securities at IRAE 5 (BT 5 WIE )
quoted market price
— listed in Hong Kong —REE LT 75 =
- listed outside Hong Kong —REBRINET 911 47
986 47
Included in held-for-trading investments are the following FIEEBEREBE NIAEBE BN

31.

amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

f
EEEB SN BRI ENSHE -

2011 2010
= —FTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
NTD etk 3,328 187
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS M. 9TE€®MIT A
Derivatives not under hedge accounting: IR EEEENITET A
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FAT
Derivative financial assets TEEREE
Investment in warrants RRREFERNIRE 418 4
Currency structured forward contracts & ¥ & # iR i & 4 (a) 3,754 2,934
4,172 2,938
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BEZ=ZT—F+tA=+—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RARM

31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Note:

(a)

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

For the year ended 31 July 2011

During the year ended 31 July 2011, the Group entered
into three non-deliverable net settled RMB/USD structured
forward contracts with a bank. The total notional amount of
the RMB/USD structured forward contracts is USD5,000,000
with 24 monthly settlement amounts. On each settlement
day, if the exchange rate of USD to RMB is at or depreciates
below the contracted rate, fixed amounts ranging from
USD4,500 to USD6,000 would be receivable from the bank.
If the exchange rate of USD to RMB appreciates above the
contracted rate at the settlement date, amounts would be
payable by the Group. The amounts payable by the Group
would be a function of the settlement amount and the
difference between the contracted rate and the exchange
rate of USD to RMB at the settlement date.

In addition, the Group entered into two gross settled
HK$/USD structured forward contracts which give the
Group the options to receive fixed USD or variable HK$
amounts per month if the market exchange rate is at or
appreciates above the reference rate on the fixing date.
However, the Group is obliged to buy USD/sell HK$ at
a fixed exchange rate if the market exchange rate falls
below the level specified under the respective contracts
for amounts of HK$7,744,000 or HK$7,745,000 per month
for the relevant contract.

For the year ended 31 July 2010

During the year ended 31 July 2010, the Group entered
into a RMB/USD non-deliverable net-settled structured
forward contract with a bank. The notional amount of the
RMB/USD non-deliverable net settled structured forward
contract is USD5,000,000 with 24 monthly settlement
amounts commencing from April 2010. On each settlement
day, if the exchange rate of USD to RMB falls with a
stated range, a fixed amount of USD20,000 would be
receivable from the bank. If the exchange rate of USD
to RMB appreciates above the contracted rate at the
settlement date, an amount would be payable by the
Group. The amount payable by the Group would be a
function of the settlement amount and the difference
between the contracted rate and the exchange rate of
USD to RMB at the settlement date.

At 31 July 2011 and 2010, the fair values of currency
structured forward contracts were determined based on
the estimated discount cash flow valuation provided by
BMI.

Subsequent to the reporting period, one of the currency
structured forward contracts, with nil fair value as at 31
July 2011 was terminated, no further gain/loss was resulted
upon termination.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=-ZT——FtA=+—HILFE

31.

32.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MN.TEEM I A
(Continued)
Included in derivative financial assets are the following b

amounts denominated in a currency other than the A
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

&

Anniversary

BE

THEEREEBRE TIIAEBERNDY
EEB AN BRI EN S -

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
‘000 ‘000
T T
usD e 485 379
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 32. /ITEHRRES
At 31 July 2011, bank balances and cash comprise of RZE——F+HA=+—H  R176%
cash held by the Group of approximately HK$126,799,000 EReBERAEERANRSREN™T
(2010: HK$204,874,000) at prevailing market rate. The B R 5 B #)126,799,000/8 T ( =T —
maturities of bank balances were within three months. T 204,874,0008 7T ) © % FIR1T A
HEEHRR=AHA -
Bank balances and bank deposits with maturity within =B A B HA R R1T A R R ERTT TR R IR
three months carried interest at average market rates of 0.89E(=ZZ—ZF  1.17E)WFHImi5
0.89% (2010: 1.17%) per annum. FRETE o
At 31 July 2011, the Group’s bank balances and cash RZTE——FLHA="+T—H XxEHI
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately ARBFHEMNRITEBRERSOAAR
RMB164,552,000 (2010: RMB181,180,000). Conversion #164,552,000t( —F—FF: AR¥
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC'’s 181,180,000t ) ° i AR ¥ A HNEE /B
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration AR B HNE B IR GBI N AETE - EIE R
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange PEEIRIRTEPTR ©
Regulations.
Included in bank balances and cash are the following RITHEBRRIRSBIETIABBEERERN
amounts denominated in a currency other than the e EEEAINE M EHERFOE ¢
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
2011 2010
—E——F —EFF
‘000 ‘000
Tr T
usD ey 2,599 5,540
EUR BT 158 1,115
JPY HE 774 1,162
NTD =k 8,802 11,783

—E——FEH KFEEERERAT |
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

33. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 33. AR/ ELESE

SALE

On 31 July 2011, Great Ocean entered into sale and RZE——F+HA=+—"HH KFHE
purchase agreements with the Purchasers pursuant to FEIVEERZ Bt KFERBHE
which Great Ocean agreed to sell and the Purchasers il B 75 A & # ETa Yang Agricode&
agreed to acquire total of 1,100,000 shares in Ta Yang #1,100,0008x & 7 - HE R EBEBE A
Agricode at aggregate cash consideration of MYR1,100,000 1,100,00055 # ( =k 48 & 7 £92,890,0007%%
or equivalent to approximately HK$2,890,000. The relevant 70) o RERESI B REER D E A
interest in jointly controlled entities are classified as assets FHIEHEEE  MRILERESMBEERE
classified as held for sale and the share transfer has not BB ZEROEZERARTK

yet been completed as at the date of the approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

The relevant interest in jointly controlled entities are RERZESERNAEER D B RIFE
classified as assets classified as held for sale and that HEEE  FHRN2EAREE -

are expected to be disposed within twelve months.

34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 34. ENE SRR EMENTIE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Trade and bills payables ENEZERRENRER 48,164 65,576
Other payables H At T EIE 52,343 53,333
100,507 118,909
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables based on the REER  ENESERARERNEE
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREHHANKRRSITEMWT ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month or on demand —EARHIREREE 16,773 26,083
More than 1 month but —@AEBLR=1EA
less than 3 months 27,836 33,844
More than 3 months but =EALELHR+ @A
less than 12 months 1,745 3,986
More than 12 months +=EAMNE 1,810 1,663
48,164 65,576
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34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
ranging from 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

Included in other payables are amounts in total of
approximately HK$2,000,000 (2010: HK$3,000,000)
representing accrued directors’ emoluments.

Included in trade and other payables are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

34.

\

//’

Anniversary

. BE

PR B 2 iR R BRI
(%)

BEEMNFHEEHAR0E0R - &
SERBRREEBR - UNEFRABE
MBI REERRZA -

A JE < 5178 B3 4E 4458 492,000,00078 7T
(ZZ—Z4 : 3,000,000/ 7T ) &) fE =

e & 5 03k M Bt A SRR B 48 T 51
BB BRI E R LN EERIIE
R

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF

‘000 '000

Fr Tt

usD e 3,037 4,381
JPY =] = 41,006
NTD etk 150 4,317

SE-—FER AFEEZERERQF
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorised and issued share capital

35. BA&

(a) FERBBITIRA

Note 2011 2010
Mz —B—-F —T-%F
Number of Number of
shares shares
RoEE brEdE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T TERT Th FAT
Ordinary shares of BREME01BTALER
HK$0.1 each
Authorised: BT
At 1 August 2009, RZZZAENA-R -
31 July 2010, 2 ZELA=+-H-
1 August 2010 and —Z-ZFN\A-H
31 July 2011 R-_Z—F
+A=+—H 20,000,000 2,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ~ BETRAR :
At 1 August YAV R =/ 778,006 77,801 800,000 80,000
Exercise of share iR e
options (i) 2,721 272 20 2
Share repurchased EBEER
and cancelled Bl (2,186) (219) (22,014) (2,201)
At 31 July WtA=+t—H 778,541 77,854 778,006 77,801
Note: KteE

(i) During the year ended 31 July 2011, 2,721,000 (2010:
20,000) new shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
were issued at a price of HK$0.96 (2010: HK$0.96)
per share upon exercise of share options granted
on 24 December 2009. The new shares issued rank
pari passu with the existing shares in issue in all
respects.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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0\

35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 35. A& (%)
(b) Repurchase of own shares (b) &M 5 AR 17
During the year ended 31 July 2011, the Company REZ2-_T—F+A=+—HIt
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock FE > ARBIRBRMEEA S E
Exchange as follows: AR SIS
Number of Highest Lowest
shares  price paid  price paid  Aggregate
Period Notes repurchased per share per share  price paid
A Mt B B8R ENER gff
ROBE ERER REER BRAHE
'000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T BT BT FERT
12-31 July 2010 ZE-TELRATZHE=T-R (i) 1,082 1.16 1.10 1,219
3-17 August 2010 —Z—ZENA=HZ+tH (i) 1,104 1.29 1.19 1,364
2,186 2,583

During the year ended 31 July 2010, the Company REZE-_ZT—ZFLA=+—HILtFE AR
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock  AIREERPTEEO A & EmAR - FFIBU0T ¢
Exchange as follows:

Number of Highest Lowest
shares  price paid  price paid  Aggregate
Period Notes repurchased per share per share  price paid
A i B ERER ENBR gff
ROBE ERER REER BRAHE
'000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T BT BT TERT
January 2010 —E-TF—f (iif) 10,000 1.39 1.20 13,415
February 2010 —T-TF-f (iif) 4,560 1.39 1.19 6,004
March 2010 —F-24=H (i) 2,294 1.44 1.35 3,188
April 2010 —Z-TFMA (i) 1,668 1.40 1.31 2,257
May 2010 —T-TERA (ii) 3,264 1.40 1.07 4,113
June 2010 ZZ-ZFRA (i) 160 1.02 1.00 161
1-11 July 2010 “E-TF+A-A

£t-H (i) 68 1.02 1.02 69
22,014 29,207

12-31 July 2010 =Z-ZF+tA+=H
E=1-H (i 1,082 1.16 1.10 1,219
23,096 30,426
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BHZ=—T——FtA=+—HIFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b) Repurchase of own shares (Continued)

Notes:

()

(iii)

The
cancellation at 31 July 2010 and the amount paid

repurchased shares were pending for
for the repurchase of the shares of approximately
HK$1,219,000 was charged to the share repurchase
reserve. The repurchased shares were cancelled
on 11 August 2010. Pursuant to section 37(4) of
the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, an amount equivalent to the par value of
the shares cancelled of approximately HK$108,000
was transferred from retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve. The par value of the shares
cancelled of approximately HK$108,000 and
the premium paid on the repurchased shares of
approximately HK$1,111,000 was transferred from
the share repurchase reserve to issued share capital
and share premium respectively.

The repurchased shares were cancelled and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Pursuant to section 37(4) of the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled
of approximately HK$111,000 was transferred from
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve.
The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares
of approximately HK$1,253,000 was charged to share
premium.

The repurchased shares were cancelled and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Pursuant to section 37(4) of the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands, an amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled
of approximately HK$2,201,000 was transferred from
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve.
The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares
of approximately HK$27,006,000 was charged to

share premium.
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35. BA&(#)

(b) BEIAKEIRGD &)

ez -

0)

(iii)

RZZT—ZTF+A=+—H B
Bl (5 ERFFESE - mEERHE
1~ & B8 #91,219,0007% 7T B # A%
DBEFEETR MR - BEEERG
RZZT—ZFNA+—BFH-
BRIEHEHEARNA(ZEZE L
FRAEET)EITDIE - HERE
T 84 AR 1) T (B #) € 8 £9108,000
BTHEBREHAEREEARE
Bl % - M RO EAELY
108,000 7T & Bt i 5] AR 17 P %
B #91,111,000/8 7T T3 B A%
DBEFEED BB RED TR
AR R ERR

EEERMNBWEHE MARQ
AIE BITIRAN A LR Z R D
EEEIR - BRIEFSES AR
F(ZEE L FEERT)E37E)
1% HEREAHEROEENS
E8#9111,0008 L E B R 2B 4% F
EREEAERLFE - BREDR
1 B2 14 8935 18 491,253,000 70
ERRG EERNE -

EBERMNBWEHE MARQ
AIE BITIRAN A LR Z R D
EEETR - BRIEFSES AR
F(ZEE L FEERT)E37E)
1% HEREEHEROEENS
28492,201,000/8 LB B IR i F
EREEAERLFE - REDR
13 BT 2 A+ 193 8 927,006,000
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36. DEFERRED INCOME IEIE WA

2011 2010

S e

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 August WAHA—H 1,014 1,026

Exchange realignment HE 5, 3R B 50 11
Credited to consolidated FTAGRE WK

income statement (24) (23)

At 31 July mntA=+—~” 1,040 1,014

In prior year, the Group received a government grant of
approximately HK$1,049,000 from T8 M AC B R 25 (& &
B Z 8 for the acquisition of prepaid lease payments.
The amount will be recognised as other operating income
over the unexpired lease term of prepaid lease payments.
During the year, deferred income of approximately
HK$24,000 (2010: HK$23,000) has been recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

RBEFE - ZK%@W%MEWEE%

BWEHTHMNEEREREEZE

4 T R B 78 Bh & 491,049,000 7T ° SA

SRR IS EN K ERHE R

ERAEMEEIRA - FR - ELZWA

4724 00078 (=& — ?i : 23,0007 7T)
RERE REZRNTER

SE-—FER AFEEZERERQF
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION 37.

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereof during the current
and prior years:

Unrealised  Accelerated

IS

AEENBEFECERNEIZRER
RHEE)RBEMEZESHWT

Deferred
Change in income

Estimated fair value of ~arising from

(profits) loss tax tax investment government
on inventories depreciation losses property grant Total
FEN RENEN BRREBE
RER MEHE FRE NVE BEM
(&%) B8 nE E# 28 BERA b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL THL THL THL ThEL
At 1 August 2009 RZZENENA-B  (631) 145 (145) - (257) (888)
Exchange realignment B 5 A = = = = (2) 2)
Charge (credited) to REalERNR
consolidated income (3A)
statement 3,498 (24) 24 = 6 3,504
At 31 July 2010 RZE-%F
tA=+-A 2,867 121 (121) = (253) 2,614
Exchange realignment EHAR - - - 12 (12) =
(Credited) charged to WA WER
consolidated income GPNEi
statement (759) (16) 16 448 b (305)
At 31 July 2011 RZE——%
tA=+-A 2,108 105 (105) 460 (259) 2,309

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred

taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated

financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$10,958,000 (2010:
HK$11,460,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.
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37.

38.

DEFERRED TAXATION (cContinued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$17,182,000 (2010:
HK$9,105,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$636,000 (2010: HK$733,000) of such
loss. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining losses of approximately HK$16,546,000
(2010: HK$8,372,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. At 31 July 2011, approximately HK$486,000
(2010: HK$486,000) and HK$6,548,000 (2010: Nil) included
in the above unused tax losses will expire after the year of
assessment of 2014 and 2015 respectively. Other estimated
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed
on 16 May 2007, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option Scheme”) and a
Post-IPO share option schemes (the “Post-IPO Option
Scheme”) whereby the directors and eligible employees
of the Group were given the rights to subscribe for shares
in the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated in two schemes.

At 31 July 2011, the total number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the schemes was 19,370,000 (2010:
17,244,000), representing 2.49% (2010: 2.22%) of the
shares in the Company in issue at that date. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the two schemes is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital or with
a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

37.

38.

/
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4R S 54 7H (42)

RBERER AEBHHARBAHE
&5 18 917,182,000 (= F — T F :
9,105,000/ 7T ) + A f ¥ 85 R 2R i FI o
Bt A A 1846360008 T( —E—F
F : 733,000/ L) BRIELEF BB E o
AR RETET R aFRE - MERR
T E5184716,546,0008 T( — T — T4 ¢
8,372,000 7T ) ERELEMIBEEE - X
—E——F+tA=+—H E@lEKH
B % T8 5 18 H AP 49486,0008 L ( =& —
T4 1 486,000/ 7T ) }.6,548,000/8 7L (=
T—ZTF B)NRER T —HFR=
T—RFFIRFERENE - B HarH
THES 1B ] & [R B 45 o

B RERT &

BRER-_ZZLFAATRNABBNR
REMRZZR W ARARMBERAFE
EREBER EI(BRAREERBR
A E D) RERAFEERBRES
TEXRARBERERETE] - &
bt AEENEFUREGERESER
BRBARRNMD - B &M IER
BIRT B A R S AR AT AR

R-ZZE——F+A=+—8" %3
TEHELE N RTEBRERS &K
5 48 81 519,370,0000%( — T — T 4 ¢
17,244,0008%) - HHERAQRZHEE %
TRD249% (ZZF —FF : 222%) °
Z M B st ST AT 4% BB AR AE AT K B 1D
1S ARG AR B IR B R L RT T
SHBARAREMBEREAODZETRNG
10% o PAEAR]F E R EA A L5 H K& A
RERHMBRENS R E BT T
TR BEHIERES AN AR RS Lt
HERT TS BBAR T EMNE T
FE191% M EBREKIBIEFNTES
B A B AR B B AN 2 BIAR A80.19%3K
{E{E 8 185,000,000/ 7T M 78 UG AR A &
AR S HE o
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. B ESTEl 2

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the THEERARAESETF B T2ER
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) (AREERE) (A RRROAREL R
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date HE W E : (RN EERL R HH FJIJ
of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for FEE AR THRTE  Rii)ARD
the five business days immediately preceding the date D EImEE ©
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: IEEMARIERENEEOT ¢
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
R A A BB TEH TEE
Pre-IPO Option Scheme 16 May 2007 One to five years 8 June 2008 to HK$2.20/ T
commencing from 15 May 2017
8 June 2007
BALREENBRESE —TTERATAE H-ZZ+FANB “ZEN\ERANEE
RETERSE “E—+ERATHHA
Post-IPO Option 24 December 2009 0.5 year 24 June 2010 to HK$0.9678 T
Scheme 1 - Lot 1 23 December 2019
BERLARERBRESE - 2SN 0.5 —2-TFAZTmA
—F—1 +ZA=+mA E-F-NFt-A=1=H
Post-IPO Option 24 December 2009 1 year 24 December 2010 to HK$0.96/ T
Scheme 1 - Lot 2 23 December 2019
BERNARERBRESE - —2TNF 15 “E-EF+ZRA=1MmA
—FH# +-A=tmA E-R-AF+-A=t=AH
Post-IPO Option 11 January 2011 0.5 year 11 July 2011 to HK$1.05/7T
Scheme 2 - Lot 1 10 January 2021
E/’X’&Fﬁﬁ‘%?ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%i —2—F 05% :%——ﬁtﬂ +—H
Pt —A+-B E_Z--%-AtH
Post-IPO Option 11 January 2011 1 year 11 January 2012 to HK$1.05/7T
Scheme 2 - Lot 2 10 January 2021
BRAREERBRIES S - —T—F 15 :ﬁ—_ﬁ—ﬂ +—8
—HH# —A+—-B E_Z-_—%—-AtH
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company'’s
share options held by directors and employees during the
year:

For the year ended 31 July 2011

Outstanding

38. BIRHESTEl#)

TREEHEEREERFENAARRE
BAHERFAREE

BE-_Z——FtA=1+—HILEE

Outstanding

at 1 August Granted  Exercised Forfeited  at 31 July
2010 during year during year during year 2011
RZZ-BF RZB——-%
NB—R tA=1+-H
18 RATE FREH FRITE FRRY 18 RATE
Pre-IPO Option Scheme  BRARZERE
R El 6,660,000 - - (420,000) 6,240,000
Post-IPO Option BRARBERERE
Scheme 1 - Lot 1 HEl——F— it 5,292,000 - (2,626,000 (214,0000 2,452,000
Post-IPO Option BRAREERERE
Scheme 1 - Lot 2 FE——FH 5,292,000 - (95,000) (285,000) 4,912,000
Post-IPO Option BRARBERERE
Scheme 2 - Lot 1 FE——F-H - 2,997,000 - (114,000) 2,883,000
Post-IPO Option BRAREERERE
Scheme 2 - Lot 2 A ——F 4t - 2,997,000 - (114,000) 2,883,000
17,244,000 5,994,000 (2,721,000) (1,147,000 19,370,000
Exercisable at the end ~ AJRERTTHE
of the year 15,239,000
Weighted average IMETI1THEE
exercise price HK$1.44787T  HK$1.0587T  HK$0.96ETT HK$1.43E7T  HK$1.39% 7T
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 38.

For the year ended 31 July 2010

Outstanding

BRRETE )
BZ-2-BELA=t+—BILEE

Outstanding

at 1 August Granted Exercised Forfeited  at 31 July

2009 during year during year during year 2010
R=2BLE R=%-%%
NE—H tA=t—H

e RATE FARH FRITE FRARY e RATE

Pre-IPO Option Scheme  BRAREEREREE 7,085,000

- = (425,000) 6,660,000

Post-IPO Option BRARBERERE

Scheme 1 - Lot 1 HEl——F it - 5475000 (20,000) (1630000 5,292,000
Post-IPO Option BRAREERERE

Scheme 1 - Lot 2 FE——FH - 5,475,000 - (183,000) 5,292,000

7,085,000 10,950,000 (20,000) (771,000) 17,244,000

Exercisable at the end  ATRERTTHE

of the year 10,138,000
Weighted average IMETI1THEE

exercise price HK$2.20%7C  HK$0.967T HK$0.96/BTL HK$1.648 T  HK$1 44T

In respect of the share options exercised during the year
ended 31 July 2011, the weighted average share price at
the dates of exercise is HK$1.22 (2010: HK$1.16).

On 11 January 2011, the Company has granted share
options under Post-IPO Option Scheme to subscribe for
an aggregate of 5,994,000 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.10 each in the Company to the directors and
eligible employees of the Group. The closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before 11 January 2011,
the date of grant, was HK$1.05.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=-ZT——FtA=+—HILFE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The estimated fair values of the options granted during
the year ended 31 July 2011 were calculated using The
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

//’

Anniversary

BE

ERESE e

RBE-_Z——FLtA=+—HLFE
A E B A ET 2 FERB N R—
SR EEEAGFE - GAZRA
BRI

Share options granted on
11 January 2011
R-®——%—A+-H

=B R R
Lot 1 Lot 2
F—4#t ETHt
Fair value at measurement date ~ RFTEHHMNAFE HK$0.38%87T  HK$0.38%E 7T
Share price AR 1D B HK$1.05%8 7T HK$1.05/%8 7T
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$1.0548 7T HK$1.05%7T
Expected volatility TR ER R I8 63.28% 63.28%
Option life B A o) £ HR 5.25 years F 5.5 years F
Expected dividends TREAAR S 5.66% 5.66%
Risk-free interest rate (based on  fEE R F=E
Hong Kong Exchange (REBEEBINEESER)
Fund Notes) 1.75% 1.84%

On 24 December 2009, the Company has granted share
options under Post-IPO Option Scheme to subscribe for
an aggregate of 10,950,000 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.10 each in the Company to the directors and
eligible employees of the Group. The closing price of
the Company's shares immediately before 24 December

2009, the date of grant, was HK$0.90.

R-_ZEZAF+-_A-+MWAE A 7
BEBAAHEEERBRETERNAS
BEEREGEREERDERE R
884 ££10,950,000% & A E1E0. 1075 T HY
RABEBE - ARABRMHNREBEERD
B —_ZEEAE+-A-+mWBEmMa%K
(B A0.907% T °

—E——FFH AOrEERRERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 BEZE=ZT—Ft+tA=+—HIFE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The estimated fair values of the options granted during

38. B ESTEl 2

RBE_Z-ZFLA=+—HLFE
A E B A ET 2 FERB N R—
SRR ERAE - HAZER
BRI

the year ended 31 July 2010 were calculated using The
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Share options granted on
24 December 2009
R-ZZNFE+-A-+MA

RN B
Lot 1 Lot 2
F—#t ETHt
Fair value at measurement date ~ RFTEBHNAFE HK$0.31487T  HK$0.31/E7T
Share price AR DB HK$0.927%& 7T HK$0.92%& 7T
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$0.96/8 7T HK$0.967& 7T
Expected volatility TR ER R I8 54.21% 54.21%
Option life HE A 1) £ HR 5.25 years F 5.5 years F
Expected dividends TREAAR S 4.2% 4.2%
Risk-free interest rate (based on  fEE R F=E
Hong Kong Exchange (REEBINEESTIR)
Fund Notes) 1.90% 1.96%

TEHPR R TR AR A 2 A B R LR R
E o BATMANBEHNREREERE
EBOREGB T AIERE - /TERS
ROIREBRENTEFLAE -

Expected volatility was determined based on historical
volatility of the share prices of the Company. The
excepted life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management's best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
consideration.

10 H— 8 B T A E ST
IR AT (E - 5 E MR AT B
PR 7B #0828 T DA B R M R
AR BRREREDTERBER
BATEED -

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been used
to estimate the fair value of the options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
Changes in variables and assumptions may result in
changes in the fair value of the options.

AEFBERARARBE_T——F
TtA=Z+T-"ALFEREREBNE

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately
HK$3,264,000 for the year ended 31 July 2011 (2010:
HK$4,385,000) in relation to the fair value of the share RENATE REAERLHZL
options granted by the Company and vested during the 3,264,000/ 7t ( — T — T 4 : 4,385,000
year. HIT) e
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE =T ——FtA=+—HILFE

\

BB A (M)

BexH

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  39.BIEA X5
(a) Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (a) BREAHMBHEERBTEREEN
financial statements, the Group entered into the RER » NEFEBEBEFEISIUT
following transactions with related parties during T5
the year:
Name of company Nature of transaction 2011 2010
NGRS REME —E2——F —E-FTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
SiTY (Note i) Sales of rubber 5,828 8,567
SiTY (M%) keypads
SHEWRBIRER
Formosan (Note ii) Acquisition of 2,586,618 shares 8,666 —
Az (B =L of Formosan (included in
available-for-sale financial
assets)
W RE MR /92,586,618A% A% (5
GTARHEEESRIEE)
Force Mos (Note iii) Disposal of 20,000 shares of 243 =
7= (B i) Force Mos (included in
available-for-sale financial
assets)
& 71 £ #920,0000% A% 19
GTARHHEHEESREE)
Huzhou Ri Jun (Note iv) Rental income 592 -
RN B & (Bt FEiv) HESUWA
Mr. Chung Ru Yu (Note v) Commission expenses 973 -

SE-—FER ATEEZRARA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RARM

For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39.BEAREZ &)
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) SiTY is an associate company of the Group.

(i)  Formosan is a company listed on Taiwan Stock
Exchange and Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is the common
director of the Company and Formosan.

(i)  Force Mos is a company listed on Taiwan Stock
Exchange and there is common director of a
subsidiary of the Company and Force Mos.

(iv)  Huzhou Ri Jun is a jointly controlled entity of the
Group.

(v) Mr. Chung Ru Yu is a director of one of the subsidiaries
of the Company.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and

(a)

(%)
Hist

(iii)

(iv)

=
=

N

SITYRAEEMNEE QR -

MHEE-RNBEEFRHM L
MERE - MEBFEEERER
ARMEntRES -

NER-FRABESZHH L
THAT - TARAKBATR
NEEERAEE -

WM BB R B K RESE
BE .

BEREERARAES K
BARMES -

FEETHEE A SR

FR - ARBEERHEBEEERE

other members of key management during the year [k B ByE BN T ¢
was as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Short-term benefits EHIE A 8,175 10,403
Post-employment benefits Bk & 12 F 113 109
Share-based payments VARR 7 73 B 89 1~ 3K 1,015 1,536
9,303 12,048

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=-ZT——FtA=+—HILFE
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EREE
2011 2010
—F——F —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Capital expenditure contracted Tﬁ'JRIEE’JE‘EVME' i AR
for but not provided in the RiRE M BRREBHNERFRX
consolidated financial
statements in respect of:
— Acquisition of property, — Y - R R
plant and equipment 1,516 7,482
— Acquisition of land use right — LB + st {5 R A 17,957 1,081
19,473 8,563
41. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING 1. REHERE
LEASES
The Group as lessor REBEFE/EHEA
Property rental income earned during the year was FRBREAYEHRS WAL A592,00078
approximately HK$592,000 (2010: Nil). The investment T(ZE—FTF: i) Tx\é{\%%i‘ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬂ%
property is expected to generate rental yields of 4.5% SEIEEMEAS% (ZE—FF : T)E

(2010: Nil) on an ongoing basis. The investment property
held has committed tenants for the next year.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had contracted

S - Ffr#ﬂxé?%%ﬁﬂiiaﬁfﬁﬁ
Al o

RBEHR - ARE D TIIARRRE

with tenants for the following future minimum lease THEFBEEBSETA -
payments:
2011 2010
= —FFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Within one year —FR 660 -

B —FER AFEEZERARAA |
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

41. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING 41.

LEASES (Continued)

The Group as lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases for its factories, offices and staff quarters. The
leases were negotiated for terms ranging from one to
five years, with the options to renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Atthe end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

KREHERE2)

AEBEAEAEA
AEERESEHERNEsTYWERE
BE WMAEREIRESE %EMHE
SHEAPNTF—ZRF  WEAAER
BEM ERMEGKEATENEE -
ZEHERERRERAES -

RBEHR - ARERE A HHELE
HEZAR T 5 HAEBE AR K&K
HERBAZWT :

2011 2010
—e——-5 —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Land and buildings: T RAETF

Within one year —FRN 5,366 6,713

In the second to fifth F_EFERF(BEREMFBIEEAN)
year inclusive 6,613 9,291
11,979 16,004

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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/
. B

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIALPOSITION 42. &2 3 H B 4R R &=
OF THE COMPANY

Notes 2011 2010
(=2 —E——F —E-ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current asset IEMEEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHT B A RIEIRE 104,149 104,149
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables E b e R 152 680
Amounts due from NG
subsidiaries (a) 881,404 783,015
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEHR MRS 135 29,672
881,691 813,367
Current liabilities mENAE
Other payables E b et 7R 4,947 4,267
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIECE:] (a) 241,713 185,807
246,660 190,074
Net current assets MEEEFE 635,031 623,293
Total assets less current REERLBARE
liabilities 739,180 727,442
Capital and reserves BARRFEE
Share capital [N 77,854 77,801
Reserves it (b) 661,326 649,641
Total equity fEmAE 739,180 727,442

SE-—FER AFEEZERERQA
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For the year ended 31 July 2011 B#Z =T ——F+ A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIALPOSITION 42. & A 3B EIR R FR 2

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. The fair values of
the amounts at the end of the reporting period
approximated to the corresponding carrying
amounts due to their short-term maturities.

(a) FEWLFEIFE L RFIR
AMFEARER - REREER
88 - RN ARRESRE B RS
5 BCER RS BIR A AR
FERE AR -

Reserves (b) ##&
Share Share Capital
Share option  repurchase Retained  redemption
premium reserve reserve profits reserve Total
BhE RiER g
RiaE i i REEH i g
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThT ThT AL ThT AL
At 1 August 2009 RZZENE/\A-H 659,945 8,702 = 1999 - 670,646
Total comprehensive ERZERAEE
income for the year = = = 50,818 = 50,818
Exercise of share options {70 iE 2 (6) = - - 17
Transfer to reserve for value S NERENEE
of share options forfeited ~ BEZHIE - (626) = 626 = -
Equity-settled share-based ~ EREFNHRNERRS
transactions - 4,385 - - - 4,385
Shares repurchased and ~ EEEIRFHERH
cancelled (27,006) = = (2,201) 2.201 (27,006)
Repurchase of own shares BB &t k1
pending for cancellation = = (1,219 = = (1,219
Dividend declared and ENSRRERARE
paid during the year - - - (48,000) - (48,000)
At 31 July 2010 RZE-%F
tA=1-H 632,962 12,455 (1,219) 3,242 2,201 649,641
Total comprehensive ERZERAEE
income for the year = = = 53,931 = 53,931
Exercise of share options ~ 1T{FiEMRIE 3,188 (846) = = = 2,302
Transfer to reserve for value S WERENEE
of share options forfeited ~ BEZFHIE = ) = 74 - -
Equity-settled share-based ~ EREFNHRNERRS
transactions - 3,264 - - - 3,264
Shares repurchased and BRI RFHERH
cancelled (2,364) - 1,219 219) 219 (1,145)
Dividend declared and ENSRRERARE
paid during the year = = = (46,707) = (46,707)
At 31 July 2011 RZZ——F
tA=1-H 633,786 14,132 - 10,988 2420 661,326
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company

43. T EM B A T

/

Anniversary
BE

RBERR  ARAHANTIENBL

at the end of the reporting periods are as follows: BFEBNT
Place of
incorporation/  Class of Issued share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries establishment ~ shares held registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
iR/ BRiIRE/ 158
HEAREH BUbhH RS AfEs EitRaESR ITER
2011 2010 2011 2010
22--f “2-%F “E--f _T-%F
Ta Yang Silicone Rubber ~ HongKong ~ Ordinary shares 1,000,000 shares 1,000,000 shares 100% 100% Trading of silicone rubber
Industrial Company of HK$1 each  of HK$1 each
Limited
KEYEBIZERLA  ER Tk 1,000,000% 1,000,000 ft EEVE
SREE ShEE
1R TR ETHIRG
Chief Ocean Limited HongKong ~ Ordinary shares 1 share of 1 share 100% 100% Provision of management
HKS$1 each of HK§1 each services
HEARAT (30 EER 1REE At RHERRY
1R TR
Ta Yang Group Limited BVI Ordinary shares 11,930,811 shares 11,930,811 shares ~ *¥100%  *100% Investment holding
of USD1 each  of USD1 each
KEEERRAA RERTEE  LER 119308118 11930811/ BARR
Skt ShEE
1ZTHRG 1ETHIR
Top View Investment BVI Ordinary shares 1 share of 1 share 100% 100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited USD1 each of USDT each
ERRERRERAA fBRaEE ERRK 1HREE 1RAE(E REER
10k 1ZTHRI
Ta Yang Group (Macao Macau Ordinary shares 1 share of Macau 1 share of 100% 100% Trading of silicone rubber
Commercial Offshore) Pataca ("MOP") ~ MOP100,000
Limited 100,000 each  each
5B (RFRERRE) 27 EEk 1REE 1RAEE EEVE
ERAR 100,0002M7  100,000F57CY
(MEmz)hke  RA
Dongguan Ta Yang Silicone  The PRC Contributed capital HK$86,000,000  HK$86,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Rubber Indlustrial silicone rubber
Company Limited
REAFEBHRERAT  PHE NV 86,000,0007 86,000,005 7 HEYR
—E-—FE% AFEEZRERAR | 213
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 July 2011 BHZ=—T——FtA=+—HIFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. TEMBE ATl

Place of
incorporation/  Class of Issued share capital/ Attributable equity

Name of subsidiaries establishment ~ shares held registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
iR/ BRfR%/ A5E

WEARER B FRHER &R EhRaRE TERE

200 2010 11200
“3-F “FTF ZR-F IT%F

Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic ~ The PRC Contributed capital  USD38,000,000  USD38,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of

Technology Company silicone rubber
Limited

BNRFRTHERRAA  FE EIN- 38,000000%7  38,000000%7 REVE

Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber ~ The PRC Contributed capital HK$5,000,000  HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Plastic Industrial Company silicone rubber
Limited

RRETGLURERAT NV 5,000,000%% 500000047 HEYE

Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber ~ The PRC Contributed capital HK$53,372,623  HK$53,372,623 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Plastic Industrial Company silicone rubloer
Limited

RERFEEHRARLA P BARR 53,312,623 53372623% 71 REVE

Bei Liu Jin Gu Electronic ~ The PRC Contributed capital HK$13,000,000  HK$10,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Technology Co,, Ltd. silicone rubber

LA THEERAT  E N T 13,000,000 100000007 HEYR

Huizhou Fu Ying Rubber The PRC Contributed capital HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Plastic Industrial Co., Ltd
ENRRE2ERERAR  HE BARR 12,800,000 128000007 nEER

Huizhou Rui Mei Silicone  The PRC Contributed capital HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Rubber Industrial Co., Ltd
BIREEBERERAT  PH NV 12,800,000 128000007 NEER

Huizhou Shuo Ying Silicone ~ The PRC Contributed capital HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Rubber Industrial Co., Ltd
ENEREBERERAT  HE NV 12,800,007 128000007 nEER

Huizhou Fu Mei Silicone ~ The PRC Contributed capitel HK$12,800,000  HK$12,800,000 100% 100% Property holding
Rubber Industrial Co., Ltd

BNEXERBERARAT TE BAERK 12,800,007 12,800,005 7C el

* Except for Ta Yang Group Limited, all the subsidiaries & BRARFSEBAERARIN FTEWE
are indirectly held by the Company. ANREBARARIEERE °

Note:  All entities established in the PRC are wholly owned BteF . FMBETREKINEREAINGE
foreign enterprises. B -
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43.

44,

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 1 August 2011, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party pursuant to which the
acquisition of land use rights in Indonesia would be
cancelled and replaced by another land use rights in
Indonesia. The deposits for acquisition of original land
use rights in amount of approximately HK$6,811,000 has
been fully refunded on 22 September 2011.

43.

44,

//’
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FEMB QB2

ERINIARRESRREERFEAE
BRAXBEENAEENBAR - A
REABEERRFINEMMBEBARENS
BRREBRITE °

RELLFREMERE - SLENE AR
BAEMADBITHERRE?

BEHRER

MN_ZT——&ENA—H AE[ME—F
BB =R BHECEREE
BELMFERE YHS—HEELH
FRERN BERLMEHRENES
496,811,000 TER —_E—F N A=
+ - BREERE o
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEBEHE

For the year ended 31 July 2011 HE=_ZE——F+A=+—HIFE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXE

Year ended 31 July
BEtA=+t—-HLFE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ET+F —TT)N\F ETNF —T-ITF ZB——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET FHET
Turnover EHER 629,839 744,908 620,251 812,093 787,348

Profit (loss) for the year — FPEF(EHE) 159,589 100,383 (38,893) 67,266 42,644

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #HLReEERERE

As at 31 July

NtBR=+—8H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—EE+FE ZTTINFE ZTThEFE —E-TF ZEB——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FHT FHAT FHT FHT FaExT

(Note)

(BFsE)
Total assets BERE 1,213,553 1,299,202 1,190,173 1,247,784 1,282,526
Total liabilities BERE (191,551) (151,074) (119,248) (167,534)  (144,373)

1,022,002 1,148,128 1,070,925 1,080,250 1,138,153

Total equity A 1,022,002 1,148,128 1,070,925 1,080,250 1,138,153

G

Note: The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on A3+ ARBR_ZTEENF_A-_+=BEHE

23 February 2006 and became the holding company of the HEaEMKky  WRETHAFE(FS
Group with effect from 17 May 2007 as a result of a reorganisation R ARARMHEEHA-STLFRA
scheme as set out in the Prospectus dated 28 May 2007 issued ZTNBEHNERER)IBA-_ZZELF
by the Company. Accordingly, the consolidated financial TA+EtRABKARNEENZERAR -
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2007 have It AEEHE-_TTLFELA=1+T—HI1t
been prepared as if the current group structure had been in FERERE SRR TR IR R S B 4L
existence throughout the years presented. BRERFE —BFENEERRMMK °

216 | TAYANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011






2 = S| 4 AL =
RFEEEREBERLQF

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

Flat 28, 23/F, Metro Centre Il, 21 Lam Hing Street,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BN REEREA2RERED L —H2FRB28E
Tel E5E : (852) 3678 5088

Fax 8 : (852) 3678 5099

Website #84F : www.tayang.com




	Cover
	Inside Cover
	Milestone
	Contents
	Mission Statement
	Corporation Information
	Directors’ Profile
	Senior Management Profile
	Chairman’s Statement
	Business Review & Outlook
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Remuneration Committee Report
	Audit Committee Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Years Financial Summary
	Inside Back Cover
	Back Cover

